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This is a translation of the Hungarian Report
Independent Auditors' Report
To the Shareholders of Sberbank Magyarorszag Zrt.
Report on the audit of the consolidated annual financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying 2018 consolidated annual financial statements of
Sherbank Magyarorszag Zartktriien Mikodé Részvénytarsasag ("the Group™), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018 - showing a
balance sheet total of HUF 365,837 million and a total comprehensive income for the
year of HUF 719 million -, the related statement of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity, statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated annual financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion the consolidated annual financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018 and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the financial
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the EU ("EU IFRSs") and has been prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the supplementary requirements of Act C of 2000 on Accounting
("Hungarian Accounting Law") relevant for consolidated annual financial statements
prepared in accordance with EU IFRSs.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hungarian National Auditing Standards and
with applicable laws and regulations in Hungary, including also Regulation (EU) No.
537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 April 2014 on specific
requirements regarding statutory audit of public-interest entities ("Regulation (EU) No.
537/2014"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
"Auditer's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated annual financial
statements” section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the applicable ethical
requirements according to relevant laws in effect in Hungary and the palicy of the
Chamber of Hungarian Auditors on the ethical rules and disciplinary proceedings and,
concerning matters not regulated by any of these, with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA
Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities In accordance with these
requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated annual financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
annual financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separale opinion on these malters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the "Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated annual financial statements section” of our report, including
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated annual financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide
the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated annual financial
statements.

Credit Impairment

The Group calculates credit impairment
in accordance with IFRS9 Financial
instruments, the new accounting
standard effective from 1 January
2018. Credit impairment is a highly
subjective area due to the level of
judgement applied by management in
determining expected credit losses
("ECL").  The identification of
impairment and the determination of
the recoverable amount are an
inherently uncertain process involving
various assumptions and factors,
including the financial condition of the
counterparty, expected future cash
flows, and expected net selling prices of
collaterals. The portfolios which give
rise to the greatest uncertainty are
typically those where impairmenls are
derived from estimates of future cash
flows and realizable value of collateral,
calculated using collective impairment
models, are unsecured or are subject to
potential collateral shortfalls. These
ECL models require the significant
judgment of management regarding
correct segmentation, the identification

A& mawvisms lirmeal Frend B Yo Lolasketd | wen =i

We involved valuation specialists to
assist us in performing our audit
procedures. Our audit procedures
included among others the following
procedures.

We assessed the design and tested the
operating effectiveness of internal
controls over the approval, recording
and monitoring of loans and receivables
to customers and controls over ECL
calculations including the quality of
underlying data and systems.

For ECL for loans and receivables to
customers calculated on an individual
basis, we tested the assumptions
underlying the impairment
identification and quantification
focusing on loan cases with the most
significant potential impact on the
consolidated annual financial
statements. We assessed the Group's
assumptions on the expected future
cash flows, including the value of
realisable collateral and estimates of
recovery on default based on our own
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of significant changes in credit risk, the
inclusion of forward-looking elements
as well as the application of
management overlay to reflect on
circumstances beyond the madelling
tapabilities, The wuse of different
modelling techniques and assumptions
could produce significantly different
estimates of loan loss provisions.

Due to the significance of loans and
receivables to custemers (representing
62% of Total Assels as at 31 December
2018) and the related estimation
uncertainty, this is considered a hkey
audit matter,

Infarmation Technolagy (IT) systems

A significant part of the Group's
financial reporting process and interest
and fee revenue recognition is heavily
reliant on IT systems with automated
processes and controls over the
capture, storage and extraction of
information. A fundamental component
of these processes and controls is
ensuring appropriate user access and
change management protocols exist,
and are being adhered to.

These protocols are important because
they ensure that access and changes to
IT systems and related data are made
and authorized in an appropriate
manner.
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understanding and avallable market
information.

For ECL for loans and receivables to
customers calculated on a collective
basis we evaluated the model
governance, methodologies, inputs and
assumptions used (probability of
default, loss given default, significant
changes in credit risk and forward-
looking elements) including model
validations and backtesting.

We also assessed whether the
disclosures in the consolidated annual
financial statements appropriately
reflect the Group's exposure to credit
risk and are compliant with the EU
IFRSs.

The Group's disclosures about [ts risk
management policies are included in
Note 6.4 - Accounting policies which
specifically gxplains the key
assumptions used when determining
credit risk and their evaluation are
detailed in MNote 6.6.4 - Loans and
advances to customers and Note 6.11.3
Credil risk.

We focused our audit on those IT
systems and controls that are
significant for the Group's financial
reporting. As audit procedures over the
IT systems and application controls
require specific expertise, we involved
IT audit specialists in our audit
procedures.

We understood and assessed the overall
IT control environment and the controls
in place which included controls over
access to systems and data, as well as
system changes. We adjusted our audit
approach based on the financial
significance of the system and whether
there were automated procedures
supported by that system.
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As our audit sought to place a high level As part of our audit procedures we
of reliance on IT systems and tested lhe operating effectiveness of
application controls related to financial  controls over appropriate access rights
reporting, a high proportion of the o assess whether only appropriate
overall audit effort was in this area. ygsers had the ability to create, modify or
Furthermore the complexity of IT  galete yser accounts for the relevant in-

systems and nature ‘Df application scope applications. We also tested the
controls requires special expertise to operating effectiveness of controls

be involved in the audit, We therefore ardund ‘Spstern  develdpment and

consider this as a key audit matter. program changes to establish that
changes to the system were
appropriately authorized, developed
and implemented. Additionally, we
assessed and tested the design and
operating  effectiveness of the
application controls embedded in the
processes relevant to our audit.
The Group's disclosures about its IT
Systems are included in Note 6.4B - IT
systems used by the Bank.

Other information

Other information consists of the 2018 consolidated business report of the Group.
Management is responsible for the preparation of the consclidated business report in
accordance with the Hungarian Accounting Law and other relevant legal requirements,
if any. Our opinion on the consolidated annual financial statements does not cover the
consolidated business repart.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated annual financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the consolidated business report and, in doing so, consider
whether 1) the consolidated business report is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated annual financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated and 2) the consolidated business report
has been prepared in accordance with the Hungarian Accounting Law and other
relevant legal requirements, if any.

We are required to confirm also whether the consolidated business report includes the
non-financial statement as required by Section 95/C of the Hungarian Accounting Law.

In our opinion, the consolidated business report of the Group for 2018 is consistent, in
all material respects, with the 2018 consolidated annual financial statements of the
Group and the relevant requirements of the Hungarian Accounting Law.
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Since no other legal regulations prescribe for the Group further requirements with
regard to its consolidated business report, we do not express opinion in this regard.

We also confirm that the consolidated business report includes the non-financial
statement as required by Section 95/C of the Hungarian Accounting Law.

Further to the above, based on the knowledge we have obtained about the Group and
its environment in the course of the audit we are required to report whether we have
identified any material misstatement in the consolidated business report, and if so, the
nature of the misstatement in question. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
consolidated annual financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated annual financial staternents in accordance with the EU IFRSs and the
supplementary requirements of the Hungarian Accounting Law relevant for
consolidated annual financial statements prepared in accordance with EU IFRSs, and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated annual financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated annual financial staternents, management is responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a geing concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are respansible for averseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated annual financial
statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
annual financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Hungarian National Auditing Standards and with
applicable laws and regulations in Hungary, including also Regulation (EU) No.
537/2014 will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected fo influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated annual financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with Hungarian National Auditing Standards and with
applicable laws and regulations in Hungary, including alse Regulation (EU) No.
537/2014, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

P |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
annual financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control,

P Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

p Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated annual
financial statements or, If such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
annual financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated annual financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

P Obtain sufficienl appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated annual financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safequards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated annual
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters,

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Reporting reguirements on content of auditor's report in compliance with Regulation
(EU) No. 537/2014;

Appointment and Approval of Auditor

We were appointed as statutory auditor by the General Assembly of Shareholders of
the Group on 28 May 2018, Total uninterrupted engagement period, including previous
renewals (extension of the period for which we were originally appointed) and
reappointments for the statutory auditor, has lasted far seven year.

Consistency with Additional Report to Audit Committee

Our audit opinion on the consolidated annual financial statements expressed herein is
consistent with the additional report to the audit committee of the Group, which we
issued in accordance with Article 11 of the Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 on the same
date as the date of this report.

Non-audit Services
We declare that no prohibited non-audit services referred to in Article 5¢1) of

Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 were provided by us to the Company and its controlled
undertakings and we remained independent from the Group in conducting the audit.

in addition to statutory audit services and services disclosed in the consolidated
business report and in the consolidated annual financial statements, no other services
were provided by us to the Company and its controlled undertakings.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
Szabo Gergely.

Budapest, 13 May 2019

{The original Hungarian language version has been signed.)

Szabo Gergely Szabd Gergely
engagement partner Registered auditor
Ernst & Young Kft. Chamber membership MNo.: 005676

1132 Budapest, Vaci ut 20.
Registration No.: 001165
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Sherbank Hungary L,

data in THUE million

1. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

data in HUF miilion
Nole a1.42.20M8 31122017 01.01,2017
Assats
Gash and cash equivalents 881 61 BOE 5§ 203 55 53]
Securfies 662 43 B84 53 472 56 950
Recelvables from crodit Mstilubions 863 22 455 31 747 45 087
Loans and advances to customers BG4 228 535 199 360 181 151
Pianl, property and equipmant 665 1 408 1038 1778
Intangible assets 668 4 069 2 380 1332
Equity investiments G667 438 do4 3o
Invvesiment property 0 0 0
Tax assels G668 13 19 b7
Deivative assets 669 1219 563 1127
Olher assets 6.6.10 1 B8S% 1 856 2204
Nop-currént nssals and disposal groups held for s 8.6.11 13 | 567 0
Total Assets 365 B3T 348 672 155 666
Llabilition
Liabiities dis Lo banks 6612 34 538 42611 B2 165
Liabiities due 10 customers 8613 285 310 245082 | 218633 |
Dbt securiies in ssue 66814 4 177 5118 4 Ba%
Subordinated lisbillties 6615 0 D52 8742 21 105
Proyisions 6.6.16 140 785 622
Tax llabilties 568 36 1 13
Desivative labiites 569 Faz 657 1471
Othar kabities 6817 € 200 A TET T 043
Man-current imbiites and dispesal groups hiskd for sale 0 ] 1]
Total Liabilities 371 303 308 084 317 337
Equity
Share capital 6.6.18 arar 3727 ATE
Share premium B.6.19 94 418 a1 500 BB 362
Ollver resaives 6620 185 50 1] |
Other comprohenmive noomxe 6.8 287 a0 840
Retained eamings =54 051 -54 439 54 500
Total equity 44 634 41 588 38 329
Total liabilities and equity 365 837 348 672 356 666

Budapest, 13 May 2019

Richard Szabo
Chairman - CEC

|r

Eva Tudﬁé grﬁngrﬁsy

CFO
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2. INCOME STATEMENT

data in HUF million
Moto 31122018 I A22047

Profit or loss for the year
Interest receivable and similar income 6.7.1 11739 10 164
Interest payable and similar expanse 672 -2 357 =2 430
Not provision charge for loan impairment 6.7.3 -883 121
Met interest income minus risk provisions & agg 7 855
Fee and commission income 6.7.4 & 346 7 BB
Fae and commiasion axpanse 6.7.5 -1 208 -1 Q70
Met fee and commissions income 7138 6821
Net trading income 676 1651 123
ot gain or o&s on securities 6.7.7 B33 445
Changes in allowances for olhar nsks 678 -235 -T8
Other operating income 679 784 820
Other oparating expenses 6.7,10 ~16 3560 =14 352
Resull befare tax 1 844 506
Incame lax 6.7.11 487 ~385
Prafit of loss after tax fiom contimuing operatlons 1347 m
Profit or loss afier tax from discontinued aperations 4] o
Profit or loss after tax 1347 211
Charges in genetal reserves 135 <50
Profit or loss for the year 1212 161
Ohar compratiensive income for the year 6.8 483 80
Tolal comprehensive income for the year 718 LA

Budapest, 13 May 2019

}

C':"_‘\ .--'-s.y..--"
Richard Szabd Eva Tudbucoﬁé Gydngybsy
Chairman - CEO CFO
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3. STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

data i HUF million
Note 322018 32207

Other comprehensive income S=——=—

Other comprehensive esulis nol (o be reclassified to profit or koss (1] il
Changes in fair valie of squity instruments designated at FYOCH o 0
Changes in fair value of financial kabifibes measured at FVTP, 0 0
due it changes in aredil fisks
Cihar ilems o [t
Related laxes 1] 0

Other comprashensive results o be reclassilled to profit of ioss 447 -850
Changes in falr value of eguilty insruments available for sale a0
Changes in tair value of debi instruments availabla for saie 180
Changes in fair value of debl instiuments measuted al FVOCH 6.8 447
cnunin in fair value of loans measurad ot FyOCI L 0

Racipasilication 1o profil or loes o 0
et gain of loss from ssie of debl nstruments measured at
FVOC D
Net gain or loss from sale of available for sale debt Instruments 0

Impact of tranaition from 1AS 38 to IFRS & -

Othar items o 0

Relale: laxes — o f

Cther comprehansive income 402 <80

Budapest, 13 May 2019

f

Richard Szab6 Eva Tucr:g;a Eyﬁngyﬁw

Chairman - CEO CFO
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4. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

dala in MHLIF
Othaer
Share Share Other p Retained
capital premium | reserves m"'m"" e earnings L
Balance at 1. January 2017
according to Hungarian ary &8 362 ] 447 52390 | 40146
Accounting Standards
impact of transition to IFRS o ] (1] 383 -2'210 -1 817
Balance at 1. January 2017
s fing to IFRS arzy &8 362 1] B40 -54 600 | 238320
Profit for the year 0 0 0 0 211 211
Other comprehensise income for ;
4 et 0 0 o 20 1] 80
Ingrease n general reserves 0 o 50 0 -50 o
Increase in share capital i 3138 0 [i] Li] 3138
Dividend paymanis ] a 0 o (1] &)
Total changes 0 3138 50 90 161 3 250
Balance at 31. December 2017 aray 61 500 50 760 -54 439 | 41 588
Impact of transition from LAS 38
1o IFRS 9 a 0 0 46 -B24 -B70
Profit for. the year 1] 1] 1] 1] 1347 1347
Other comprehensive income for
the year ] 0 o 447 0 A&7
Increasme in general reserves a 1] 135 0 <1356 0
Increase in share capital 0 2916 o ] 0 2918
Dhividand paymenis { 1] 0 1] 1] o
Total changes a 2816 135 <483 368 2 046
Balance at 31, December 2018 arar 94 416 185 257 54 051 | 44 534
Budapest, 13 May 2019
e
]
{:— T -
Richard Szabé Eva Tud;isi.!t':né C%'ng}'ﬁsy
Chairman - CEO CFO
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5. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

elada 1 HUF mliion
31.12.2018 31.92.2017
Cash flows from operating activities
Interest ipoome 1184 G450
~ Interest expanse 2131 -1 545
Feas and commmsions recsved 8 MB 7am
Feas and commsions paid -1 208 -1 070
Nal gaing realisad on FYTPL securities -1 0
Dividends meeaived from FVTPL securities a (1]
Net gains realissd on derlvalives T 756
Other operaiing income recaived 1218 1081
Operating expanses pakd =14 Tad <13 464
Income tax paid 497 -385
Cash received from cparaiing activities of dscontineed pperations 0 0
Net changes in rading securities (noease -, decroagse; +) o 0
Met changes in securilies designated at FVTPL (increase. -, B o i
decrease’ +)

_N_ﬂl_l?lm in loans and advances o haﬂm{mma % w_'-.::'_._. i _@_1_24__ _.'IE?_IE_
Humn;.:hmmnnd povances lo cuslomen (Incraase! -, 30611 286
MNet changes in othey inaneial instrumeants (inerease -, decrease +) 52 108
Net changes in offiet non-inancial instruments (increase - ” po
decieasa, +)

Not changes in due 1o banks (increase: +, decroase. <) <7 769 <10 543
Mat mﬁn due (o austomers (increass; +, deciease: - 20232 26 008 |
Net changes in debl securities in issue (Increase +, decrease. -) -BA0 -40
et changes in other financial liabilties (increase: +, decrease. -) 1634 3223
Mel changes in other non-fmancal liablites (mcreass. +, decreass: - -7 a7
Meat changes In FVTPL financial assets [increase; -, dacigase: +) 415 a4
MNet changes In FYTPL financial kabiltes (increass: + decraase; -) -1 38 <1 396
Cash flows from operating activities -5 988 11128
Cauh flows from inveating activities
Acquisfion of investmen! securntles -62 060 G851
Proceeds lrom disposal and maturity of investment securibes 0100 8720
Interest recetved on investment securifiss 128 am
Acquisition of plant, property and equipment and Intanpibie assels -2 583 -1 906
"__Pmmﬁlﬁ from disposal of plant, propery and sguipment including 9 a2
insurance payments and intangible assets —
Acgusstion of assocates and subsidianes 0 A5
Proceeds from disposal of associates and subsidiaties 1] 1]
Ovidends receivad from subsidiarics 35 36
Acguisdion of invastmant proparty o 1]
Praceads from disposal of invesiment pioperty 1058 o
Cash Nows from investing activities 6 888 1389
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deta in HUF milfion
31.12.2018 M.Azz2017
Cash flows fram linancial activitios
Losns recelved ] 0
Redemption of loans. 1] 1]
Interest paid on |oans 1] 0
Subordinated debls received ] L]
Redemption of subordinated dabis 1] -12 300
Interest paid on subordinmted dibis <26 =573
Dividends paid 0 0
Acquisition of own shares a ]
Proceads from disposal of own shares purchased from shameholders 0 ]
Cash recelved from shareholders 2816 3138
Effect of exchange rate changas on cash and cash equivalents 0 0
Cash flows from financial activities 2617 736
Cash flows 3515 2762
Cash and cash eguivalents ot 1. January 58 293 65 531
Cashand cash equivalents at 31. Decamber 61 808 56 2893
_{Emgﬂ in Cash and cash equivalents 3515 2762
Budapest, 13 May 2019
X '
é.f"—\ P, 2
Richard Szabo Eva Tudisémé &ﬁngyﬁsy
Chairman - CEO CFO
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6. NOTES

The notes in this chapter form part of the financial statements.

6.1 General information

Sberbank Magyarorszag Zrt. (the Bank) started operations as Magyarorszagi Volksbank Ltd.
on 27 August 1893, Its subscribed capital upon foundation was HUF 1,000 million and its sole
owner was Osterreichische Volksbanken AG (OVAG). Since 1996 the main shareholder of the
Banrk had been Volksbank International AG (VBI), a subsidiary of OVAG, On 15 February 2012
the full acquisition of VBI was completed and as a result a subsidiary of the Russian Sberbank
bacame the majority shareholder of the Bank, which has been operaling under the name of
Sherbank Europe AG since 5 November 2012, The ultimate parent company of the Bank is
Sberbank of Russia

The new name of the Bank (Sberbank Magyarorszag Zartkorien MOkodo Részvénylarsasag)
is effective from 1 November 2013

General information on the Bank:

Registered office: 1088 Budapest, Rakdczi ut 1-3.
Registration number: 01-10-041720

Tax number. 10776998-2-44

Statistical code; 10776999-6419-114-01
Account number at MNB: 19017004-00201414

Website: www . sberbank hu

Every company under the direct or indirect control of the Bank is involved in the consolidation.
In this Financial Statements Bank consolidates following subsidiaries:

 Participation (%)
Equity Investmant Main activily 31122018 | 31422018 | 31.12.2018
V-DAT KNt Purchasalsale of own properlias T iomoow | 100,00% 100,00%
| East Site Kit Putchasafsale of own properies 100,00% | 100,00% 100,00%
Egrassy 2010 Kn Purchase/sale of own properties - 100,00% | 100,00%
| Karolyl Ingatian 2011 Kt | Purchasefsale of own properties 100,00% | 10000% | 100.00%
EgressymmoKR | Puchaseisale of own properies | - | 10000% | -

The Bank Is authorised to perform the following registered activities:
As per TEAOR (Standard Sector Classification of Business Activities):

- B419'08 Other monetary intermediation - Core activity
- B492'08 Other lending

- B489°'08 Other financial intermediation elsewhere not classified

- B612'08 Security and commodity contracts brokerage

- 661908 Other activities auxiliary to financial services

- 662208 Insurance agent and broker activities

- 662908 Other activities auxiliary to insurance and pension funding

14



Consolidated Finaneil Statements 31 December 2018
Sherbank Hungary Lt datn in HUF million

Activities of the consolidated subsidiaries
As per TEAOR (Standard Sector Classification of Business Activilies):
V-Dat Informatikai Szolgahato és Kereskedelmi Kft.

- 681008 Purchase/sale of own properties (main activity)

- 682008 Rent/lease-out of own and borrowed property, property management
- 261108 Manufacturing of electronic parts

- 4614'08 Agency trade of machinery, vessels and alrcraft

- 4851'08 Wholesale of computer hardware, peripherals and software

465208 Wholesale of electronic and telecommunication equipment and spare
parts
- 466608 Wholesale of other office machinery and egquipmenl
. 4741'08 Retail of computer hardware, peripherals and software
- 4742'08 Retail of lelecommunication products
- 581908 Other publishing activities
- 582108 Publication of computer games
- 5829'08 Publication of other software

- 620108 Computer programming
- 6202'08 IT advisory services
620308 Operating computers
6209'08 Other IT services
6311'08 Data processing, web hosting
631208 Web portal services

7010'08 Business management
702108 PR, communication
7022’08 Business and other management consultancy
7112'08 Engineering activities and related lechnical consultancy
712008 Technical review and analysis
- 749008 Other professional, scientific and technical activities n.e.c
- 7733'08 Office equipment rental (including computers)
- 829908 Activities auxiliary to business servicas n.e.c

- B560'08 Activities supplementing education
- 9511'08 Repair of computer peripherals

East Site Ingatlanforgalmazd és Ingatlanhasznosito Kit.

6810'08 Purchase/sale of own properties (main activity)
6820'08 Rental and operation of own or rented property

Egressy 2010 Kft.

- 681008 Purchase/sale of own properties (main activity)
- 683208 Property management

Karolyi Ingatlan 2011 Kit.

- 681008 Purchase/sale of own properties (main activity)
- 682008 Rental and operation of own or rented property

Egressy Immo Kft.
- 681008 Purchase/sale of own properties (main activity)
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Sberbank Eurcpe AG (Schwarzenberg streel 3. 1010 Vienna Austria) prepares consolidated
linancial statements in accordance with IFRS for the smallest unit ol the Group which includes
Sberbank Magyarorszag Lid. as a subsidiary. Sberbank of Russia (Vaviova street 19. 117997
Moscow, Russia) has 100% of the Sberbank Europe AG shares and prepares the consolidated
financial statements for the largest unit of the Group.

The consolidated annual financial statements of the Bank must be audited. Audil is performed
by Ernsl & Young Kényvvizsgalo Kit, (Vaci at 20. 1132 Budapest, Registration number: 01-09-
267553, Chamber of Hungarian Auditors registration number: 001165).

The (natural) person responsible for the audit: Gergely Szabd (CHA registration number:
0056786),

Person responsible for the Bank's accounting records: Mrs, Eva Gydngydsy Tudisco Finance
Director. (CHA registration number: 005792).

Richard Szabé Chiel Executive Officer and Mrs. Eva Gydngydsy Tudisco Finance Direclor are
authorised to sign jointly the consolidated linancial statements of the Bank.

6.2 Senior execulives

Senior executives of the Bank as al 31 December 2018:

Supernvisory Board mombaers Funetion Compnny
Hans Gerhard Randa chalrman Sberbank Europs AG
Elena Valentinovna Viklova mambar Sberbank Europe AG
Yulia Arsentyeva Vitalievina membar Sharbank Russia
Mantin Frank membGr Sherbank Europe AG
dr. Zoldn Fényi marmber employee delegate
Tibor Bodndr mambar employes delagale
Mambers of the Board of Direclors Function
Richand Szabd chaijmman
Eva Tudisconé Gybngyosy membar
Bence Kalmar memiber
Tamias Fodar member

6.3 Statement of compliance

As at 1 January 2018 the Bank switched form applying Hungarian accounting regulations to
the application of international accounting standards, thus these linancial statements, based
on the option provided by Section 10 (2) of Act C of 2000, have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as announced as a regulation in the official
gazette of the European Union.
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Consolidated subsidiaries continue to prepare their financial siatements according fo
Hungarian accounting standards, During the preparation phase of completion of the
consolidated financial statements, Bank assesses whether information disclosed In the
financial statements of subsidiaries is compliant to the international accounting standards. In
case of any malerial derogation in the consolidated financial stalements Bank adjusts the
figures of the subsidiaries in order to ensure the compliance with international accounting
standards.

As of 1 January 2018 the Bank adopted |IFRS 9. During transition the Bank used the option
provided by the Standard and applies the requirements ol the standard prospectively. As a
resull, reporting-year data and comparative information have been prepared based on different
rules: at the end of the reporting year (2018) figures are presented under IFRS 8, while
comparative information includes data under IAS 39.

6.4 Accounting policies

The Bank prepares its consolidated financial statements applying the same accounting policies
as in the preparation ol the stand-alone financial statements.

Data in these financial statements are in Hungarian forints, which is the functional and
bookkeeping currency of the Bank. Unless otherwise indicated, data disclosed in the financial
statements are presented in Hungarian forints rounded to the nearest million.

The reporting date in the financial statements is 31 December 2018,

When preparing the financial statements and during bookkeeping the Bank assumes that the
going concern principle is met, that is, the Bank intends and is able to maintain its operations
for the foreseeable future, can continue its activity, and a closure of operations or any
significant reduction therein is not expected.

Basic measurement principles

In accordance with the fair presentation principle, the Bank presents the Group's financial
position, financial performance and cash flows fairly. Fair presentation requires the faithful
representation of the effects of iransactions, olher events and conditions in accordance with
the definitions and recognition criteria lor assets, liabilities, income and expenses set out in
IFRSs.

Assels and equity and liabilities are reported in the financial stalements basically at cost or
amortised cost, excepl for financial instruments held for trading, derivatives and avallable-for-
sale assets, which are presented al fair value.

Revaluation of forelgn currency assets and foreign currency liabllities

Foreigh currency assets, liabllities, income and expenses are booked In the currency of the
transaction, but are recognised in the financial statements in HUF.

Foreign currency assets and liabilities are converted to HUF on a daily basis at the middle rate
published by the Bank.

Foreign currency assets and liabilities are measured in the financial statements at the
exchange rate published by MNB and valid on the last day of the year.
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Measurement estimates

As a result of inherant uncertainties in business activities, many items in financial statements
cannol be measured with precision but can only be estimated. Estimation involves |udgements
based on the lales! available information and does nol undermine the reliability of the financial
statements.

The Bank applies accounting estimates when quantifying the following items:
determining doubtful receivables, impairmenl and provisions;
obsolescence of invenlories;

uselul lives, residual values and depreciation of depreciable assets;
calculation of amartised cost;

delermining the fair value ol financial instruments.

An eslimate may need revision if changes occur in the circumstances on which the estimate
was based or as a resull ol new information or more experience.

By its nalure, the revision of an eslimale does nol relate to prior periods and is nol lhe
correction of an error, thus the effect of the change shall be recognised in the period of the
change and fulure periods (prospective recognition), Prospeclive recognition means that the
change Is applied 1o transactions and business even!s from the date of the change in estimate,

Estimating impairmenl and provisions

Information relating to measuring and assessing credil risk are presented In Section 6.11.3
Credit risk.

Eslimaling depreciation

The Bank records depreciation on property, plant and equipment as well as amortisation on
intangible assets from the first day after such are ready for use. The depreciation on property,
plant and equipment and the amortisation on Intangible assels are recognised on a straight-
line basis, taking Into account the expected duration of use and the residual value.

The Bank assumes that the commissioning date and the date assets become available for use
is one and the same, given thal the business model followed by the Bank means the
commissioning of assels is nol precedad by a lengthy stockpiling period.

Intangible assels always have delinite uselul lives. Straight-line rates used considering useful
lives determined individually:

a.) rights and concessions 15%
b.) goodwill 15%
¢.) software max. 25%

d.) other intellectual property max. 25%
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Straight-line rates used for property, plant and equipment:

Land and buildings

Bialdings. parls of buildings, hald by cwn | 2.00%

Invesiment of bulkdngs hald by awn dopending on use, max 10,00%
Imvastment of bulkdngs. rented acaording (o leass contracts (20%)
Plant and othor machinory

Office pssets and ecquipmian 14,50%

Cogylng machines and ealipmon 1iL50%

Othar olfice ogulpmean 14.50%

Telocommunications equipment 14 50%

Administralion and ather (offico) Mings 14,50%

Tools 14.50%

Compulors and |T squipment ma. 20,00%

Socurily equpment 14,50%

Vehicles

Vehsclos | 20,00%

Calculation of amoriised cos!

Amortised cosl is calculated using the effective interest method, which is also used to
determine interest income.

Effective interest rale is the rate that exaclly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset or o the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rale, the Bank shall estimate the expected cash flows by considering all
the contractual terms of the financial instrument but shall not consider the expected credit
losses.

The calculation includes all fees and commissions related to the creation of the deal and paid
or received belween parties to the contract that are an integral parl of the eflective interest
rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

During the calculation the Bank applies the eflective interest rate lo the gross carrying amount

of the financial assels, except for:

- purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets. For these assets the Bank
applies the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cos! of the financial asset
from initial recognition.

- financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, but
subsequently became credit-impaired financial assels. For these financial assets the Bank
applies the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial assels in
subsequent reporting periods.

By applying the effective interest method the Bank identifies the fees that are an integral part
of the financial instrument's effective interest rate. Fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate of a financial instrument include:
origination fees received by the Bank relating to the creation or acquisition of a financial
assel. Such fees include for example compensation for activities such as evaluating the
borrower's financial condition, evaluating and recording guarantees, collateral and other
security arrangements, negotiating the terms of the instrument, preparing and processing
documents and closing the transaction;
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- commitment lees received by the Bank to originale a loan when the loan commitmen is
not measured at lair value through profit or loss and il is probable that the Bank will enter
into a specific lending arrangement. If the commitment expires without the Bank making
the loan, the lee is recognised as income on expiry;
originalion fees paid on issuing financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

These fees are an integral part of generaling an involvement with the resulting financial
instrument.

The Bank distinguishes fees and cosis that are an integral part of the effective interesi rate for
the financial liability from originaticn fees and transaction costs relating to the right to provide
services, such as investmenl management services,

When applying the eflective interest method the Bank generally amortises any fees, points
paid or received, transaction costs and olher premiums or discounts that are included in the
elfective interest rate calculation over the expected life of the financial instrument.

For floating-rate financial assets and floaling-rate financial liabilities, the periodic re-estimation
of cash flows 1o reflect the movements in the market rate of interest alters the effeclive interest
rate.

In same cases the linancial assel is considered credit-impaired al initial recognition because
the credit risk is very high, and in the case of a purchase il is acquired at a deep discount. The
Bank includes the initial expected credit losses in the estimated cash flows when calculating
the credit-adjusted eflective interes! rate for financial assets lhat are considered to be
purchased or originated credit-impaired at initial recognition,

For the Bank, the transactions that do not have a cash llow which can be raliably estimated in
advance are nol included in the amortised cost calculation, i.e. their effective interesl rate is
the same as lhe lransaclion rate, and the amortised cost is the same as the outstanding
contractual ameunt. Such transactions include current account overdralts and revolving loans,
credil lines and guarantees. '

Estimating the fair value of linancial instruments

Fair value is the price thal would be received to sell an assel or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction in the principal (or most advanlageous) market al the measurement date
under currenl market conditions (i.e. an exil price).

The inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value can be categorised into a fair
value hierarchy which includes the following levels:

Level 1 Inputs: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities, An active markel Is a market in which transaclions lor the asset or liability take
place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an angoing
basis.

Level 2 inputs: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the assel or liability, either directly or Indirectly. Such as lor example:
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities In active markets
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets thal are not
active
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other observable inputs:
o Interes| rates and yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals
o implied volatilities
o credit spreads

markel-corroborated inpuls.

Level 3 inputs: Unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs shall reflect the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions
about risk,

Where possible, the Bank uses principal market prices to determine fair value.

Given the Bank's low market share on principal markeis and its relatively low total assets, the
Bank does nol adjust observed prices. The IFRS allow both call prices and bid prices 1o be
used for valuations, so in line with the consolidated accounting policies of its owner the Bank
= uses bid prices for debt securities
# and mid prices in all other instances for valuations.

If there are no observable prices on the principal markets then lo determine the fair value of
receivables from customers and credlt institutions with terms of more than 90 days the Bank
uses the DCF (discounted cash flow) method to estimate fair value with due consideration of
the following:

* The Bank adjusts future cash flows from the Core Banking Syslem so they reflect
estimates of future interest rates. This adjustment appears in the cash flows with the
help of projected (forward and FRA) curves.

« When discounting the Bank uses money-markel reference rates in line with the nature
ol the transaction (for example: BUBOR3M or LIBOR3M).

* The Bank takes liquidity costs into account too by adjusting the discount rate as
appropriate. These are key parts of asset and liability pricing, and can be derived from
market parameters under Level 1 inputs (for example: malerial assel swap spreads).

« When pricing assels (specifically in the case of Ipans), the price has to include
compensation for expected losses stemming from any non-payment by the debtor.
Alongside the cash flows the Bank adjusts the discount curve as well in line with the
expected loss, so the fair value is not distorted.

« The Bank's internal rating system furnishes faithful information on credit risk premiums
in relation to expected credit risks; the adjustment applied is calculaled from the product
of PD x LGD, where the LGD data comprises various collateral levels.

The fair value of receivables from credit institutions with terms of less than 90 days is
determined based on the present value calculated in the Murex system.

If the carrying amount is a good approximation of the fair value (for example, current
receivables and liabilities of no more than 90 days: sight deposits and short-term deposils),
IFRS does not require any fair value measuremenlt or calculation; in these cases the Bank
considers the carrying amount to be the fair value.

The Bank measures financials assets/liabilities on fair value which are: debt securities
(Hungarian government bonds) designated at fair value under fair value option, and held within
a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, loans and advances In the same business model, other (not
consolidated) equity investments and derivatives, The Bank uses the following inputs for the
fair value calculation of these instruments:

17
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Fair value hierarchy 1 (level 1)

The Bank calculates the fair value of the Hungarian govermenl bonds using the directly
observed composilion of quotes ol cantributors on the aclive markel.

Fair value hierarchy 2 {level 2)

The Bank deals with derivatives (swaps, forward, options) anly on the OTC markets,
meaning there Is no directly observable market quotation in this case. However, the fair
value calculation is made with using Input data which are observable on active markets
(yleld curves, volatility surface) discounted cash flow method and option price models
(Black-Scholes, Garman-Kolhasgen).

Fair value hierarchy 3 (level 3)

Only the fair value of Visa Ine. investment can be defined reliably from the other aquity
investments of the Bank: the Bank has .B" series convertible stocks, which can be
converted 1o A" series common slocks on a lixed rale (13 952). The Bank calculates
the fair value of the B" series convertible slocks as the multiplication of the directly
observable market price of the ,A" series common stocks and the fixed conversion
rate.

The lair value of the Bank's remaining other equity investments can not be defined reliably
after the initial recognition, therefore, in accordance with the Accounting Policy of the Bank,
the equity investments are measured on their inilial costs less accumulated impairment after
the initial recognition. In these cases, the fair value difference of the equity investiments is
calculated as a difference betwean the Banks' portion of investment's equity and the historical
cost and recognized as impairment, which Is not directly observable input data. According to
the impairment lests performed al the reporting date and the comparative reporting periods,
there were no indication of impairment so no impairment was recognized for these
investments.

The calculation of the fair value is similar for the non-performing loans which are held within a
business model whose objective is acheived by both collecling contractual cash flows and
salling financial assels. In these cases the past due days of receivables are more than 90
days, therefore the general cash flow method can not be applied because estimated cash flows
are not reliable. The nel carrying value ol these loans equals the gross value of the loans
reduced with accumulated impairment, as a directly non-observable inpul data, thal Bank
considers the realistic fair value of non-performing loans. The impairment movement and its
causes for these loans are disclosed in the impairment mavement table ol chapler 6.6.4,

The classification in the falr value hierarchy may change on account of changing market
conditions, modemised models and the sensitivity of input factors. Il the markel becomes
inactive for instance, the inpul parameters previously observable on the market may become
unobservable parameters. If a new fair value measurement model is applied thal uses several
input factors observable on the market, this can refine the fair value calculation. The impact of
a used input parameter can become significant or insigniticant.

This is why the Bank revises the fair value calculation methodology and hierarchical
classification al the end of each reporting period.
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Principles of presenting financial instruments
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, nostro accounts, the minimum reserve placed with
MNB as well as overnight deposits placed with National Bank of Hungary (MNB) and other
credil institutions and accrued interest thereof.

Initial recognition

The Bank treals all contracts as financial instruments that give rise to a linancial assel lor ane
entity and to a financial liability or an equity instrument for another entity.

The Bank treats all conlracts as equily instruments thal evidence a residual interest for the
Bark in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

The Bank recognises financial instruments in the slatement of financial position when it
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Excepl lor derivatives, the Bank recognises regular way purchase or sale of financial assels
using settlement date accounting, while in the case of derivatives it accounts for the
transactions on the lrade date.

Al initial recognition the Bank measures financial assets and financial liabilities at their fair
value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs thal are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue ol the
financial asset or financial liability. An exception to this are trade receivables that do not have
a significant financing component. These receivables are measured at their transaction price
as defined in IFRS 15.

If the Bank originates a loan that bears an off-market interest rale, and receives an upfrant fee
as compensation, the Bank recognises the loan at its fair value, i.e. net of the lee it recelves.

If it is determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price, the

difference is accounted lor as follows:

- il the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market lor an identical asset or
liability (Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique thal uses only data from
observable markets (Level 2 input). The Bank recognises the dilference belween the fair
value al inftial recognition and the transaction price as a gain or loss,;

- in all other cases the fair value al initial recognition shall be adjusted by the deferred
amount of the difference between the fair value and the transaction price. After initial
recognition, the Bank shall recognise the deferred difference as a gain or loss only to the
extent that it arises from a change in a factor that market participants would take into
account when pricing the asset or liability.

Classification and measurement - business model for managing the financial asset

Based on the business model for managing the financial asset, specified in a resolution by the
Board of Directors, the Bank classifies financial assets upon initial recognition into one of the
following models:
a) business model whose objective is to hold financial assets to collect contractual cash
flows;
b} business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets;
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c) other business models, of which one is a business model, in which the Bank manages
the linancial assets with the objective of realising cash flows through the sale of the
assets.

The business model is determined al a level thal reflects how groups ol financial assets are
managed together to achieve a particular objective. The business model does not depend on
management’s intentions for an individual instrument. Accordingly, this condition is nol an
instrument-by-instrument approach to classification but can be determined on a higher lavel of
aggregation, and more than one business model can be used for managing financial
instruments. The portfolio segmentation of the Bank is decided on by the Board of Directors.

When assessing ils business model, the Bank considers all relevant information that is

awallab!a at the date ol the assessmenl, which includes, but is not limited to:
how the performance of the business madel and the financial assets held within that
business model are evaluated and reported to the Bank's key management personnel;
the risks that alfecl the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within the model), and particularly the method for managing these risks;

- how managers of the business are compensated.

The Bank classilies linancial assets al initial recognition into the lollowing categories based on
the business model for managing the financial assel and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset;

- financial assets measured at amortised cost;

- assels measured al fair value through other comprehensive income;

- assels measured al fair value through profit or loss;

- purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets.

Financial assels are measured by the Bank al amortised cosl, if both of the follewing conditions

are met;

- lhe financial assel is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assels to collect contraclual cash flows;

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets are measured by the Bank at fair value through other comprehensive income,

if bath of the following conditions are met;

- Ihe linancial assel is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets;

- lhe contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Bank examines whether the cash flows of a financial asset are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding by using a decision tree designed for this
purpose (conlractual cash flow test, SPPI test).

Based on the SPPI tesl, il can be decided whether contractual cash flows are consistent with
basic lending arrangemenis.
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Contraclual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount oulstanding are consistent with basic lending arrangements. In a basic lending
arrangement, consideration for the time value of money and credit risk are typically the most
significant elements of interest; however, interest can also include consideration for other basic
lending risks and costs, as well as a profit margin. Contractual terms thal introduce exposure
lo risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows that is unrelated to a basic lending
arrangemenl give rise lo confractual cash llows that are nol solely payments ol principal and
interest on the principal amount putstanding. In this case the Bank measures the financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Of equity instruments, the Bank records other invesiments that do not qualify as related
companies and therefore are nol consolidated are measured af fair value through profit or loss.
However, if at initial recognition it is likely that the fair value of an investment cannol be
measured reliably in the future, then these interests are classified into assets measured at fair
value through comprehensive income upon initial recognition of interests. If the fair value of
such interests cannol be determined reliably after initial recognition, these interests are
recorded in the books at cost less accumulated impairment at measurements after initial

recognition.

According to the principals above the Bank evaluates its other equity investments as lollows:

Equity investmant Valuation method

Fundamania- Lakiskasaza L
aslakarakoaaziar 1 Fair valus throwgh Other Comprahansiva Income

Garantiga Hitelgarancia 2. Fal valua thiough Qther Comprahanzha Incoma

SW.LFT. Fair value through Othor Comprotsongsase Incoma

Visa Ing. Fair vadue throwgh Profil or Loas

The Bank may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial asset as measured ai
fair value through profit or loss when doing so results in more relevant information, because
aither:

- it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and
losses on them on different bases;

- a group of financial assets or financial assets and financial liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or invesiment strategy, and information about the group is provided internally
on that basis to the Bank's key management personnel.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities shall be classified as subsequently measured al amortised cosl, excepl

for:

- financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities include for example
derivative instruments that shall be measured at (air value.

- financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for
derecognition or when the continuing invelvement approach applies.

- financial guarantee contracts and commitments to provide a loan al a below-market
interes! rate. An issuer of such a contract shall subsequently measure it at the higher of
the following two options:

= (he amounl of the loss allowance;
« Ihe amount inltially recognised less the cumulative amount of income.
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The Bank may, al initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial liability as measured al
fair value through profit or loss when doing so resulls in more relevant information, because
either:

- it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognilion inconsistency that

would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and
losses on them on different bases;
a group of financial liabllities or financial assets and financial liabilitlies is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a lair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
managemant or investment strategy, and information about the group is provided internally
on that basis to the key management personnel of the Bank.

Modification of contractual terms for financial instruments

It a transaction is modified because of a customer request, and nol because the customer is
struggling with financial difficulties (performing customer), and the new conditions are
measured al market price, then the modification is deemed markel-driven,

In this case, if the impact of the modification is significant, the old instrument has o be
derecognised and the renegoliated loan trealed as a new Instrument. Il the net effect of the
derecognilion and the new recognition Is not zero, this impact has to be recognised through
profit and loss upon derecognition. The Bank recognises the impact of the derecognition under
Other operating income.

Among other things, the Bank considers the following to be a signilicant modification of
conlract:

- change in debtor

- change In conlract currency

- Increase in loan amount, refinancing

- change in SPPI-critical condition

- significant change in term (at least 100%, bul no less than 2 years)

If the modification does nol count as significant, the instrument is not derecognised; the
maodification gain or loss is accounted lor separately in the nel inlerest income/expense, and it
also adjusts the amortised cost of the instrument. This gain or loss Is subsequently amortised
over the lite of the transaction using the etfective interest method.

Write-off of financial assets
The Bank writes off the amount of unrecoverable receivables against profit or loss.

A receivable Is considered unrecoverable if,
- there is no collateral for it during enforcement;
- it was released in the framework of an agreement;
- there is no collateral for it according to the written statement issued by the liquidator;
- there is no collateral for it based on the proposal for the distribution of assets;
the costs of collection are not in proportion to the amount of the receivable;
the debtor cannol be localed and this is “documented”;
- It cannat be enforced in a court of law;
- it has expired.
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Reclassification

Financial assets may be reclassitied when, and only when, the Bank changes its business
model for managing financial assets. A change in the business model will occur only when the
Bank either begins or ceases to perform an activity thal is significant to ils operations (e.g.: a
business line), The following for example are not changes in business model: a change in
intention relaled to paricular linancial assets or the temporary disappearance ol a particular
markat for financial assets.

Reclassification shall be applied prospectively from the reclassification date. This means thal
any previously recognised gains, losses or interest shall not be restated.

Financial liabilities may not be reclassified.

Financial assels pledged as collateral

Under financial assets used as collateral, the Bank discloses cash placed at other banks lo
cover losses from derivative lransactions as well as securities and SME loans used lo cover
FGS refinancing sources.

The Bank retained all the risks and rewards related to ownership of the financial assels used
as collateral, so these assets remain part of the Bank's balance sheel. Their presentation is
based on the accounting policies of cash and securities.

Accounting policies for comparative data

Before 1 January 2018 IAS 39 was in force, therefore comparative dala included in the financial
statements are presented under IAS 39, whereby classification and measurement rules are as
follows.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories:

- loans and receivables

- financial assets held to malurity

- available-for-sale financial assels

- [linancial assets measured al fair value through profit or loss

i i men far i

The Bank classifies into this category the financial instruments with an active market which are
acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term or
short-term profit-taking.

The evidence of trading is the turnover of the financial assets in the portfolio and the average
holding period.

Changes in the fair value of financial instruments held for trading are recognised within Net
trading income/expense. Financial instruments held for trading include government bonds,
shares, investment units, non-hedge forward and interest rate swap transactions.
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Loans and recelvables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative linancial asseis with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an aclive market. The assels are recognised at fair value and are
measured subsequently at amortised cost. The calculation of amortised cost is the same as
described above. Credits granted, interbank deposits, other financial receivables shall be
classilied into this category.

i ri

Financial assels held to maturity are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity that the Bank has the positive intention and ability 1o hold to
malurity. These assels are recorded in the books at lair value and are measured subsequently
at amortised cost. During the term of the instrument the Bank regularly revises whether the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity still exist, If the initially valid conditions cease
to exisl, the assets are reclassified lo available-for-sale financlal assets and the Bank may not
use the held-lo-maturity category lor two subsequent years. Reclassification from held-1o-
maturity financial assets is not permitled,

-lor-sale linancial

Available-for-sale financial assels are those non-derivalive linancial assets that are designated
as available for sale or are not classilied into any of the above calegories. This category mainly
includes government and other securities.

Available-for-sale linancial assets are measured both initially and subsequently at fair value,
excepl for unguoted equity instruments, which are measured al cost, as their lair value canno!
be measured reliably.

During the subsequent measurement of debt instruments, the related interest income is
recognised through profit or loss under Interest income using the effective interest method.

Exchange differences relaled lo debl instruments denominated in foreign currency are
recognised in profit or loss. Dividend income on equity instruments Is accounted for under
Dividend income in profit or less. Impairment is recognised under Impairment in profit or loss.
Other changes in the lair value are accounted for through other comprehensive income.

Investments

Investments include some non-controlling interests held for business purposes which have
been classified into the available-for-sale category.

Interest income and interest expense on derivative transactions

For derivative transactions the Bank presents the related interesl income and interest expense

broken down by the transaction objective:

- lor derivatives in the frading book, the related interest Income and interest expense are
recognised In the Net trading income/expense;

= lor transactions in the banking book, the related interest income and interest expensa form
part of the net interest income/expense.
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Accounting for finance and operating leases

Under IAS 17 a lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee in return for
a payment or series of payments the right to use an assel for an agreed period of time.

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an assel, irespective of the form of the contract. An operating lease is a lease
other than a finance lease.

A lease can be a finance lease if

- the lease translers ownership of the asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term;

- the lessee has the option to purchase the asset at a price that is expected 1o be sufficiently
lower than the fair value at the date the option becomes exercisable for it to be reasonably
certain, al the inceplion of the lease, that the option will be exercised,

- the lease term is for the major part of the economic life of the asset even if title is not
transferred;

- at the inception of the lease the present value of the minimum lease payments amounts to
al least substantially all of the fair value of the leased assel; and

- the leased assets are of such a specialised nature that only the lessee can use them
without major modifications.

The Bank treals assets obtained under finance lease as il they were own assels: they are
recorded at cost and are amortised over their useful lives.

The amount of future lease liabililies is recorded as lease liabllity when the asset is capitalised.
The principal portion of lease payments made during the term reduces this liability, while the
interest portion is accounted for under inleres! paid.

Lease payments under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Bank does not lease out assets as pari of its normal course of business.

Accounting for government grants

Government grants are lransfers ol resources to an entity in return for past or future
compliance with certain conditions.

In accordance with the provisions of IAS 20, the Bank recognises government grants only if
there is reasonable assurance that it will comply with the conditions attaching to them and the
grants will be received. Receipt ol a grant does not of itself provide conclusive evidence,
especially if compliance with the conditions is checked subsequently.

In accordance with the provisions of IAS 20, the Bank treats the benefit of a government loan
al a below-market rate of interest as a government grant.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Bank recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate,

Government grants related to assets, including non-monelary grants at fair value, are
presented in the balance sheet as deferred income and nol by deducting the grant in arriving
at the carrying amoun! of the asset.
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Government grants related o income are presented in the same profit or loss category that
includes the expenses for which the grants are intended to compensale,

The Bank accounts lor government grants for the following items:
- MNB interest rate swaps conditional on lending activity (HIRS)
Preferential deposits at the MNB:

In contrast to the above, the Bank accounts lor its HUF monetary palicy interest rate swaps
with the MNB (MIRS) under IFRS 9 using the practice that has developed in the Hungarian
banking sector based on the opinion of the Chamber of Hungarian Auditors and as approved
by the MNB as the supervisory authority; here the government grant Is not separated during
the presentation, and its impact on fair value is immediately recognised through profit or loss
as the day-one gain or loss.

Accounting for hedges

The Bank doss nol apply hedge accounting. Nevertheless, lor interes! haedging purposes the
Bank may designate certain specified financial instruments as at fair value through profit or
loss.

Fair value option

Under IFRS 9 an entity may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial assel as
measured at fair value through prolit or loss if deing so eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring assels
or liabilities on diflerent bases. The application ol the fair value option shall resull in the
financial slatements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of
transactions on the entity's linancial position, linancial performance and cash flows, Tha fair
value option may be applied lor example when an entity has financial assets thal share a risk,
such as inlerest rate risk, and thal gives rise to opposite changes in fair value that tend to offsel
each other. In such cases the entity may measure the asset that otherwise is measured at
amortised cos| al fair value.

The Bank chose 1o apply the fair value option for disclosure ol Hungarian treasury bond
portfolio {amounts to 10 billion HUF at face value) whose interest rate risk is hedged by interest
rale swap transactions concluded in the frame of HIRS (MNB Market-Based Lending Scheme).

Treatment of events after the reporting period

Events after the reporiing period are events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur between
the reporiing datle and the dale when the financial slatements are authorised lor issue.

The amounts included in the financial statements shall be adjusted for events that provide
evidence of conditions that existed al the reporting date,

Such events include for example the receipt of informalion after the reporting date indicating
that an asset was impaired at the reporting date.

If after the reporting date the management of the Bank decides lo liquidate the entity or 1o
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so, the linancial statements may not
be prepared using the going concem basis of accounting. This lact must be disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements.
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The amounts recognised in the financial staterments shall not be adjusted to reflect those
evenls that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date. However, additional
disclosure may be necessary in the notes to the financial statements.

Such evenl is for example a decline in the market value of investments after the reporting date.

Dividends approved after the reporting period shall be treated as a non-adjusting event, thus
these shall not be recognised as a liabllity al the reporting date. If dividends are declared before
the financial statements are authorised for issue, this fact shall be disclosed in the notes.

Rules relating to corrections of accounting errors

Financial statements do not comply with IFRSs if
- they contain either material errors
or immaterial errors made intentionally.

The Bank considers an error material, if its aggregate amount together with any other errars
exceeds 2% of the balance sheet total, or HUF 1 million, if such 2% of the balance sheet total
does not reach HUF 1 million.

Current period errars discovered in that period are corrected in the current period.

Significant errors made in financial statements for previous years are corrected by
retrospective restatement in the first set of flinancial statements after the discovery of the errors.

During retrospective restalement comparative amounts for the prior period(s) presented in
which the error occurred shall be restated. If the error occurred belore the earliest prior period
presented, the opening balances for the earliest prior period presented shall be restated.

An exception to this is when retrospective restalement is impracticable; in this case opening
balances shall be stated for the earlies! period for which it is practicable (which may be the
current periad).

The effect of insignificant errors on assets, liabilities and equity shall be corrected in the current
period. Opening balances are not restated. The effect of insignificant errors on prior-year profit
or loss is accounted for through current-year profit or loss.

Changes in accounting policies

As described in Section 6.2 Statement of compliance, as of 1 January 2018 the Bank changed
its accounting policies and replaced the rules in accordance with the Hungarian Act on
Accounting applied previously with the rules of International Financial Reparting Standards
which were applied during the financial year.

As of 1 January 2018 the Bank adopted IFRS 8 instead of IAS 39. The impact of transition
from IAS 39 to IFRS 9 on the assets, liabilities, equity and comprehensive income of the Bank
is presented in chapter 6.5 Firsl-time adoption of IFRS.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers is effective from 1 January 2018 and
replaces IAS 18 Revenue and IAS 11 Construction Contracts as well as related interpretations.
Under the new standard the Bank uses a five-step model 1o determine when and how much
revenue shall be recognised.

Accounting for interest, fee and commission income for banking services is within the scope
of IFRS 9. I a contract with a customer also contains elemenis within the scope of IFRS 9, the
Bank separates the elements within the scope of IFRS 9 and applies the provisions of IFRS
15 only to the remaining elements.
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The transition did not have any impact, basically because the majority of the Bank's income
is not within the scope of IFRS 15. Accounting for revenue within the scope of IFRS 15, as
they do not contain a significant financing component, remains unchanged.

Every company under the direct or indireclt control of the Bank is involved in the consolidation.

Consolidation process

The Bank involves every subsidiary in the consolidation over which il has control, namely it
has all the following:

- power over the subsidiary
The Bank has power over a subsidiary when it has existing rights to direct the relevant
activities of the subsidiary.

exposure, or nights, to variable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary
The Bank is exposed o variable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary when its
returns have the potential to vary as a result ol the subsidiary's performance.

- the ability to use its power over the subsidiary to alfect the amount of the Bank's return

The Bank considers all facts and circumstances when assessing whether it controls a
subsidiary. Il facts and circumstances indicale there are changes 1o these glemenis of control,
the Bank reassesses whether it controls a subsidiary.

Recognition and valuation of assets and liabllities of consolidated companies are based on the
methods applied al the parent company.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are based on the stand-alone financial
stalemenls of the Bank and ils consolidated subsidiaries

The Bank has started to apply international accounting standards from 1 January 2018, while
consolidated subsidiaries continue lo prepare their financial statlements according to
Hungarian accounting standards. During the preparation phase of completion of the
consolidated financial statements, Bank assesses whether information disclosed in the
financial statements ol subsidiaries is compliant 1o the international accounting standards. In
case of any material derogation in the consolidated financial statements Bank adjusts the
figures of the subsidiaries in order to ensure the compliance with international accounting
standards,

In 2017, a new subsidiary was acquired by the Bank, Egressy Immo Kft, whose solely owner
is the Bank. Similar to previous reporting years, companies owned by the Bank with 100%
share are fully consolidated while Egressy Immo Kit's profit or loss for year Is taken into
accoun! in the consolidated financial statements for the period starts from 14 June 2017, the
purchase date of the company.

In 2017 the Bank as owner decided to dissolve two subsidiaries (Egressy 2010 Kit. and
Egressy Immo Kit.) through voluntary liquidation. The voluntary liquidation procedure was
completed in 2018, therefore their profit or loss for the perlod ends on 30 June 2018 is taken
inte account in the consolidated financial statements.

All intra-group receivables, liabilities, income and expenses are eliminated In full on
consolidation. Profits and losses relating to transactions between members of the Group are
also eliminated in the consolidation preccess,
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Standards issued by IASB and adopted by the European Union not yet effective, and
their expected effect

IFRS 16 Leases

Due lo future application of IFRS 16 Leases effective from 1 January 2019 the Bank
supplemented its accounting policies as follows:

the Bank recognises the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained eamnings at the date of initial application in
the 20189 financial statements, and it does not recognise comparative information;

- the Bank only applies the slandard to contracts existing on the date of transition that were
previously identified as leases applying IAS 17 Leases and IFRIC 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement conlains a Lease;

- the Bank does not apply the standard lo

= intangible assets,

» |eases with a lease term less than 12 months, and

* |eases lor which the underlying assel is of low value. The Bank sets the threshold
for low-value assets in the context of this standard at EUR 4,000.

- lor short-term leases and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, the Bank
recognises the lease payments associated with the leases as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
lor leases previously classed as operating leases under IAS 17, as of the date of Initial
application the right-of-use asset is measured al an amount equal to the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating lo thal lease
recognised in the statement of financial position immediately before the date of initial
application;

- at initial application of the standard the Bank does not make such adjustment for leases
for which the underlying asset is of low value;

- the Bank applies the rules relating to short-term leases to operaling leases for which the
lease term ends within 12 months of the date of initial application;

- lor operating leases the Bank excludes initial direct costs from the measurement of the
right-of-use asset at the date of initial application; and

- it uses hindsight in determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

- The Bank applies a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics
(such as leases with a similar remaining lease term for a similar class of underlying asset
in a similar economic environment);

- for vehicle leases the Bank uses the inlerest rate implicit in the lease, while for property
lease contracts, considering that determining the market value of leased parts of property
would cause unnecessary costs and effort to the Bank, it uses the lessee's incremental
borrowing rate.

- the Bank does not consider non-reclaimable VAT part of the lease liability and the right-
of-use asset.

As a result of ransitioning from IAS 17 to IFRS 16, the Bank's balance sheel changes as
follows from 1 January 2019 in relation to property rental contracts previously treated as
operating leases:

Changos in assats
Righl of use assols a 3 538
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F-ti!mngu-a in Relaimend Earndngs
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a. Right ol use asset and lease liability
The Bank records the lease liability in its books at the discounted present value of future
lease payments, while right of use assets are determined al the same value as the lease
liability.
The Bank does nol consider non-reclaimable VAT to be part of the lease liability and the
right of use assel.

b. Adjusiment lo accrued rental fee discount
Prior to 2019, property-related rental lees were recognigsed under IAS 17 in such a manner
that all the discounts received during the lease term were accounted for on a straighi-line
basis in profit or loss over the term of the contracl, regardiess of which period’s rental fee
the discount was taken into accounl,

During the transition, the discounted present value of future lease payments was included
under liabilities. The discount claimed in previous periods but not accounted for in profit or
loss (accrued) was recognised by the Bank in retained earmings on transition,

For leased vehicles, the transition broughl a change lo the accounting methodology in that the
assels previously recorded as leased assets will be recognised from 2019 onwards as right of
use assels.

Following the introduction of IFRS 16, the amount of booked rental fees in 2019 is likely to fall
by HUF 826 million, while depreciation is set to increase by HUF 598 million and the interest
expense on the lease by HUF 112 million.

The VAT on the rental fees is expected 1o be HUF 163 million, which the Bank immedialely
recognises under other expensas when il arises.

IFRS 17 Insurance Conlracls

IFRS 17 Insurance Conlracts issued in May 2017 and effective from 1 January 2021 regulates
accounting for and recognising insurance and re-insurance contracts.

Considering that the Bank does nol provide insurance services, the introduction of the new
standard has no effec! on the financial statements and bookkeeping of the Bank.

FR ncerlainly over Income Tax Treatmen
The interpretation was published on 7 June 2017 and is effective from 1 January 2019.

The interpretation clarifies how the requirements of IAS 12 relating to recognition and
measurement shall be applied when Income tax treatments Involve uncertainty.

Its effect is no! expecled to be significant on the Bank's financial stalements.
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Amendment to IFRS 9: Prepaymenl Fealures wilh Negative Compensation
The amendment was published on 12 October 2017 and is effective from 1 January 2018.

The amendments are aimed at clarifying the classification ol certain prepayable financial
assels in connection with the application of IFRS 8.

Its effect Is not expected lo be significant on the Bank's financial slatements.

ndmen el adopted by the European Union

- Amendment to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joinl Ventures
effective from 1 January 2019
- Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benelils
effective from 1 January 2019
- Amendments to the Framework
effective from 1 January 2020
- Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations
effective from 1 January 2020
- Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8, Definition of Material
effective from 1 January 2020

The Bank plans to apply the above amendments after they are adopted by the EU.

The Bank's IT systems supporting bookkeeping processes

The Bank's books are kept in a integrated core banking system (MIDAS) recording loans and
deposits with related sub-ledgers, running on an AS/400 server:

Clavis — securities

Spectrum — derivatives, MM transactions

SAP F| — customers, suppliers, property, plant and equipment records, mixed accounlting
ABC Card managemenl - bankcards

Appello — collateral, guarantees, letters of credit

These sub-ledger systems — with the exception of Appello — provide electronic ledger postings
on a daily basis to the MIDAS general ledger via the GPSI interface as part of the daily close;
Appello prepares its bookkeeping file once a month, at the end of the reporting month.

Purchased and issued securities are recorded in the Clavis Securities settlement and
registration programme, which posts electronically to MIDAS.

Derivative and money-market transactions are settled, recorded and booked in the Spectrum
registralion and bookkeeping system, which sends eleclronic postings on a daily basis lo
MIDAS.

Deposit, loan and interbank transactions as well as account-management bookkeeping take
place in MIDAS.

Petly cash items related to cash transactions are also booked in the integrated MIDAS system,
thereby ensuring that cash balances recorded by denomination in the sub-ledgers tally with
the balance of petty cash accounts in the general ledger.

Given that MIDAS only records the contractual transactions and balances of transactions, the
Bank uses an application called IFRS Tool lo calculate effective interest rates and the
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corresponding amorlised cosls; as part of lhe closing procedure it calculales the necessary
adjustmenis once a month, on the second day after the end of the month, before sending them
to the MIDAS general ledger through the GPSI interface.

Bankcard settlements take place via the Card booking card management system, which
automatically prepares GPSI postings to MIDAS every day.

The Integrated SAP application facilitates the settiement of operating costs and income arising
during non-banking business, and the booking of related accruals/delerrals,

GL items for payroll settlements are posted to SAP by the external sub-ledger payroll system
operated by the HR Department on the last working day of the reporting month (the sub-ledger
payroll system used is NexonBér, owned by NEXON Kit.).

SAP compiles the payment liles for the payment ol trade payable Invoices and tax liabllities,
eic,, and connects — via an interface ~ to the MIDAS GIRO module.

The general ledger data of business events booked in SAP are posted to MIDAS - via the
GPSI| interface — during the daily GL close.

Following the daily close, dala is transferred from MIDAS to the data warehouse (DWH), from
which a full general ledger statement along with other sub-ledger transactions and data can
be retrieved using Cognos.

6.5 First-time adoption of IFRS

As from 1 January 2018 and based on Section /A (2) b) of the Hungarian Act on Accounting
the Bank prepares its annual financial statements in accordance wilh IFRSs instead of
Hungarian accounting rules, taking Section 9/A (4) of the Act into account, which sets forth thal
the provisions of the Hungarian Act on Accounting shall be applied to matters not regulated by
IFRSs.

Rules relating to first-lime adoption of IFRSs are set forth in paragraph D16 of IFRS 1 and
based on paragraph a), if a subsidiary becomes a lirst-time adopter later than its parent, and
consequently it applies international accounting rules in the preparation of its separate financial
slatements later than in the case ol the consolidated financial statements, it may measure iis
assels and liabilities (excep! for adjustments due lo consolidation) as in the consolidated
financial statements.

The Bank applies the exemplion set forth in IFRS 1 D16 a) for the comparalive information
included in these financial statements because the Bank's parent company, Sberbank Europe
AG (formerly known as Volksbank International AG) acquired Magyarorszagi Volksbank RL
(currently Sberbank Magyarorszag Zrl.) on 8 July 2002, while the lransition to IFRS standards
took place on 1 January 2003. So Magyarorszagi Volksbank R1. was also included in the first
consolidated financial statements prepared under IFRS.

Consequently, the Bank may nol make use of the other exemptions permitted by IFRS 1
because these were applied by its parent company on transition to IFRS.

In the Bank's case, the first-time adoption of IFRS coincides with the first-time adoption of IFRS
9 Financial Instruments issued by the IASB in July 2014 and adopted by the European Union
in November 2016.

For the first-time adoption of IFRS 9 the Bank opted for the following simplification: IFRS 9
prescribes the retrospective application of rules on derecognition, recognition and modification,
However, the Bank only applies these rules relrospectively for retall morlgage loans converted
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into Hungarian forints. The reason for this is thal only in these cases does the Bank have the
historical information required for the calculations without unnecessary cosl or efforl,

During the continued application of IFRS 9, if a financial asset is derecognised under market
conditions, the Bank deems the fair value al initial recognition of the new assel lo be
recognised to be the amount disbursed, given that the disbursement took place under market
conditions.

The Bank considers all financial assels to be credit-impaired il they were originated via the

madlﬂr.:alinn of some financial asset where
the customer affected by the contract modification is in default, and

- for economic or contractual reasons refating to the custormer's financial difficulty, the Bank
grants a concession to the customer that it would not otherwise consider (forbearance
contract modification), and

- the contract modification qualilies as a significant modification, meaning the financial asset
prior to the modilication is derecognised.

The tables below present the impact of transition to IFRS on the balance sheet of the Group:

Changes in Olhar Comprabansive Ingomg atzaomy 01.001.2017
Valuation reserve according lo Hunganan accounting standards 327 aay
Muodification to value of AFS securllies d a424 a3
Total adjustmants 424 383
Vakintion reserve according 1o [FRS 750 B840
Ghanges in Retained Eamings ariz2.am7 a.ot2m7
Aatained Eamings according to Hungarian accounting standards -51 809 572 340
Amartisation of lees related to loans n 193 =250
fnlfkal falr value dileronce ol FGS lbans I & 163
Modification ol suspengad mieresl [ 2783 3144
Modilication to value ol AFS securties d az4 <3493
Madilicalion ol impairmant " -4 436 -4 B4
Modification of provisions [-] -481 -1492
Modification to value of devivatives | <27 A4
Sale of VISA Europe interest 0 52 ]
Metting ol issued bonds repurchased h 139 141
Finance lsases i -1 -6
Oiher adjusimisnis A4 40
Tolal adjusimants -2 530 2210
RAetained Eamings according to IFRS -54 439 54 B0
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Changas i assals AR - L 01.01.2017
Angols according fo Hungarian accounting standande 354 660G a6t 106
Amarilsation ol foas rolatod to kans a 351 1 1)
Initial fak vahie difference of FGS Ipans b 47 -1 66
Moditiaation of suspended interest c 2793 3144
Medifiaation of mpaitmen [0 A 435 A [14
Modkboation o value of dorvatives i & 12
Sale of VIBA Europe Iniores] P s2| 62
Metting of issued bonds ropurchased h 2072 2 040
Finance leases i 1 g2
Ofhar adpusiments -18 42
Total sdjsimants -4 94 <5 Al
Assats aooording lo IFRS 349 672 365 BEE
Ohanges in latditles a.22m7 (11.01.2017
Linbilses acoording 1o Hungaran accounting stindards a1 021 320879
Amordisaion of fees selsled o bans a ~16R -Gl
Ininal fair value dilterence ol FGS loans b -1 0BY 1723
Maddicalon fo vilue of dervnlvas 1 a2 23
Madcition of proviions " | 192
MNatling ol ssuet bonds mpummd_ h -2 ‘3!1 E T:IEI-'
Finanoo loasus i 42 BH
Othar adjusiments 24 a3
"T-n_h;l';d]um:nu - - Ea7 -3 642
Linblithss scording to IFRS 308 DB4 J17 aar

Transition differences
a. Amortisation of fees related to loans

Under Hungarian accounting rules the Bank recorded a part of financial assets (loans,
bonds held to maturity) at cost, However, under IFRS these assets shall be recorded al
amortised cosl. The Bank calculates amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The calculation includes all lees and points paid or received between parties to the contract
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other
premiums or discounts. The calculation is described in detail in Section 6.4 Accounting

policies.

. Initial fair value difference of FGS loans

In the case of the funds received from the MNB's Funding for Growth Scheme (FGS) and
the low-interest loans disbursed 1o customers from these funds, the Bank recognises an
initial tair value difference in line with IFRS provisions, which modifies the initial recognition
value of both the loans and their sources.

. Modification of suspended interest

According to Hungarian accounting rules, the amount of unreceived Interest and interast-
lype commissions due for the financial year on a pro rata lemporis basis and payable until
the balance sheel preparation date, along with the amount of interest and interest-type
commissions due for the financial year on a pro rata lemporis basis but not payable by the
balance sheet preparation date, have to be recognised as suspended on the reporting date
if the underlying recelvable qualifies as a non-performing exposure.

34



Consolidated Financial Statements 31, December 2018
Sherbank Hungary Lic. dats in HUF million

In the financial statements prepared under IFRS rules, however, the Bank always
recognises the Interes! income calculated using the effective interest rate, i.e. no interest
is made suspended.

d. Moditication to value ol AFS securities

The value of AFS securities changed for two reasons during transition:

o Under Hungarian accounting rules, the fair value difterence of AFS securities only
has to be recognised in the revaluation reserve if it is positive. Any negative
revaluation difference musl be accounted for in profit or loss. By contrast, under
IFRS the revaluation difference always has to be recognised in the revaluation
reserve. Consequently, on transition the negalive revaluation difference was
transferred to the revaluation reserve from prolit or loss.

o The difference between the nominal value and the cost (premium) is recognised in
profit or loss upon sale or maturity according to Hungarian accounting rules. Under
IFRS, this difference is accounted for systematically in profit or loss over the term,
and in the balance sheet it modilies the carrying amount of the security.

e. Modification of impairment, provisions

Under Hungarian accounting rules, impairment must be equal lo the difference (loss)
between the carrying amount of the receivable and the amount expected 1o be recovered,
if this difference is permanent and significant. So for performing loans the Bank did not
apply impairment to cover lor expected losses,

Under IFRS, however, impairment is also charged on performing loans. Section 6.11.3
Risk management policies provides details about the recording of impairment.

. Madilication to value of darivatives

In the financial statements prepared under Hungarian accounting standards, fair value Is
calculated using market variables.
In line with IFRS provisions, the Bank also uses potential luture losses from counterparty
risk in addition to market variables.

g. Sale of VISA Europe interest

During 2016 the Bank sold its interest in VISA Europe. Part of the purchase price during
the sale was an amount payable in 2019, which the Bank recognises in the IFRS financial
slatements as a financial asset (receivable).

h. Nelling of issued bonds repurchased

Under Hungarian accounting rules the repurchased portions of issued bonds are
recognised under assets. Under IFRS, however, the repurchased part and the value of the
issued bond mus! be recognised on a consolidated (net) basis.

The difference between the nominal value and the repurchase value is recognised by the
Bank in profit or loss on repurchase.

. Finance leases

The Bank recognises vehicle contracts as finance leases, as they comply with the finance
lease definition set forth in IAS 17.
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Impact ol transition to IFRS on Cash flows:
Value
acearding Lo Valup
Hungarian Wodification | acoording to
mccounting iFRS
sinndards
Cagh flows from oporating aclivities
Inferes| income 9 448 51 8489
Inibioreesd X -1 B5F i2 -1 545
Fees and commissions reconvod 8132 241 7 am
Foes and commissions paid -1 248 178 1070
Mot galng realmed on FYTPL securilles a (i 0
Diividendn rocolvod lrom FVTPL seourition 1] 1] 1]
Nel gains realized on dodvalives ThE a 5B
Othar ppeling come meeves 1091 0 10491
Oparuling sxpenses pad 13 Bag aus 13 404
| Incame tax paid o -385 -an5
Cazh recelvad rom operaling acthilies of disceninuesd 0 0 0
 operations =
Mnmmuﬁmmlmm , ncronge: +) o 1] [i]
Net changes in rocirim designaged al FY 101, [inerean; - o 0 o
docrsase: 1)
Hntﬂwh Iesrid and advancos o banks (incrmasn; -

g ) 17 287 «3 965 13322
mwu:-‘memlumwumm & 286 0 8206
Net ehanges. in olher Brancial msbumonts (inoroase; -, 105 o 105
docrease. +)

[ Net changes in other non-linancial Instiuments (Incroase -, 437 o 4a7
doctease: )
Mot changes in dee (o banks (incroasn: -, decroase; <) <19 543 o <16 543
Net changes in duo lo customers (incraase: + docreass: -) 26 008 0 26 098
Hﬂnﬂmmindﬂnmum-iniwu{mm: ¥, a 40 40
Mt mmu . i ather lnancial labites ()
H o MCTBase: +, F
-3 223 0 a &23

Not nhunam inaihies non-finanmial knbibis (ingroaso: », a7 o a7
| decroaze! -
Mot nhmum in FVTPL fininaial assets (inonsase: -,
"Net changes In FVTPL inunaial Nabiliies (neronse; 1, 1308 o Ve
| docrsago. o) :
Cash flows rom opermting soiivities 1515 -4 DS 11128
Cash flows from Investing salivities
_A_nmisimnl investment securllbes 65691 40 -G 851
Prooeeds from disposal and matunty of inestment

i 8720 o 8720
Inderael recetved an imesiment seouribiss Bai 0 ]
Acquimition of plant, proparty and equipmant snd intangdilo -1908 0 .1 908
Prmoceads from disposal of plant, plopatty and aguipmsnl 228 0 aam
Inchsding [nsurance paymants and intangble assets
Acxuisition of assecknles and subsidinries A5 0 -Af
Praceeds from disposal of nssociales and subs|diries 0 0 1]
Dividerets recatved from subsidiares a6 0 K7
Acquisition af investmont propoy '] 0 a
Proceeds from disposnl of imvesiment proparty 1] 1] i
Cash flows from investing activities 1028 40 1368
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Cash flows from flinancial activitios 0

Loans received 1] 0 ]
Aedemplion ol [oans ] i i
Interes! paid on (oans 0 0 i
Subordinatioo detis raceived 0 0 i
Fesemplion of subordinatad dabis 12 300 o -12.300
Interest pand on subordinaled dobin 73 a 5673
Dividonda pald i 0 i}
Acouisiion of own shares 0 0 ]
Proceads from disposal of own shares purchased fom o 0 0
| shinrahioldars

Canh recoived from sharehokders 3138 o 3138
E::m ol oxchange mte changes on cash and cash 0 0 b
Cash flows lrom linancial activilies -8 735 0 <8 Fa5
Cash flows 6 727 -3 965 2762
Cash and cash squivalents at 1. January 27 343 26 1848 55 531
| Gash and cash equvalonts al 31, Decomber 34 068 24 724 &8 290
Changes in Gash and cash equivalonts 6727 -3 8BS 2 762

The tables below present the impact of transition from I1AS 39 to IFRS 9 on the assels, liabilities,
equity and comprehensive income of the Group:

Changes in Olhor Comprohensive Incoma
Opaning balance according o IAS 38 ]
Impaitment of AFS trmanury boncds Ak
Reciassification of equily invesiments s} a2
45

Tar

Total adiusimants
Oponing balance according to IFRS 9

Changas in Ritalned Eamings
Opening bafance according 1o IAS 39 -54 438
Impaiement ol AFS treamsary boncy b 46
Impairment of HTM treagury bands b -1
Impairment lor loans b <2 005
Impaizmant lor nosino accounis b -167
Impairmant fof loans to banks b <66
Impairment for marngin call aocotnis b -4
Impairment for ather en-balance ilems b 40
Adjustments 1o loans’ groas value n 1228
Pravision lor off-balznce exposures b 261
RAeclassification of aquily nvestmpniz o a2
Othor adustmonts 33
Total adjstments -B24
Opaning balance according to IFRS 9 -55 263
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Chanpgas in assels
Opsining balanoe necording 1o AS 30 248 57
i ___In'lpnlnnnnl ol HTM breasury boncls ] -1
Impairment lor [oans b 2008
limpalrman) lar nastro accounts I -167
Impairmanl lor [gans (o banks bz -B6
Impairmant for margin call socodk; b -4
Impairment lor ciiver on-balance =ms ] -0
Adfiustmanis Ig_ll:um gross value a 1 209
Oher adjustments - 53
Tolal adjustments -1 151
Oipaning balance acoording o (FRS 8 40 520
Changes in Kabilities
Opening balance according 10 W45 39 304 a2
Prowvdgon or oli-balanos oxposunes b Eﬂ'n
Other adjustments 19
Tolal adjestments 280
Oypening Balance acconding 1o IFRS 6 308 363

Transition diffarences

a, Medification to gross value of loans

IFRS 9 introduced the financial-assel category of purchased or originated credii-impaired
financial assets. In this category the Bank classified HUF-converted loans in defaull at the
time of their conversion, since these loans were modified to such an extent during their
conversion lo forints that resulted in the derecognition of the existing loans and the
recognition of new credit-impaired loans.

The carrying amount of the newly recognised credit-impaired loans was calculated
differantly by Ihe Bank than lhe procedure used lor slandard loans: instead of the
contractual cash flows, the actual cash flows expected from the transaction — after the
conslderation ol losses — were taken into account, calculating a credit-adjusted effective
interast rate. This changed the gross carrying amount of the loans in question, and on
transition the Bank accounted for the difference as a one-off impact,

. Maodification of impairment and provisioning

IFRS 9 altered the methodology for calculating impairment and provisions. 1AS 39 used
incurred loss as the basis for impairment, but the new standard focuses on expected loss.
The standard prescribes that impairment must be recorded from when the financial asset
is recognised. This expanded the scope of assels that the Bank impairs, and increased the
amount of impairment as well.

Reclassification of fair value of interests

Under IFRS 9 all interests must be measured at fair value through profit or loss. The
standard does enable interests lo be designaled al lair value through other comprehensive
income if they are nol held for sale, bul the Bank did nol lake advantage of this opportunity.
Consequently, the fair value change of interests previously in the held-lor-sale calegory
had o be lransterred Irom other comprehensive income lo relained earmings,
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6.6 Notes to the Balance Sheet
6.6.1. Cash and cash equivalents

- 31.12.2018 322017 o1.00.2017
_ﬂinh and cash eguivalenis
Cash in hand a 632 3 .498 2610
Current accoun! with Central Bank 2 841 2437 2 245
impairment for cuman! account with Gantral Bank 7 o 1]
Deposits with Contral Bank 21 400 28 000 14 500
Impairment for deposils with Central Bank 0 1] 1]
Mostro accounts and overnight loans 33 843 23 857 38175
Impairment for naitro acoounts and avarmight loans 1 1] 1]
Total of cash and cash equivalents 61 BOA 58293 65 531

The balance of the account held at the National Bank of Hungary (MNB) includes a minimum
reserve of HUF 2 698 million, which the Bank does not use during its day-to-day operations.
Thanks to the ample liquidity the Bank significantly raised its volume of one-day and overnight
deposits at the end of 2018 compared lo the previous year.

At the end of 2018 and using a 12-month probabllity of delault, the Bank calculated an
expected credit loss for its standard performing receivables from the MNB that is negligible
compared to its volume of credit exposure: HUF 7 million was recognised for the account
balance including the minimum reserve, while no impairment was recorded for overnight
deposits given their maturity. Equally insignificant collective impairment of HUF 1 million was
recorded for the balance of nostro accounts and overnight deposits at other banks, with due
consideration of the partner banks' standard risk rating.

nazama
Currant Nastro
mooount Doposits | accounts,
with with overnight
Changes In oxpeciad credil loss (ECL) durlng the year Coentrol Bank | Confral Bank | loans Total
opening balance o o -167 167
akocalkon 18 e} £ a2
roloase 8 ] 187 176
writn-olfs o o L1 fi
maxdifications without derecognitian i 0 [1] ]
changos in ECL moasurement model, assumplions and inpuls V] o 1] (]
ofhar movemaonts (foreign curmency irans ation) n o 5 B
closing balance T o -1 -8
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6.6.2. Securities

In this section the Bank's portiolio of debt securities |s presented. In this portfolio the Bank only
holds bonds and discounted freasury bills issued by the Hungarian State, primarily for
managing surplus liquidity but also for managing interes!| income and partially hedging interest
risks.

The Bank had no securities held for trading at either the end of the reporting year or at the end
of the comparative years, although there was a small quantity of inlerim purchases which were
sold before the end of the year.

Securities purchased under the HIRS programme to hedge at balance sheet level the risk
arising from the decrease in variable interest rates were designated by the Bank at fair value
through profit or loss using the fair value option to eliminate the inconsistency between the
measurement of the derivative at fair value through profit or loss and the measurement of the
securilies al amorlised cos! (see also Section 6.9.7, Fair value option).

On the dale ol transition to IFRS 9, L.e, 1 January 2018, the Bank reclassilied its securities held
in the held-to-maturity category to the “hold” business model, and since Hungarlan government
securilies only pay principal and interest cash flows to their owners, the Bank continues to
recognise these in its books al amorlised cos! following the transition.

On the date of transition to IFRS 9, i.e. 1 January 2018, the Bank reclassified its securities held
in the available-for-sale category to the "hold and sell” business model, and since Hungarian
government securities only pay principal and interest cash flows lo their owners, the Bank
recognises Ihese in ils books as financial assels measured al fair value through other
comprehensive income following the ransition.

Book value ol débl securities braken-down by valuation Valuation
calagories calegory 31922018 | 31122007 | 01002047
A Fair vilue thiaugh profil aod loss 10 541 11281 11735
Trading (] o o
| Designated al tair value threugh prolt or loss 10641 112 11735
_Mmlll:bfnr-n]n_ IAS OB-AFS a1 AP Gad
Al fair valus ihrough other comgrobansive ingoma 'E,H.Rg{.;’; 32 234
Hpld-to-malurity IAS 30-HTM 1 00 2 6BO
limpairmant IAS 39-HTM ] L]
A amorined cosl IFRS 8-AC 1 009
Total debl securifies 43 8BB4 53472 56 959

The lollowing table shows the maximum credil risk exposure of the Bank's securities portfolio,
broken down according fo the Bank's internal credit rating system and the expected credit loss
categories at the end of the reporting year.
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31.12.2018 3122007 | .01.2017
Falr valuo/gross value of debl securilles 12 month | liletime | impaired
E'“:':': dowr by the calegaries.of Intarnal cradit rating ECL ECL assels Total | colleciive | collective
:J:Ll Securities al fair value through other comprehensive
neome
tigh grade a2 234 0 o| 32234 41 181 42 544
standard grado i i 0 0 [4] (]
average grade a i 0 o 0 ]
sub-standard grade [V [)] 0 o 0 n
Impained 0 i 0 i 0 o
Total a2 234 o 1] 32233 41 181 42 544
Debt Securities al amortised cosl N
Tigh geada 1022 ] 0 1022 1 DOO 2 680
atandord [rada i] 1] [{] 0 0 o
average grade 1] 1] ] i 1] 0
sun-standand grade o i} i} i 4] f
Impalned 0 o o 0 0 0
Total 1022 & o 1022 1 000 2680

The following table shows the volume changes in the Bank's securities portfolio, broken down
according 1o the Bank's internal credit raling system and the expected credit loss categories
al the end of the reporling year. For securities measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income the table contains changes to fair value, while for securities measured
at amortised cost the table shows changes to gross carrying amounts.

3.12.2018
Changaos in fair value/gross value of debl securlties 12 month IHetime impaired
braken down by the categories of expected credil loss (ECL) ECL ECL assels Total
Debt Securities ai fair value through other comprehensive incoma
apening balance ) 41 181 0 0 a1 181
purchases during the year 62 060 [ 0 62 060
derecognised or matumd [excluding wito ofts) <70 100 i 0 70 100
writo-olfs 4] 0 o ]
maodifications withoul derecognifion 0 a a o
rocinssilication to 12 month EGL calegory 0 0 0 o
rociassilication to liletima ECL catogory 0 0 0 0
reclassilication impaired category o [ 0 0
ehange In fnkr valug -1 410 0 i} =1 410
other movements {loreign currencly translation) 503 0 [ 503
closing balence 32 234 0 0 32234
Debt Socurlties ol amortised cost
opening balance 899 [i] ] 259
purchases during the year ] a 1] Li]
derecognised or maturod {excluding wiita offs) 0 ] 0 0
write-oifs 4] 0 [V} 0
midilications withold derscognition 0 ] 0 0
melassifieation o 12 month ECL category 0 0 0 ]
reclassificalion fo lilgfime ECL category o 0 i 0
roclassification impaired category 0 Q 0 o
olher movemants {loreign currancy translation, acarusd interest) 23 0 i 23
closing balance 1022 a L] 1022
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The decline in the portfolio related to the derecognition of securities measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income slems from maturing securities. Consequently,
alongside the derecognitions, no profit or loss was transferred from other comprehensive
income to the reporting year profit or loss because there were no disposals.

The porlfolio measured al amorlised cost was unchanged during the reporting year,

The following table shows the reporting-year changes in expected credit loss. For securities
measured al fair value through other comprehensive income, these movemeants reflect
changes during the reporting year to the portfolio’s fair value due lo credil risks. These fair
value changes were transferred from other comprehensive income to risk coslts in the income
statement,

3.2z008
Changes in expectod cradil loss (EGL) ol 12 month lifatima impaired

debt securities during the yesr ECL ECL assals Tatal

Debt securities st falr value through other comprahenaive incoms

opening balance

purmhases during the year

demcognised or matured (Echding writo ofls)

write-olls

modilicalions withoul derecogntion

dun o change in crodi ek

diun mmﬂnding of dincount

reclassificalion to 12 month ECL category

roclossilication to Uletima ECL calogory

reciassification impaired calepony

changos in ECL mnmmmi-mudﬂl. amsumpbong mnd nplia

athior meesmenits (fondign ourroncly iranslation, mending)

. | =g
gla|olclelolc|Blalal|a|E|8
oiolojaoojolio|o|o|O | oD e
[=bF=B =Af=Ri=-Ri= =RE-0F=-U -0 =0F=1F -]

closing balance

di-lele|olelclBlalaiz|d|®

Debt securlties al amoriised cost

oponing balance

wiie-offs

modilkoations without derecognition

due 1o change i cedii risk 1

e
]

dlup 1o smwingding ol discoun

ruclnssilication to 12 month ECL category

roclsssllication o latime EGL categary

roclaasification impaird catepary

ahangss in ECL measuneman model, assumplions and inpuls

SiooeooN| ola|olo)|-

afher meveminis (lorelgn currency iranalation, raunding)

Qoo lp|cio|o|loojojola
ocioooioio o |aejlojlo|locjaja

chllng balanoe

—
[~]

Qoo |ojola

-

Belore transition 1o IFRS 9 as of 1 January 2018 the Bank did not record impairment on debt
securities,
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The following table shows the Bank's debl securitles broken down by their original maturity.

Book value of debl securities broken-tdown by

original malturity cotegories 3122008 | 31922007 | 01.01.2017
securies with original mabrity within 1 year a a 0
securiles with ariginal maturity over 1 year 43 B84 53472 56959

of which matura within 1 yoar 14 712 23 aaa B 7e0.

Tolal debl securities 43 B4 53 472 56§59

Meither in the reporting year nor in the comparative years does the Bank's balance sheet
contain overdue receivables related to any of the securities presented here.

6.6.3. Receivables from credit institutions

Changes to receivables from credit institutions:

Aecoivables fram credt insiliutions 31122018 | 31.12.2017 | 0n.m 2017
Roceivatios (rom Conjral Bank 8o7 1 287 10 516
Impaimment lor recelvabips from Contral Bank 19
Reselvablias lram crodl irstibutons 21 2 30 455 a4 541
Impaimment for recolvables fom codil ingtilutions 35
Total recoivables fram credit institutions 22 455 T4z 45 057

On transition to IFRS 9 the Bank classilied all of its receivables from credit institutions in the
‘hold” business model. In compliance with the SPPI lesls performed, these receivables are

recognised at amortised cosl.

Changes lo gross values:

31.12.2018 31122017 | 01.01.2017

A RAOE DroEEn G by e POTadonos’ 12month | Wetime | impoired
of Internal credii rating system ECL ECL assels Tatal collective | collective
Pertarming recolvatios 22 500 0 o| 22508 31742 as057
hgh grade 1147 0 0 1147 43N 2975
standard grisde 21 362 [ o| =z1as2| 27am 42 a2
avarage gradea ] 0 0 a 0 0
past due, but not impasred 0 9 0 o 0 0
MNon-performing recalvables ] L] a 1] o ]
individually impairad 0 0 0 0 0 0
collectively impaired 0 0 0 0 o 0
Total gross book value 22508 0 0| 22500| a1742| asost
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Changes in gross value broken down by the calegories 31122018
al internal credit raling systom and the expocied 12 month litetime Impalrad
credlt loss (ECL) eategories ECL ECL assels Total
opaning balance 401186 0 D 40 116
placements and purchases during he year 156 243 265 b 157 228
damcognised or matured (exchding write offs) 75067 B 0] -trs067
wiie-olls o i} 1] 0
modicalions withoul domcoguition 0 0 1] 0
change in volume in the same EGL calegory 450 ) 0 450
reclasalbcation to 12 manth EGL calogory 574 574 o o
recinasification to liletme ECL calogory <1 2491 o 0
roclasailication impakred category o 1] 1] 0
alflvar movamonis (lomign cumencly transiafion) L] - i] il
| closing balance 22509 0 oz
Changes lo expected credit loss:
22018
2month | Wetime | Impaired
Changes in expecled credil loss (ECL) during the year ECL ECL arsels Total
oponing balance 114 o 0 114
purchagos during the yaar T ? [} 1
dareogrised or matured (exchiding write-ofts) -12 o o 12
wiife-odin o o 0 i
madifieationn williout dermeoanition 0 1] 1] o
chig tn change in credil risk -H5 -7 1] -B2
dhus o umlnﬂ-g ol discoun 1] 0 L] i
rockesmification to 12 mongh ECL eategory 1] 1] /] o
ieckssification o lfetime ECL calegory [¥] a 1] 0
recizsaification t impalred category (1] a a o
chifinges i ECL moasuremant model, assurmpions and o 0 0 0
inpaits
ather iovements (losaign surmenciy translation) (1] a i 0
closing balance 54 ol o] s

Belore 1 January 2018, under IAS 39 the Bank did nol recoanise impairment lor receivables

fram credil institutions,

Recaivables from credit institutions by remaining maturity:

N300

Recetvables trom credit Instilulions oty | s30days |31-90days| T1E | gsyeae | syear | Total
Recaivables from Gentral Bank 678 0 0 0 0 0 678
Auceivables from orsdi instilimons 4 3138 6 861 i 1 nat adni 21

Total receivablons from aredil Instilutions 1621 3136 0 863 ana 1 041 641 22 455

ariz20M7
withoul @1 doys !

Recelvahles from credit insfitutions maturity <30 days | 31-90 days 1 yoar 1-Syouar | =5 year Total
Apceivablis (rom Contral Bank 1 287 o ] i 1] 12687
Fincaivalion irom crodil inafilutons 186 a3 ] 6 1246 6815 a0 455

Tolal receivables from credit institutions 1473 22013 o a6 1 245 GRS 3Ta
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0.01.2007
Recelvables from credit Institutions ,‘:m’:i“t'! <30 days | 31-80 days TI :;;' 15 year | > 5 year Total
Recedeables from Contral Bank 251 a 8 (D5 ] [i] 1] 10518
Raceivables from crodit instiutions A4 26 199 1] 119 2] 7 EEE 34 5'“
Total receivables from credil institulions 2975 26 199 B 005 18 96 7 663 45 057

Receivables from credit institutions by geographic region:

31.12.2018
Rocalvables fram cradit netitutions Domasiic Russin EL Other Toinl
Receivatios from Central Bank 678 o 0 0 678
Recelvabies from cradd insiitulions 13178 B 160 438 1] 21T
Total racelvables from crodit institutions 13 857 B 160 a3n 0 22 455
3.92.2017
Receivables from credit institutions Domestic | Russia EU Other Total
Recelvaties from Conlemi Bank 1 2B i} i 0 1 287
Receivables from credi Institufions 10 114 8 255 12 086 0 30 455
Total recelvables from credit institutions 11401 8255 12 086 0 31 742
01,01.2017
Recelvablos from cradit institutions Domaestic Russla EU Other Total
Roceivables from Central Bark 10 516 o 0 0 10 516
Rocelvablos from eridit ingtitulions 4473 7878 221680 0 34 541
Total receivables from credit institutions 14 989 7878 22 180 0 45 057

6.6.4. Loans and advances to customers

This section presents receivables from customers broken down by following segments:

Loans and advances o customars 122018 | NA2.2017 | 01002007
corporate kans 157 007 131 144 125 219
impairmanl lor corporate lbans -7 928 -8 259 =10 933
privaie loans 88 131 84 572 83319
impaimmend for private koans -8 575 -7 067 - 454
Tatal loans and advances 1o cuslomers 228 635 158 390 191 151

Loans measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

On transition to IFRS 9 the Bank classified a non-performing part of the portfolio into "hold and
sell' business model, for which it was known at the date of transition that it will be recovered
by the revenue from the planned sale of receivables rather than by future cash flows of principal
and interesl.

These loans have been held in the FVOCI category since the date of transition.
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Loans and advances fo cusiome s 3122018
cofporabi lnant B4
private loans 43

Total loans and advances lo cusiomers 127

The volume of the portfolio and the number of transactions therein dropped significantly during
the reporting year on account of the intensive activity of selling receivables.

The following table shows the maximum credit risk exposure of the Bank's portlolio measured
al fair value through other comprehensive income, broken down according to the Bank's
internal credit rating system and the expected credit loss categories at the end of the reporting
year,

tlaz.2018
Fair value broken down by the 12 maonth Titatime Impaired impalred
categories of internal credit raling systom ECL ECL nsnels nEERls POCI
and mpalrment calogories collective | collective | collective Individual nesots Total
oorporais losns o o L] 1 a B4
Pardarming 0 ] u 0 [] ]
stondnnd grade 0 0 i L 0 o
average grade 0 ¥ ¥} 0 o 1]
Nor-parforming 1] ] 13 11 o 84
impaired 1] 0 73 11 0 B4
privale lonns 1] (] LK ] 0 0 43
Non-perfarming o i 43 1] 4 a3
irnpaired 0 1] i3 0 0 a3
Talal tair value 0 1] 116 11 1] 127

The lair value of the portfalio during the reporting year was largely influenced by the increased
sales of receivables: the decrease in volume owing to such derecognitions amounted to HUF
341 million, while other amounts received mainly due to claiming collateral totalled HUF 24
million. This trend is continuing in the lollowing year, and will ultimately lead to the complete

elimination ol the porifolio,

Changes in tha fair value of the foans
broken down by the sxpecled credil loss

(ECL) cafegorins
corporate loans

12 month

|
!

32208
Impairod
nssoln
coliactive

!

Poct

§

Taotal

opening balance

purchasas during the year

:ghr?munlud o matured {excludng write-

-305

witla-olis

changes in fair vialuo

madificathonn withou! dorocognifion

reclassification te 12 month ECL eatlegory

reclassification to Molime ECGL catagony

reclansification to impaired calogory

.
Dﬂﬂﬂﬁﬂ

olher movements (FX transkation,
ImBreat accale)

ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂgﬂﬁﬂﬁ

LR~ E-RE-RE=0F R§=]

ciosing boalance

el o S| o009 oo

olo |o|jo|op|joc|ojlo| o |a|a

133

162

elo ojlojo|ojo|jo]| o oo

2l o aojocjojojojlo| O |O| o
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Changes in thie fair value of the loans
broken down by the expected credil loss
{ECL) calegories

private loans

12 monih

collective

Iifetime

g

31.12.2018
impaired
assels
callective

Impadred
ansels
Ireedivicual

§

individual

Total

opening balance

46

puchases during the year

derecognsed or matured (excliding wiite-
ofis]

60

write-offs

valis ridh villozasa

mofificnthons without dereoognition

reclassification to 12 manth ECL category

reclassificatlon to llatime ECL categary

reclassilication to impalrod calegony

other movempenis (FX fransiaficn,
interent Hooruals)

(R = =0 =]

closing balance

ol o ioc|lajoljlo|o|lo) o oS

ol o oo|ojooja| a |aolo

EMUGO#E-‘*EGE

o 9o lolo|lo|o|jo|lo| o oS

alo |olojoajlaojo|o] o |o|S

e o |oaeojo|joj o OB

The following tables show the reporting-year changes in portfolio fair value due to credit risks.
These fair value changes were transferred from other comprehensive income to risk costs in

the income statement.

change in credit risk broken down by the
expected cradit loss (ECL) colegories
corporate lanns

Changos in the fair value of the loans dus to

12 monih

8

litetime
ECL

g
g
H

3122078
impalrad

impaired
assels
Individual

POCI
assols
colloclive

E
H

Total

opening balanca

purchases during the year

darscogrigod or matured [excluding writo-
afts)

218

wiito-olts

muadilications withoul derecognition

Uﬁgﬂg

dus 1o changs n crodil rsk

tun 1o urwinding of discount

reciassification to 12 month ECL category

reclaesthention 1o Ifalima ECL category

reclastdication o Impalnoed calbgony

changes n ECL measuremant model,

- -AE-AE-BE-RE-Af-RAN-ENE-F -]

o le|le|lolvwélale

M"‘“_%‘E
othar movemenis {FX translation,

| Interon necruis)

L
o

closing balance

e = nﬂannnnnﬂnng

Ble|e|slalala|lilalal 3 |a

-151

2 o o ocjo|o|ja | o|a|a| o | ele

=) = o ool |ioio|oe| @ 2|2
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Changes in the fnir value of 1he loans due lo
ahangs in credil risk broken down by the
expecied credil loss (ECL) categorias
privaie loans

12 manith

|
é

litetime
ECL

112008

impairad

g
;

PO
assals
collective

POCH

Individual

Total

apaning balance

=267

prrohases during the year

grmmngnlmd or maiurod {uxchiding wile-
i

]

wiile-offs

modifications withoul devocognition

die to change in anadil sk

due (o umwinding of diseolint

=41

-41

rclessification o 12 month ECGL calngory

rechassification io ktelima ECL calogary

risglassabostion 10 impaind cologosy

=R E-NE-AE-Ai-EN-RN-R -~ N -

changes in EGL measuramant model,
nEsLmpbions and inpls

after movements (FX iansiation,
Interasl agciuala)

== == ]

= ioaialaojlesio|jo| o (oo

= oo aoajle|s|o) oo o

& |l o loo|alw

closing balance

oo |0 oo 2 =8
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The ageing of overdue receivables by the maximum days in default is presented below at the

end ol the reporting year.

Ageing of fair value of overdue loans.
broken down by the eategorias of Inlomal
crodil raling syatem

=30 days

J1-60 days

31122018

61-80 days

=180

181 days
=1 yoar

= | yaar

§

corporats loans

Man performing

impieerd

private loans

Mar porforming

impaired

Total fair valus

AR AR -R -0 -]

(=AR=AK-RE-RE-NE-A0 -1

ooioc|ia o o|la

o oo e c| oo

=== || =

= &583d2d

1

St R S

—

Loans measured at amortised cost

The following table shows loans measured at amortised cost, broken down by business
segments. The impairment data for the reporling year in the table are figures in accordance
with the provisions of IFRS 9, while comparative information is calculated according to the

rules of IAS 39.
Loans and sdvancas fo customans JAZI0NE | 3122017 | 01.01.2017
corporate loans 156823 131 144 125 219
impairreent for copotalo loans -7 D2s 48254 10 833
private loans BH HpR B4 572 21 me
impairment for pivata loans -8 575 -7 067 -5 454
Tatal loana and advances to customers 228 508 1948 390 181 181
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The Bank's lending portfolio displayed stable growth over the last two years, which Is primarily
down lo increases al two business divisions, the commercial loans of the corporale customers
division and the any-purpose loans of the retail division. Retail overdrafts — though starting
from a lower level — also produced significant growth.

By conlrast, project-financing loans for businesses stagnated and retall morigage loans
steadily declined, partly because of the reduclion of non-perfarming loans and partly because
the Bank's management.

From here onwards in the detailed statements included in the financial statements, impairment
data for the reporting year are figures under IFRS 9 and are presented in the following
breakdown

- 12-month expected credil loss (stage 1)

- lifetime expecled credit loss (stage 2) and

- credit impaired (stage 3)
while comparative data are calculated under IAS 39 and are broken down by

- collective

- individual and

- incurred but not reported (IBNR)
assessment category.

Purchased or originated credit impaired loans (POCI) are recognised separately by the Bank
from all three impairmeni categories. In the years presented in these linancial stalements the
Bank only has originated credit-impaired loans it disbursed, it did not purchase such loans.
The portfolio of originated credit impaired loans stems from the non-perlorming foreign
currency loans converted into Hungarian forints during the 2015 debtor reliel programme.

Carporale loans

The following tables show the maximum credit risk exposure of lpans measured at amortised
cost, broken down according to the Bank's internal credit rating system and the expected credit
loss categories at the end of the reporting year.

Gross book value broken down by the 31.12.2018
eategorles of internal crodit rating system and | 12 month | lifetime Impaired Impaired POCI roci
thio expected credit loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL agsols nssots assols assels
collective | collective | colleclive ingividual | collective | Individual Total
Partarming 135 623 10 883 L] o 0 0 146 506
high grade 5 987 0 0 0 ] 0 5 987
standard grada 38 475 7068 ] ] 0 i} 46 543
nvarage gride a5 791 2 005 i} i} n 0 8r 796
brebow average grade 4 370 1-810 0 0 0 0 6180
Non performing 0 0 2170 7526 0 721 10417
stardard grada i] 0 2 ] 4] o 29
averans [jada 0 0 A7 o 0 ] 47
below average grade ] ) a7 a a o a7
impaired 0 0 2047 7528 0 721 10 294
Total corporate loans 135623 10 883 2170 7528 o ™ 156 923
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Gross book value broken down by the 31122017
categories of Internal crodit rating system and
the expecied credit loss (ECL) categories
collective | Individusl IBMA Talal
Performing o o 118 454 1108 454
hih grisde 0 0 1202 1202
atnndsnd grade o 1] 43 176 43 1TE
AV Qrace 1] 1] 65 H54 65 854
besbow average gride ] (1] 8622 fB22
Non porforming 2421 i 745 524 11 690
ninrclard grade i 1] ad 50
nverage grade ai [i] g 52
bolow average grade G/ ] 10 17
impaired 2 305 B745 a61 1an
Total corporate loans 2421 B 745 119 978 131 144
Groas book value brokan down by the 01002007
ealegoiles of internal credit rating system and
the expected credit loss (ECL) calegories
collective | Individual IBNA Tolal
Perfarming 2 2 06% 110 547 M2 618
mnh!mdu 1] 1] 375 376
ninricard grvio 1] 1] ar 167 a7 167
average grads 2 2 el 58 582 61
bedow average grade i] 1] 13423 13473
Non performing 2 598 9184 T8 12 601
standard grade ] 1 0GR 122 1180
uvernge giade 23 [ 115 136
holow avarage grade by [1] a2 50
impaired h 2 648 Bile 450 11214
Total corporate loans 2 700 11253 111 266 125 218

The reporting-year changes in the gross carrying amounts of the loans measured at amorlised
cost are shown in the following tables broken down by the expected credit loss categories at

the end of the reporting year.

Changes In the gross book value J122018

broken down by the 12 month | IHetime impairod impalred POCH POCI

expocied credil loss (ECL) calegories ECL ECL mssois assels asaols assals

collective | coliective | collective individual | collective | indlividual Taotal

opaning balance 106 976 12721 2382 T TS 0 i 130 587
purchases during he year B4 078 GRS [} 452 o 0 A5 216
W“m of matured (exchuding wrie- 30 378 2546 465 .290 0 A3E1D
write-olls A 0 133 1829 0 0 -2 083
changes wilhin the aams ECL calsgory 2 600 <1 146 =182 1101 o <N FLY
modifications withoul darscagnitian U] a o a 0 L] a
isciassification 1o 12 manth ECL calsgory 2 545 2442 a5 58 8 o 6156
soclassilication 1o llelmo ECL category 5029 5418 208 85 0 0 0
roclassilication o impalred catogory -1 541 2 145 1170 2516 ) 0 0
mn:nmur!? (FX transiation, 1587 a7 71 256 [i] 1 2232

closing balance 135 623 10 883 2170 7 526 0 7 156 923
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The following tables reveal the reporting-year changes in the expected credit loss of the loans
measured al amortised cost, broken down by category of expected credit loss. The
comparative data show the changes in impairment calculated under IAS 39.

Changes In the expocled cradil loss MaLz018

broken down by the expected 12month | lifstime impaired impaired POGI POGCI

credit loss [ECL) colegories ECL ECL assels asspls assels

eollective | collective | collective individual | collective | individual Tolal

apening balance -755 -261 1173 6192 0 -206 -8 587
purchasss during the year 574 18 -A 227 i 0 H21
:::;_”“ﬂ'“"’“ o matured (excluding wrile- 61 120 388 787 0 18 1684

" wils-ofls 0 0 14 1629 0 0 2043

modilicalions withoul dorecognition 0 1] o o 0 0 0
due i changa in credil nsk T8 14 -236 -1 441 ] 68 -1 810
et bo urwinding of decount i ] 22 147 0 -7 78
reclasaification o 12 month ECL category A5 7 18 0 4] 0 0
reclassification lo litetima ECL calegory 26 -117 as 5 0 o 0
reclass/fication to impalned colegory 6 131 54 43 o o (]
GROAIRECL e ok, 0 b g . 0 } 0
:ummmm {FX translabion, -4 8 a8 206 0 0 261

closing balanco -1 DED -113 808 575 0 =264 =7 928

The opening amount of the expecled credit loss in 2018 is lower by HUF 672 million than its
closing amount in 2017 due to the transition from [AS 39 1o IRS 9.

Changes in the expeciad credit loss 3az.207

broken down by the oxpected

eredil loss (ECL) categories in IAS 39

collective | Individual IBNRA Totnl

opening balance 2108 =T 268 =1 557 <10 833
alocation 328 -1 608 B4 -2 570
relense 657 77 248 2342
witilp-oiti 426 1170 i 1 658
due to urinding of discount 1] 35 0 35
E“ﬂ:;ﬁnmmm1? {FX tranalation, 46 162 i 200

closing balance -1 307 -6 772 =1 180 -8 258

Taking collateral into account may result in that while some or all of a receivable may be
overdue, there Is still no need to record impairment, The following tables break down such
overdue receivables by age.

This portfolio reveals a sharp decline at the end of the reporting year compared 1o the pravious
years, but this is not due to the actual fall in the eligible portion of collateral that reduces credit
risks, but is caused by the transition to IFRS 9.
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Ageing of the gross value of overdue bul Jnazzme
nol impaired loans broken down by the
categories of the internal cradit rating
system
<30 days | 3160 days | 6190 days ’;:r e ;”;’ > 1 yoar Total
Performing 1 0 0 0 0 0 i
high grade o o D 0 0 i o
standard grade 1 0 1] 0 o ] I
average grade o i 0 { L] 0 1]
balow averape grade ] o 1] a 0 0 o
Non perfarming o 0 o 0 o 2 2
standard grade o] 0 e 0 0 0 0
avesags grads ] 0 0 0 o 0 1}
below avorage grado (1] o ] -] I ] 0 o
gnimnd a ol 0 0 0 z 2
Taotal corporato loans 1 o o 0 o 2| a
Aguing of tho grons value of overdus bl 3207
nol impaired loans broken down by the
cotegories of the internal credil rmting
aysiem
<30 doys | 31-60 days | 61-90 days 'E::‘ 'ﬂ‘;‘;‘ » 1 your Total
Parforming 7 104 2 0 0 [H] 7808
high grade 25 1] o 0 0 1] o5
standand grade E06 24 (e} i 0 4] B3R
vBTage prado 5481 i) 18 o 0 i) 5 S4B
below nvarage grade 1 6OG 1 5 g 0 0 1 705
Mon perorming 80 BE 23 M 1 500 6 645 8 605
standard_gride 0 0 0 5 0 0 [
average grade 0 1] 5] A a 0 43
balow average guide [1] i} V] - a1 2 67
st &0 6 23 134 1 A6& B B4 B 489
Tolal corporate loans 7 861 180 A6 204 1508 6 645 16 511
Agelng ol the gross value of overdue bui .01.2017
nal impaired loans broken down by the
calegories of the internal credit rating
systom
$30days | 3160 cays | G1-00days | 180 | TS gy | yoml
Perlorming 7633 183 920 o o 0 8736
high gk 45 0 ] ] 0 1] A4h
Blnndﬂd!r!ﬂn 1 477 2 1 o 0 0 1 480
average grade 4 058 79 B3k 0 o i & 570
balow aviinga gridn 2 055 102 a4 0 (] 0 2241
Hon pﬂhmﬂn! 630 146 18 Ha are Bang 10 Ba2
standard grade 0 ] ] a 1} 0 1]
average grado 0 0 13 121 1 | 138
balow overage grads ] ] <] an i i a7
impaired 146 2 7B am 9 488 10 709
Talal corporate loana 8 263 179 938 218 B 9494 10 610
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The ageing of overdue receivables by the maximum days in default is presented below at the

end of the reporting year and in the previous years.

Ageing ol tho gross value of overdue 31,12.2018
loans broken down by the calegories
of the inlernal credil raling system
<30 days | 31-60 days | 61-90 days ‘;;‘!:“ TF";‘;' > 1 year Total
Parforming 237 " 1 0 1 0 253
high grace 40 0 [} 0 o 0 a0
standard grade a3 0 [V 0 0 0 a3
averige grade 143 10 [} 0 1 0 154
below average grace 21 4 1 0 0 0 26
Non performing 22 103 0 393 173 ariz 5403
standard grado 0 0 [} 1 1 0 1
averago grade 0 0 o 4 4] 1 5
below nvarnge grade 4 i L] 0 1 2 [
impinod L 103 0 388 172 4 708 5 360
Total corporate loans 259 "7 1 393 174 a72 5 656
Ageing of the gross value of overdus Ia2mr
loans broken down by the categories
of the internal credil rating systam
<30 days | 3160 days | 61-80 days ’J_;;f“ ‘:‘;‘; > 1 year Total
~ Porfarming = 580 3 1 0 ] 0 592
high gradin i i ] 0 0 [ 0
standard grade 29 o 0 o 0 0 29
averagn grato 811 3 f ol 0 0 515
bolow average grado 48 0 0 0 0 0 )
Mon perfarming 55 (i 1 120 | 802 6 757 7835
standord grade 0 0 0 E§| a ) 1
avirnge grade 0 0 [ 1 f [ 2
balow average grade i 0 [ 20 1 2 23
impaired 55 0 1 i %00 6 755 7 60D
Tatal corporaie loans 643 3 2 120 a2 & 757 8427
Ageing of tha gross value of overdue 01.01.2097
loans broken down by the calegories
ol the internal cradil rating sysiem
$30days | 3160 days | 6180 days | ot ‘I’,‘ﬂ"‘f »1 year Total
Perorming da2 30 65 ] o a arr
higih gracle 2 [ 0 i o 0 2
standard grade 24 2 1 0 1 0 27
mvernge grads 313 24 18 o 1] 0 355
below nverage grade 43 4 L i] 0 [i] ik
Mon performing 13 2 -] 6B 162 2615 9 865
stancard grada 0 1] 0 i 1] 0 0
avarnge grade 0 [} 0 43 1 i 45
below average grade 0 0 3 2 1 4 10
impakied 13 2 2 ga 160 g 610 9810
Total corporate loans s 3z 7o %] 162 8615 10 332

The ageing of the expected credit loss by the maximum days in default of the related overdue

receivable is presented below al the end of the reporting year and in the previous years.

53




Cromsobidited Finanehl Sanements 31, December 2018

Sherbink Hungary Lad,

distis in HUF sl o

Ageing of the axpected credil loss mazazo01e
broken down by 1he calegories
of the internal credit rating sysiem
overdus ==1 yuar = | yoar Tatal
Parforming = | -226 50 =1 180
high grade 0 -2 -5 T
elondard gproie 0 -39 =¥ =210
averago gl -3 161 i -85
below avarage grade 1 -24 AT Bryd
Non performing -4 05 -1.019 -1 636 -6 748
utorelard grade 1] 2 1] -2
average grade -1 3 0 -4
el nvernge grads 2 -a -1 A
impared - A 080 A0 <1836 -6 730
Total impairment for corporate loans -A 087 -1 245 -2 586 <7 928
Agelng ol the expecied eredll loss na22m7
broken down by thi colegories
of the internal eredil raling system
avisr e ==1 yaar = | yoar Total
Parlorinlhg 4 <482 -BBA <1 1886
High grada il 4 A -1t
slandand grade 4 “Apn a2 454
averago grade ] R e 265 581
bilow mverage grada -1 -32 a0 =1
Hon performing -6 406 531 -946 -8 073
alandand grado 0 - 0 “
avermg grde -2 8 o -10
below sverage grads 5 =13 ] -18
impidred fi 4859 G049 -4 -0 044
Total impairment for corpomte loans -6 502 1123 -1 634 <9259
Agelng ol the expected credit loss o020y
broken down by the calegories
ol the intermal eredil rating systom
ovardue e=1 year = 1 year Tatal
Partarming <18 -BED -1 465 -2 351
High geada (1 -1 ] -1
standand grade -1 -1¥r -240 -418
n'mmge__m 13 -B14 823 -1 850
bilow nverago gfido -4 -Th 302 382
Non parforming T a7 -483 -628 -B 582
slandard grade a -240 =308 -548
avorago gradoe ! -8 -4 A7
bolow average groda -7 2 -4 10
impaired 7 456 23 18 B 007 |
Total impalrment for corporato loans T aga «1351 <2 083 10 933
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The following tables show the maximum credit risk exposure of loans measured al amortised
cost, broken down according to the Bank's internal credit rating syslem and the expected credit

loss categories at the end of the reporting year.

55

Gross book value broken down by the 31.12.2018
cotegories of internal credii rating systom and | 12 month |  lifetime impaired impalrad POCI Pocl
the expected credil loss (ECL) calegorios ECL ECL nasols assals agsels Asspts
collactive | collasctive | colleathe individusl | collective | individual Total
Porforming 60 697 2817 0 0 U2 0 72 606
high grade 1] i) 0 0 0 i} o
standard grade 40 764 558 0 0 45 0 41367
avoerge grade 21 584 1188 0 0 23 0 27
below averape grade ¥ 369 1073 o 0 14 1] B 455
Mon performing 0 0 5 959 1 9 047 A7S 15 482
stondaid gride i [ 15 0 b ] B
avirage grade i 0 a2 0 Bg o 121
belerw meszags grade 0 0 o 0 43 ] 138
limypalrod 0 0 5819 1 A B39 475 151734
Tolal privale loans 69 697 2e7 5 a5n 1 8139 A75 B 088
Gross book value broken down by the azz2my
categories of intermal credil rafing system and
the expected credit loss (ECL) eategories
caoporios | egyedi IBNR Usszasen
Parforming D 1] 65 874 65 B7a
tugh grade 0 0 B16 B1B
standard grade 0 4 a5 985 A5 065
avarage grade 0 0 22 826 22 B
balow ayerge gracs 0 0 6 267 6 267
Non performing 15 938 322 2 438 18 6598
slandard grade a8 0 203 2d1
average grade 24 ] 123 147
Db JvErage grosin (i) i 278 349
imipaimd 15805 322 1 834 17 861
Total privale loans 15 338 322 68 312 B4 572
Gross book value broken down by the o.pz2m?
eatogories of internal credit rating system and
the expacied cradit loss (ECL) calegories
collective | Individual IBNR Total
Parforming 29 0 63 462 63 Ta2
high grade 0 o 125 125
standard grade 11 0 B 470 a4t
avemnge grade 13z 0 A5 517 46 109
balow average grade 186 0 7830 BT
Man poerforming 16 967 0 2 560 19 527
standard grade B 0 0 @
average gade 27 o B& 113
balow average grade 142 0 B4 226
impairad 16 782 0 2 390 19 182
Total private loans 17 296 [} 66 023 B3 319




Consolidated Financial Siaements 31, Decendwer 2018

Sberbunk Hungary L, chiiis b HUF million

The reporting-year changes in the gross carrying amounts of the loans measured at amortised
cost are shown in the following tables broken down by the expected credit loss categories at

the end of the reporting year.

Changes in the gross book value 3122018
broken down by the 12 month | lilatime impalred impaired POCH PO
expecied crodil loss (ECL) calbgorios ECL ECL assels ansels asnols ansets
L colleclive | collective | coflective | individunl eollactive | individual Total
opiening balance 63 008 ERRI &7 1 12 140 437 85443
pliehames during the yesr 19 779 as 133 0 L] o 20 243
w*" of skiured (sxthicing - A 829 254 1 B8 o| -4080 o 11062
wrili-ofie 0 o ~150 1] i o 225
ahinges within e same EGL calegory - T 29 218 0 1 104 L] -6 515
maodifications withoul demcognition ] 0 -1 o a L] -1
roclasgifcation 1o 12 month ECL category 5 066 -4 526 <640 1] a0 n o
rectasgficalion o l#etime ECL calegary & 454! 6 D55 -605 1] ol 0 o
reckasaification to impaired categony -301 -1 Gidh 2 106 0 0 0 1]
ather movermants (FX franslabon,
flanist o I} B85 15 46 H 48 -1 204
closing balance 68 69T 2817 5 858 1 8138 A7E 88 Des
The lollowing tables reveal the reporting-year changes in the expected credit loss of the loans
measured al amorlised cosl, broken down by category of expected credit loss. The
comparative data show the changes in impairment calculated under 1AS 39,
Changes In the gross hook valus M2.2018
brokan down by the 12month | Wetime impalred Impaired POCI paci
expecied cradii loss (ECL) calegorios ECL ECL assels asgals nsgels pasels
oollective | callective | colloctive Individual | colisctive | Individual Tolal
opening balance 203 ~A53 -2 653 o -4 45 A5 -8 629
purchases during the year 347 -2 33 1] 0 A4
ﬁ;l;l:uumlnd or maluned (wecluding wiile- 228 ua 0@z 0 1 768 0 3069
write-aifts 1] 0 132 4] 358 ] ARE
madifications wilhau! derecognilion 0 ] ] n ] ) 0
due 16 chalge In credl ik -53 -ATF A0y i} aEr -130 -1 994
dum 16 unwinding of discount 0 a 108 [i] -E-'M -1_55_ -115'!
reclassification to 12 month EGL category 408 248 158 0 0 0 a
reclassification to Wetime EGL calegory ars £21 146 o 0 0 0
foclnssification to impaired calsgory 7 (it -GB1 i 1 i 0
changes in ECL measuraman! modal,
asdll ahd ] ] o o 0 0 0
il . 2 1 45 0 0 0 a2
closing belance -1 1M -3a2 <2488 1] -4 374 -230 B 675

The opening amount of the expected credil loss in 2018 is higher by HUF 1 862 million than
its closing amount in 2017 due to the transition from IAS 39 to IRS 9.
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Changes In the expected credit loss 31.12.2017

broken down by the expected

credll loss (ECL) categories In 1AS 39

collective | individual IBNR Tatal

opening balance -5 632 o £22 -6 454
allacation -2 4189 -4 -564 -2 087
release 1387 0 AB3 1 B20
wiile-oifs 578 o &7 645
due o uwinding of digcoun 0 0 1 0
othar movemenis (FX iranslation, .93 0 2 o
Interest acciuais)

closing balance -6 108 o 854 <1 067

Taking collateral into account may resull in that while some or all of a receivable may be
overdue, there is still no need to record impairment. The following tables break down such

overdue receivables by age.
Ageing of the gross value ol overdue bul 1422008
nol impalred lopns broken down by the
categories of the Internal credit rating system
530 days | 3160 days | 61-60 days "::" 13:_::' =1 year Tolal
Perlomming 418 o o ] [i] [ 418
high grndia 0 0 1] ] o [
standard grade 418 0 1] 0 [V o 418
Average grode 1] 1] 0 0 0 o 0
belksw nvarngoe grado 1) 1] o 0 0 n o
Mon performing 1] o 1] 0 a L 4
standard grada 0 i} o i i o o
avetapo grado 0 ] o 0 ] "] o
below average grade 0 a 0 0 o o o
Impaired 0 0 e} 0 o 4 4
Total private loans 418 (1] 1] 0 o L] 422
Ageing of the gross valus of overdus bul 31.12.2017
nol iImpatred loans broken down by the
calegories of the internal eredit raling system
$30days | 3160 days | 61-00 doys ‘;:;’ 'ﬂ‘:‘;’" =1year | Total
Perfarming 4338 755 0 ] 1] 5361
high grade 0 0 1] 0 ] o 0
standard grade 1744 191 20 0 ] 0 1984
Average grade 1425 168 o4 0 0 ] 1 GB8
below avarppe grado 1 160 s 185 0 a 1] 1729
Non parforming 576 a2 380 918 621 12 796 15 633
standard grade 59 12 1 12 0 1 i
nverago grade 55 15 2] 17 0 ] 83
below average grade 134 36 a5 45 1 2 265
Impairad 328 278 a7 B3 620 12 T84 15 180
Tolal private loans 4914 1087 648 a8 621 12 786 20 884
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Ageing of the gross value of overdue bul 1.01.2017
nat impalmd loans broken down by the
categories of the internal credit rating system
<30 days | 31-60 days | 61-90 days ':;LE" '5&:}’" >1 year Tolal
Perfarming 4991 1210 s8] 0 0 0 6710
high grade 10 0 0 0 0 1] 10
standtard grads 363 27 2 0 0 0 392
dveTEge grada 284G 285 45 o a 1 3178
bolaw avarage gacde: 1772 ki) 471 ) a a a.141
Hon perfarming 170 a1 348 848 1318 13 672 16 548
standard grads i 0 o o 1 ] L
mvirage grade B o e i a 15 107
below average gade 1 & 33 107 1 &0 i
Impaktad 160 a5 25 837 a1 11 G2 16 231
Tolal privaie loans 5 161 1301 867 B4 1318 13672 23 267
The ageing of overdue receivables by the maximum days in default is presented below at the
end of the reporling year and in the previous years.
Apaing of the gross value of overdue 3.12:2018
lonns broken down by (he catogories
ol the Internal credit rating system
€30 days | 31-60 days | 6180 days ‘;;;r i :""" > 1 yoar Total
Porfarming 1089 20 12 0 0 0 1121
higl grade 0 '] 0 7] [i] [ o
standard grade 853 4 2 ) 0 [ 859
nveTERn grdo Jm a 3 0 i i Ao
below average grade 135 10 7 o ] a 152
Nan performing 12 13 12 59 178 9045 10 219
sinrdand grode ! f a 2 1 1 5
average grade 1 a o 2 ! 2 5
bitlow averags grado a Q1 i 3 1 3 7
impainod " E] 12 52 175 0 635 10 202
Tolal private loans 110 a3 2 54 178 9945 11 340
Ageing of the gross value of overdus az2m7
loans broken down by the categories
ol tha Internal credit rating system
$30days | 3160 days | 61-90 days ';;f’ "'1"1"_'_“ > 1 year Total
Portarming 54 16 9 0 0 0 79
high grads 0 0 ] [ 0 ] 0
siandard grade 19 3 1 0 0 1] 23
avarage grade 19 4 2 ) i a 25
balsw average grade 16 L 8 ] 0 o an
Non performing 15 ] 12 58 12 8 440 4646
standard grade i 0 i 2 0 1 4
fvirags gride a il ] 2 ] o 2
bElow average grade 1 ] 1 3 1 2 1]
impairad 13 ! 1 51 i 9437 6632
Total private loans (3] 25 21 58 112 g 440 9725
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Ageing of the gross value of overdue 01012017
lonns broken down by the calegories
of the internal credit rating system
<30 days | 31-60 days | 61-80 days “;;;:ﬂ ':‘:3" =1 yoar Total
Performing a2 21 15 ] 0 1] 7a
high grade 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
standard grade 6 | 1 o 1] a 10
avernge grade 19 g 2 1] o i bl
balow avoragn grado 18 13 12 ) 0 [i] A1
Non performing a 3 22 a3 114 9816 10 002
standard grade 0 a a o 1 5 [
average giade 0 0 2 1 a 15 21
below average grade 0 i 1 3 i 40 45
impaired 4 o 18 a0 g 8 TH6 9 030
Total private loans a6 a ar a3 114 a816 10 061

The ageing of the expected credit loss by the maximum days in default of the related overdue
receivable is presented below al the end of the reporting year and in the previous years.

Ageing ol the sxpected crodil loss 31122018
broken down by the categorien
of the infernal eredit rating system
overdue <=1 year = 1 yont Tolnl
Plrl'nrmIE! 27 <252 =1 2068 =1 487
high gradi [ 0 o o
slandard grads & 1 471 57T
avorngo grads 13 -88 -436 -538
below avorage grade r 52 -a01 -ar2
MHon porforming -5 230 -266 -1 582 -7 DBB
standard grade -2 -1 B «11
average grade -4 -3 20 -27
balow avarago grdo 5 7 35 A7
impaind 5218 255 -1 528 -7 003
Total impalrment for private loans -5 257 518 -2 800 -8 575
Ageing of the expected crodit loss ;azz20m7
breken down by the categories
af tha internal credil rating system
ovordus <=l yoar = 1 yoor Total
Performing -8 -162 -T67 837
hgh grade 0 3 16 19
stnndared grace -2 B1 252 -315
average grade -3 -58 312 -373
huhv}-mam grade 3 -4 -187 <230
Non performing <3 679 286 =2 164 -6 130
standard grads -2 -1 -6 -a
avarnge grade -2 -3 -10 -15
babow avarngo grade 4 -8 -18 -51
impained A0 275 2110 6 055
Total iImpalrment for private loans -3 687 448 -2 83 <1 DET

59




Consolidated Financial Stafements 31, December 2018

Sherbank Hungary Lid

datd in HUF million

Ageing ol the expectad credt loss S
brokan down by the catogorion
of the internal credit rating system
overdus ==1 yonar = 1 yoar Total
Parforming 7 A 816 )
high grade 0 " 3 3
stindard grade Kl -18 a3 &
VeRige IRy -2 a1 B2 545
beskiny sverage (rada & - 2688 3aa
ol payisnning a7 22 2027 5510
almnctard grata 5 0 0 o
lmﬂw;ufﬂdﬂ 20 =1 - a0
bilow mvarnge (rida I 5 B3 re
. impaired Aon2 | -205 -1 965 -5 372
Total i'mﬁl"mnl far private laans 3978 am| T e

Loans and advances to customer — other information
Recelvables from customers by counltry or group ol countries of origin of the customers are

presented below.
Nel book value broken down by counlry M.A22018
| bomaeslic Runsin EU Othir Talal
Lurun-;::?:ﬂ:tvﬂ- through other - 0 0 0 127
corporale onns B4 0 0 0 it
plvatg loans 43 ] 1] 0 43
Loans measured al omortised cost 210 804 15 204 2208 181 226 508
comporils lbana 132 510 14 625 1 860 ] 145905
privade loans T8 394 574 A48 191 ek
Tatal 211 o 15 204 2 200 161 228 B35
| Net book value broken down by country 31122017
Loans moasured af amorflsed cost Domestic Rusaia EU Other Totml
corporaie koins 109 A55 11 975 55 n 121 885
privais loans T8 446 528 203 138 77 506
Tatal 186 301 12 503 448 138 100 390
Mot book valuo brokon down by country 01,01.2017
Loans measured al amortised cosl Domestic Aussia EU Olher Tolal
cofporie loans a5 118 14 404 3783 1] 114 86
privato loans 15 723 53 AdG 10 7 B6&
Total 171 B4z 14 997 4 208 103 191 151
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Receivables from customers by industry:

Met book value

Loans measured al falr value through other Jzz0e

| comprehensive income
Agricultine, forestry and fishing 1
Manutacturing 34
Water aupply L]
Construshion i
Whalesale and refail trada 21
Trarsport and siorage B
Mscommaodation and lood service notivities 12
Information and communeation 2
Rl astate acihilles n
Professional, scentibc and fachnioal sdllvities 7
Aris. entertainment and recrealion o

Tolal B4

Elmﬂlu‘r‘ld at amortised cost 122018

___Mhuﬂum,l'urﬁh}'mdtm 4 TH6
Mining and quarrying 5
Maniufacturing 25 325
Elpctricily, gas. steam and alr condtioning supply 71N
‘Water nupphy a7a
Construction G 0ag
Wholssale and retad trada 26 895
Transpor and stornge 5178
Accommodation and Inod service activities a 489
Infarmation and cormmincation 16472
Financial and insurance activitios 1827
Real estaie activities a6 730
Profess|onal, scientific and technical aotivities i 154
Adminirtrative and support service activities 277
Pubilic adminlstration and delence, computsory 272
Eduzation 1 880
Human haalth sorvices and social wivk activities 1181
Aris, enteriainment and regreation 273
Cilhar sorvicas G4
Forgign omanizations, bodies Q

Tolal 148 845
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Het book value broken down by Industry

B sl stan
Apfidubiire, forestry and fishing 3 880
Mining and quarrying o
Manulacturing 17 5AY
Elpliigity, gas, slaaim and o conditioning supply 7ov?
Wator aupply gon
Constraction b BAT
Whalesale and miasil trde 31 235
Transpon and slorage 5214
Accommaclation and [ood senice activifios 1 664
Inormation and commimication 2613
Finanaisl and insuance adiivities A 047
Real estale activities 31 580
Prolessional, scientific and schrical activities 158
AdininEiralve and suppor Sorvlon sciivities 20249
Public administmtion and dolence, compuisory 44
Edueation 1 508
Human hoalih services and sodisl wark aoihities 806
Aris, entertainmeant and recreation 1174
Other sorvices 410
Foreign organizalans, bodles a

Total 121 B85

Loare auied i rhaitiosd o 01.01:2017
Agriaulture, lorestry and fishing 5316
Mining and guarrying 3802
Marieiletiing 15 086
Elechricity, gas, steam and air condiioning supply 9329
Walar supply G2
Conglucin 4 580
Whinlesale and rotal trada an 273
Transpon and siomge 3166
Accommodation wnd Tood seivias solivilien 2083
Inlesmation and communicalion 1428
Finaneial and insurance aolivities A0
Foal astale activitkes 25 770
Protessional, scientific and technical activities 5003
Administrative and suppor) soevics agtivities 2 565
Public sdministralion ind dafance, compulsory i)
Education 203
Human hatllh services and soclal work notlivilies #36
Aris, entorfainment and recraation 1 250
(Hher services 450
Fomsign organizations, bodias 0

Total 114 286
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6.6.5. Plant, property and equipment

The Group measures its plant, property and equipment using the cost model,

Changes to plant, property and equipment:

Land Buildings Hardware Equipments Vehicles Total
Acquisition cost
ngg-mnm 46 1224 1323 123 208 6033
 Adsdition 0 a7 120 47 0 204
Dieposal - 321 <54 20 -4 =1 143
Reclassilication 0 =1 847 0 Q 0 -1 BAT
Closing balance as al
31,12.2017 a8 1203 e 1002 205 3447
Addition 0 168 ) 52 ] 625
Dispasil 0 ] B 12 -26 A2
Reclasshoation -16 16 0 0 o 0
gﬁ%?zlm e 2 1478 1274 1042 214 4030
Land Buiidings Hardware Equipmenis Vehicles Tatal
Accumulated deprecialion
o m];g‘gﬂlﬂﬂ nsat 0 141 ERLL -1 060 121 343
WWM Tor tho ) B5 118 56 A5 15
Fﬂ:i:nm deprechatian 0 o 0 o 0 0
Dispasal 0 182 530 260 2 BB3
Rectassification a 470 [i] o 0 470
ﬁ“‘i“zg:';““ et 0 564 -700 g47 164 2285
_“ﬁi'lll-ﬂu' dapreciaton lor the 0 16 78 50 4B <249
| YBa
E::m" daptockntion a o o o i} 0
Disposal 0 o a 12 25 A0
Reciassification 0 0 0 1+ 0 o
e e [ [ [ e[ w[ am
Land Buildings Hardware Equipments Vehicles Tatal
_.lnnwnuhud impairmznt
e O I N S
Auiehiticn 0 o 0 ] 0 0
Relsase o B0 1] ] 1] a0
Disposal 0 ") o o 0 ]
Reclassification 0 618 a 7 0 628
;‘hﬂw ‘;"'""“" i -108 0 -3 0 116
Additlan ] -2 ] o 0 2
Rriease 0 o o o 0 0
Disposal 0 o 0 0 0 0
| Redlassificaion ) o o] 1] 1] ]
S C .. N —
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Land Bulldings Hardwore | Equipments Vahicles Total
Ned book value
01012017 M 1276 212 161 | 88 1 778 |
MAZ2017 a Bo1 208 152 a1 | 036
31122018 = 7] 08 439 wal o]  veoa]

Plant, property and equipment rose by HUF 372 million in net terms in 2018. The main reason
for this change is that a new branch had o be established in Paks during the expansion of the
branch netwark; in addition to this, two branches were relocated to more modern surroundings
in 2018 (Gybr and Székesfehérvar). Further conversion, renovation and network development
tasks were needed owing to the amalgamation of central functions into one office building,
alter which the Bank's former head office was sold in the summer of 2018.

As a result of organisational and preparalory work that was started earlier, the sale became
very probable towards the end of 2017 and 50 the office building was reclassified to assets
held for sale.

The contractual commitments for the acquisition of plant, property and equipment amounted
to HUF 42 million at the end of 2018. All of these were completed and capltalised at the
beginning ol the following year,

The Bank received HUF 0.5 million in 2018 and HUF 0.4 million in 2017 In the lorm of
compensation related 1o damage Irom third parties.

The Group does not have any plant, property and equipment that has temporarily been
withdrawn from use.

Gross carrying amounts ol property, plant and equipment still in use but completely written off:

31.12.2018 31.12.2017 01.01.2017 |
Land 0 i 0
Buikiings 0 28
Harthware 464 702
Enuipmants 745 677 018
Vohicis 179 36 0
Total 1 648 1405 1048

The markel value of assets still in use but completely written off is nol significant.

The fair value of property, plant and equipment measured using the historical cost model is the
same as the net carrying amount since the Bank regularly adjusts the carrying amount to
market value by means of impairment.

2|




Consolidated Financial Stalements 31, December 2008

Sherbank Hungary Lul.

dats in HUF millicn

6.6.6. Intangible assets

The Group measures its intangible assels using the cost model.

Changes to intangible assets;
Soltware Other intangibles Total
Acquisiiion cost
Opening balance as al 01.01.2017 B 194 aq 8283
Addilion a 0 0
Saparnle anquiailion 0 1] 0
Infermally ganeraled 1 704 1] 1 704
Business combiration o 1] 0
Digpasal =3 118 85 =3203
Rediassification 1] 0 (1]
Clasing balance as al 31.12.2M7 6 T80 14 6704
Adclition ] ] 0
Separale acquisition ] i D
Intornally goneraiod 2 358 1] 2 358
Buginoss combination 0 1] 0
Disposal o ] ]
Reclassification 1] 0 (1]
Closing balance as ol 31.12.2018 8138 14 8152
Sofiware Other Intanglbles Total
Accumtlated deprociation
Opening balance as al 01.01.2017 -6 602 ~88 -5 900
m.m dopreciatien lor the 656 0 656
Exiraordinary depreclation 0 0 0
lor the year
Disposal 3104 a4 3188
Reclamsifioation a ] o
ﬂmln! balance as at 31.12.2017 -4 354 -13 -4 36T
Reguinr depreclation lot the 668 g 659
Extraordinary deprociation 0 0 0
lor Ihe year
Disposal ] ] (1]
Recipssification 4] i o
ﬁnﬂn! balance as at 31.12.2018 -5 022 =14 =5 m’
Saftwara Other Intangibles Tolal
Accumulated impairment
Opening balance as al 01.01.2017 &1 '] =61
Auiclition a a 1]
Releass [} 0 o
Disposal 14 a 14
Reclassification a a ']
ﬂnlm! balance as at 31.12.2017 47 0 =47
Adeition o a 1]
Relaame o ] 0
Disposal a 0 o
Reciassification 0 i} 0
C!’enlln! balance as of 31.12.2018 47 0 =47
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Saltware: Othat intangibles Tolal
Not book value
01.01.2017 133 1 1332
S22 T 2378 ! 2 380
2208 4 06 ] A4 069

The main reason for the growth in 2018 is the software purchases, expansions and licence
renewals in the last quarer ol the year.

The Bank held the following main intangible assels in its books al the end of 2018:
- Data warehouse developments totalling HUF 557 million,
- Developments and licence fees for the Bank's core system totalling HUF 408 million.
- Projects and developments related to the IFRS transition tolalling HUF 249 million,

Gross carrying amount of intangible assets still in use but completely written off:

122018 122017 01.01.2017
Saoltwiate 525 an 38
Othwr intangibliss 12 12 a8
Tatal 537 = 385 ar4

The market value of assets still In use but completely written off Is not significant.

6.6.7. Equity investments

Interests of the Group:
Participation (%)

Equilty Investmon| Main activity MAZ2018 | 31122017 | 01.01.2017
Dithes imvestments 4
Funciimont: L'w Offer monetary mediation 1.20% 1,39% 139%
Ciarantlga Hitelgarancia 20 Other linancial services 0,13% 0,13% 0,13%
BW.LF.T, Financial fonvicoes 0.01% LS 0,01%
Viea I Financial services 0.01% 0.01% 0.01%
Carrying amount of the interests:

Equity investment Valuation method 31922018

Fundamenia- Lakiskassza Falr value ivough Othes &7

|-nkdstaknrdkpanztir £ Compohonaive Income

Garaniiga Hilelgarancia Z11, Eﬂmm&m 10

SWLFT Fair valua through Othar 0

Wisa bne. Fair vadue Ihrough Profit or Loss i1

Tolal 605
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Equity Investment Valuation method 31.12.2017 01,01,2017

Egressy Immo Kit., Cost |ess Impaiment (] 0
it pﬁm’“ Avarlable for sale 67 o7
Garantiga Hitelgarancia 2. Availale for sale 10 10
S.W.LF.T, Available for sale 0 0
Visa Ing, Aycarifabie for sale 287 224
Total 539 444

The change in the value of Visa Inc. is due lo changes in the market price and the exchange

rale.

Dividends received on the equily investments:

018

2amT

okpdneiir Zrt

Fundamentn- Lakiskagsza
Lakfatakar

35

Viga ine.

Total

6.6.8. Tax assets and liabilities

J2z0ma

220y

or.m.z2om7

Currant lax issols

Local biminess tax

12

Innavation contrititlon

2

Cotporate inpormi tax

]

Ciaren] tax asseds 1otal

183

Delamed tax assaln

]

BlolBloin|E

Toax aaselis lotal

19

31.12.2018

3322017

01.01.207

Curran! 1ax [habilifies

Local buminess (ax

0

Inrovation cantribution

0

Corporate Income tax

13

Currant tax [iabiities fotal

13

Deferred tax lsbiities

-] wle|e

0

Tax liabllitles total

8|ol8leinld

13

Since the profitable operation is uncertain in the near future, the Group does not show deferred
fax assets in its Statement of Financial Position.

The following table presents temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits for which
no deferred tax was recognised in the balance sheet.
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322018
in Diler
in Prafit or loas comprehansive
Income
Losses camed lorward, tax sliowence regarding FX rascus 68 540 0
| program
Seouiites mvallooko for sale 0 -Pi2
Tomporary diltorenoos in relakon o discropancion of HAS and 1 658 o
IFRS
Tax base modhilying Homi 1147 il
Total 71 345 -282
3112.2017
in Dihor
In Profit or lass comprehensive
o Incame
Losses camied forward, tax allowance mgarding FX resous 60 403 0
| program
Seourities availlable for sale 3 0 424
Temporary (dllorencos in nelalitn b difcrepencies of HAS and
RS 2487 i}
Tax base modilying Homs 1210 a
Total Ta100 -A24
01.01.2017
in Other
in Profit or loss
incomo
Losses carned fomward, tax allowsnce megarding FX rescus e 0
| program
| Suclirities available lor sals 1] 383
Toemporary dilferences in relation lo discrepanaies of HAS and
IFRS . 2198 bi]
T faase rmeoedllydngg ltisms 1 648 L]
Total 73473 =303
Loss carried forward and tax allowances by expiry:
M.A2.2018
amaunt of 1o allowancs ro FX program withoul sqpikation 27
mmiLnd with axpimtion 1031, 12.2025 60100
amount with expirabon il 31,12.2021 a
amount will expirstion 031,12 2002 &
amolnl with epiration bl 31.12.2021 4180
aanLind will expiration 1l 31,12 2020 4002
Tolnl 68 540
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6.6.9. Derivatives

Derivatives by type:
31.12.2010
Mominal value | Maminal value Net position Posilive Negative
lassets finbilities fair vibue falr vigue
Exchange traded deals 0 0 0 0 0
OTC deals
Inerest rate swaps. 91518 41 518 1] 1 084 -535
Interest rale options 3286 -3 208 ] 5 -6
Basiz swaps ] 0 0 4] i]
F¥ options 0 o 0 1] i
FX awaps 22670 22472 198 7 104
FX forwards g 284 -8 341 <57 53 A7
Index options ] 0 ] 0 il
Tolal 126 768 =126 627 141 1219 -7z
31.12.2017
i . m-hmw“ Netposition | Z0TNe | e
Exchange traded deals B 0 0 0 0 [l
OTC doals
Interagt rate swaps: T3 445 -73 118 a7 480 -Bd1
Interoed rivte oplicns 0 0 1] 0 ]
Blanin swiaps 1] 0 1] 0 0
FX optiong 65 T7 =11 28 .33
FX swips 4216 -4 198 16 27 42
F¥ faremrds 6425 -6 470 54 18 T
Index optivns 700 o 700 0 0
Total B4 852 B3 B72 880 583 -857
01.01.2017 B
Nominal value | Nominal valve | position Poslitive Negative
lassels Ainbilities fair value | fair viaue
Exchange tradod deals 0 0 o [\ 1]
OTC deals
Interos! mie swaps 51583 51 276 207 467 -G48
Interest rale options 0 ] o 1] 1]
Bidis EWips 28 461 -28 358 103 ] ]
FX aptions g 817 T 66 -B6
FX swaps 33 333 -33 547 214 333 206
FX larwirds 3 387 a1 420 33 2681 253
Indizx options 700 a 700 0 1]
Total 145 988 -145 118 LT 1127 =1 471
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Derivative assets broken down by maturity:

i 31322018
* Upto 3 manths |3 monthsto tyeur | 1105 yoars mmnﬁ Total
Inferesl rate swaps 50 000 2 660 19209 19 GEG a1 518
Inferest rate opliong B o 1] 336 0 3 296
Banis swaps o (1] o £} o
FX oplions ] 0 o 1] o
FX swaps 13 861 B 700 ) o 22670
FX forwands 4118 3858 1206 4] 0 284
Indizx aptiong 0 o 0 o 0
Total 66 080 15328 23 19 568 126 760
122017
P e Up to 3 months | 3 months 1o 1 year | 110 5 yoars “m‘ Total
Interas! rate swaps 143 5683 67 622 0 73 445
Interes! e oplions ] a 0 i i}
Bass swaps o n [t} 0 ]
FX ophons 54 7 1] 1 G
FX swaps 2757 1419 o n 4216
FX lorwands 2142 Jaqp2 o i 6 425
Indox aplions 0 700 1] a TO0
Total 5930 1120 67 522 0 a4 852
ot.01.207
" vy Up to 3months |3 months to 1 year | 110 5 years "“mﬁ Total
Imlizrent rabe Swas r] a5 47 224 419 51583
Inferest rale opfions o 0 1] i o
Blasils swiaps Tarn 20780 o 4] 208 481
3% options 430 46 48 0 524
FX swaps azi1re 155 L] o Jaam
FX lonworis a 756 26 B85 G4y i} 31 387
Il opfions: ] 0 00 0 TO0
Total A5 024 Ao A48 624 4319 145 86D
Derivative liabilities broken down by maturity:
N.A2208
Upto 3 monthas |3 monthato 1year| 1105 years “"ws Total
Intorost rale swaps &0 000 2660 19 286 16 564 01518
Interest rate options 1 0 3206 i 4296
sy swaps a n 0 i o
FX optians i 0 ll i 0
FX swaps 13 85h B517 ] 1 22ar2
FX forwnrds 4112 287 1250 0 93
Index options 1] 0 '] o 0
Total 68 6T 15 156 3 835 18 569 126 627
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Sherbank Hungary Lid. it in HUF million
aaz2.007 -

Noninak e Up to 3 months | 3 months ta 1 yoar 110 5 years More than 5 Total
Interet ralo Swiaps 16 5 683 67418 o 73118
Inferas mie options ] i o ¥} o
Hasis swaps il 0 1] ¥} 0
FX opliong 70 7 ] 0 LLd
FX swiips 2802 1 394 (1 0 4 188
FX lorwards 2953 3528 1] i 6478
Indhee oplions a a 0 [#] 0

Total 56841 10612 67 418 0 B3 BT
oLo.2m7

i Up 1o 3 montha | 3 months to 1 year 110 5 yoars m:xnu Tatal
Interest rmle swaps 0 35 46 B85 4 278 51 276
Irterest mie oplions a 0 0 0 a
Basis swaps Tm 20 ga7 1 [i] 28 358
F¥ aplions 429 an 44 0 17
FX swaps a3 3m 156 ] 0 33 547
F¥ larwards a7 27 paz2 B5(0 n a1 420
[ndox aptions 1] 0 ] 0 ]

Total 45 269 AT 808 A7 664 4276 145 118
6.6.10. Other assels
Jaz22018 | Mazz2097 | 0101207
Mot book value
Othar linanclal assots 1784 1750 1 A54
Other non-financial assets 109 106 480
Totul 1895 1 856 2334
Composition of other financial assels:
31.12.2018 I.A2.207 01.01.2017
Cther financial assets
Business suppor receivablos 147 333 20
Recevables from the stale 14 18 14
Receivables from deferred paymaents 53 62 b2
Plastic cands selllements 124 2965 218
Dithar sotfiemants A4 a1 146
Advances L 42 28
Initial fair value difference of FOS loans a57 543 484
Propaid expenses and accruad incoma T 426 880
Total 1842 1752 1 856

ki
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. 2.ama N7 0101207

Impairment on other linancial pesets
Business suppor! recelvabies
Fecolvablos om the st
Recalvablus from defarred payments
Plastic cards settiemants
Cihar sulflemants -
Advances
Initial fai valus differance of FGS fans
Propaid exponios ned sooned income

Tatal

d:nuﬁ

Rjojlojo|ojojo|ajh

.2-

0
0
0
0
[
(1]
o

2

tnn'

Composition of other non-financial assets:

31922018 31922017 oLm.z2my
Other non-linancial asscis
Fmw riatoriaks and mveniory k1111 106 540
Collaterls token info posserson 0 13 13
fecotvablos on oporating Thxim in 7 a9
Qihar non-financial assets 1 0 0
Total 108 125 562

I 22008 | 322007 | 01012007

Impairment on olhar non-linancial assots

Raw matorials and invaniony [t} -18 82
Coltnteraky takon info passesalon a ] il
Rscalvatsas on operating laxkes 1] i i]
Oitherr - linancinl sazets o o i}
Total [i] el B2

In 2018 the sale of plots of land in Szombathely which were previously pledged as collateral
for loans and laken into possession when the barrower defaulted became very probable,
therefore they were reclassilied into the held-for-sale category.

6.6.11. Non-current assels and disposal groups held for sale

Compositian of assets held for sale:

nazanma Nnazany 0012007
Land and buidings 1 857 0
Total 13 857 0
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Changes to assets held for sale:

Land and
bulidings | "o
Opening balance as at 01.01.2017 0 0
Aeclussitication into Hld lor sale catogary 557 557
Sah g o
Cilosing balance as al 31.12.2017 557 557
Reclassification into Held for sale calegory 13 13
Sale 357 -557
Closing balnnce ns 81 31.12.2018 13 13

In 2017 the Bank reclassified its former head office into property held for sale, as it met the
criteria required by IFRS 5:

- the Bank intention was principally the sale of the assel rather than continuing use;

- on reclassification the asset was available lor immediate sale;

- negotiations were under way with a potential buyer.

The head office was sold in the summer of 2018.

In 2018 the sale of plots of land in Szombathely which were previously pledged as collateral
for loans and taken into possession when the borrower defaulled became very probable,
therelore they were reclassified into the held-for-sale category.

6.6.12. Liabilities to credit institutions

Liabilities to credit institutions are recorded initially al fair value and subsequently at amortised
cosl.

Balances of liabilities to credit institutions:

31.12.2018 3122017 01.01.2017
Liabilitles dus to central banks ' 16 585 23 644 24079
Up o ! year 15857 23 644 24 079
1 1o 5 years 628 ] ]
Mare than 5 years 0 0 1]
Liahilitles due to other eradit institutions 18 353 18 ga7 38 086
Ug o 1 yiear 634 BEE 27 247
1 to & yoars 10 341 B 905 A1
Mare than 5 years 7378 g 24 10 428
Tatal 34 938 42 631 62 165
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6.6.13. Liabilities to customers

Liabllities to customers are recorded initially al lair value and subsequently al amortised cosl.

Balances of liabilities to customers:

22018 32207 01.01.2017
Linbilithes due to corporate customems 182 528 162 170 131 818
Lp fo 1 ysar 174 942 162 584 117 322
1105 years 7 586 186 14 1986
Miota than 5 yoam fl 1] 0
Liabllitles due o private customers. a2 Ta B2 322 a7 315
Up to 1 year A2 388 a1 959 B4 384
1 1o 5 yaars A0 1= 28
fiore: than 5 years 1] o [i]
Totnl 265 310 205 02 218 633

6.6.14. Debt securities in issue

Issued bonds are recorded Initially at lair value and subsequently al amortised cost.

Liabilities due to issued bonds:

31.12.2098 | 31422017 | 00127
Dbl securitios in isaue
Up to 1 year # 629 a6 1 0
1 lo & yenrs | 348 4138 4 0p5
More than 5 years 0 0 0
Total 4177 5119 4985
Information on issued bonds:
Bond Startdale | Maturity date m;: Currency "‘“‘w’" ﬁ_m_:f';i';
VICTORIA 2 2009.04.01 2018.04,01 B34 | EUR 50, 00% Y]
VICTORIA A 2009.07.01 2015.07.01 452 | EUR 30,00% 580
VICTORIA 4 2009,12.01 2019.12.02 oa5 | EUR A0, 0% 1 308
VICTORIA 5 2010,02.01 2020.02.01 285 | EURA 40,00% 357
VICTORIA 6 2010.05.03 2020,05.01 ar9| EUR 25,00 3ay
VICTORIA 7 2010,07.01 2020.07.01 23| EUR 35,00 a1
VIGTORIA § 2010.10,01 2020,10.01 140 | EUR 35,00% 178
Total a177

The Bank fully repaid the Victoria 1 bond maturing in 2018.

T4
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Bond Startdale | Maturity date ‘:_m Currency '“rmﬂ" mim;'
VICTORIA 1 2008.09.01 |  2018.08.09 673| HUF 50,00% 381
VICTORIA 2 2008.04.01 2019.04,01 G2S EUR 50.00% A
VICTORIA 3 2008.07,01 20180701 450 ELR 30,00% 570
VICTORIA 4 2008.12.01| 20181202 841| EUR 40,00% 1
VIGTORIA & 20100201  2020.02.01 323| EUR 40.00% 419
VICTORIA & 20100503 |  2020.05.01 351| EUR 25 00% 410
VICTORIA 7 20100701 | 2020.07.01 362| EUR 35,00% 436
VIGTORIA B 2010.1001|  2020.10.01 146| EUR 25.00% 179
Total 5119

Band Staridate | Maturity date | horine | Cumency | e m:;g;
VICTORIA 1 20000001|  2m8.09.03 673| HUF 50.00% 841
VICTORIA 2 20000401|  2019.04.01 64| EUR 50,00% 878
VIGTORIA 3 20080701 |  20M8.07.01 472| EUR 30,00% 566
VIGTORIA 4 20001201 |  2019.12.02 958 | EUR 40,00% 1 202
VIGTORIA 5 20100201 | 2020.02,01 324| EUR 40,00% 404
VICTORIA & 2010.05.03 20200501 a2 EUR 25.00% 398
VICTORIA T 2010.07.01 2020.07.01 353 EUR 35,00% daa
VICTORIA & 2010, 70,01 2020.10.01 147 EUR 35.00% 173
Total 4 885

* Interest rates relate to the whale term of the bonds, they are not annual inlerest rates.

Changes result on the one hand Irom changes in the exchange rales, on the other hand Irom
repurchases.

Loss on repurchase of bonds totalled HUF -5 million in 2018 and HUF -41 million in 2017.

6.6.15. Subordinated liabilities

Subordinated debl is recorded initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cosl.
Composition of subordinated debl:

22018 JraazoT 01.01.2007
Subordinated debi
Up 1o 1 yoar [} a 12 301
110 5 years ] 0 o
Mare than 5 years 2062 B T4z B Bo4
Tatal 9 062 B T4z 21106
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Information on the individual loans:

Haminal
Lender Start date ":Eh‘r amount in | Currency Imterest rale hg: ::::g 'l
currency g
Bborbank Europr AG 2015.07.27 225.07.27 | 15 000 DOO ELIR aM EURIBOR » 3.63% i B51
Sborbank Eumpe AG 2016.04.11 20240031 | 13000000 EUR | 3M EURIBOR + 3.63% 4211
Tatal 8 n&2
Haminal
Lender Stait date “;m"' amount in | Currency Interest rate ‘:';'l‘ ‘:'z';l';
currency =
Sharbank Eumpe AG 201507.27 | 20250727 | 15000000 EUR | 3M EURIBOR + 3,63% 4 680
"E_bu:hlit_?mlipuﬁﬂ 2016.04.11 20240401 | 13 000 000 ELIR a8 EURIBCHA + 3,63%: A N2
Total B 742 |

In November 2017 the Bank repaid the subordinated loan received from Sberbank of Russia.

Haminal
Lender Start date “ﬂw amount in | Curreney Interest rale m:;fg#
currency ;
Sharbank Eumpe AG 2NME07.27 H25.07.27 | 15 000 000 ELIR A ELRIBOR + 6.5% 4 T18
Sberbank Eumpe AQ 20160401 | 2020400 | 12000000] EUR | IMEURIBOR + 4.9% a4 DeG
Bbarbank of Russia 20020215 | 2097.01.01 | 42500000 CHF | 3MOHF LIBOR « 2.33% 12301
Total 21106

6.6.16. Provisions

Provisions for contingent liabilities and commitments related to off-balance sheet

lending

As part of its universal banking activity and in addition to opening credit lines the Bank also
offers its customers financial guarantees as well as lelter of credit facilities. Financial
guarantees means furnishing bank guarantees lor various purposes, while letters of credit
salisly the needs of a special group of customers, so they are small in number but stable.

The rise in the portfolio of credit lines at the end of 2017 was a sign ol the lending boorm in
2018, and in the course of 2018, mos! of the facilities opened in 2017 were used and became

exposures on the balance sheet.

Future and contingan! liabilitles 31.92.2018 | 31122017 | 01007
cradit fnas 45 208 75 368 40 432
provisions lor credlt lines -168 -358 -1B6
financial guarcanises 34 526 28 007 16 264
provisions for Brancial guarantees -282 141 -156
listbar of credtis 34 07T 31 308 35 045
piovisions for lelled of crédits 28 22 -1B
Total 113321 134 252 91381
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Accordingly, the provisions for off-balance sheet credil risks dropped at the beginning of the
reporting year too, but this was also caused by the transition to IFRS 9, which brought about a
one-off fall in the portfolio of HUF 261 million (see Section 6.5 First-time adoption of IFRS).
The provisioning data for the reporling year in the table above are figures under IFRS 9, while
comparative information is calculated in accordance with the rules of IAS 39.

From here onwards, in the detailed statements in this section reporting-year provision data are
figures under IFRS 8 and are presented in the following breakdown

- 12-month expected credil loss (stage 1)

- lifetime expected credil loss (stage 2) and

- credit impaired (stage 3),
while comparative data are calculated under IAS 39 and are broken down by

collective and

- individual
assessment category.
The tables below present off-balance sheet maximum credit risk exposures broken down

according to the Bank's internal credit rating system and the expected credit loss calegories
al the end of the reporting year.

Off-balance sheet exposurms broken down by a1.12.2018
the internal credit ratlng system categories and | 12 month | Iifetime Iimpaired impalred
the categorios of expected credil loss (EGL) ECL ECL assals assols
collective | collective | collective individual Total
cradil linon 44 128 590 3 A8% 45 206
Parlorming 44 128 581 ] ] 44 708
high grade < B&a 45 0 ] 233
slnndand grode 25 547 5 1] ] 25 602
avrago grade 13505 J96 7] 0 14 301
Dok Avarape grads 1758 136 +] 0 1
i papired 0 0 n 0 (7
M porfareming 0 g 3 485 407
standard geade 0 0 0 o 0
pvaTage grade 0 1] 0 0 [}
bolow average grate 0 g 0 0 9
impaied 0 0 3 [T 488
flinancinl guarnnises 13 037 50 0 34 526
Parloming 33 929 50 0 0 33978
high grade B 158 [ [ 0 B 1548
standard grnge 20 BS0 o ] 0 20 850
BVErAgE grade 4973 0 (1] (1] 4 573
bolow average grads 148 50 0 0 184
Nan partorming ] 0 o 539 547
standard grade i 0 0 0 0
AVETANE grac ] 0 0 n (i
impaired 2 ] 0 53g 541
letter of credits 34077 ] o o 38077
Parlomming a4 p17 0 ] i 34 077
standard grade J3775 0 0 i} 33 TS
below average grade 302 i i 0 302
Nan parfarming 0 0 1] 0
slandard grade 0 0 o 0 0
averaga grade 0 0 0 ] 0
Total 112 142 (0] 3 1024 113 BO9
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Oft-balance sheel exposures broken down by Ja2.2m7
thie internal crodit ratlng aystem calegories and
the categories of expected credil loss (ECL)
collective | Individusl Total
credit lines 75 384 4 75 360
Performing 75267 0 75297
high grade B 880 (] # BE0
stnndard grace 16 052 L] 36 852
avirags grads 28 421 0 28 421
elow nverage grads 1 nad i) 1 a4
frmpsied i 1] (]
Non perfarming &7 4 Ld]
sinncard g 4 ] 50
mmg-;muh 5 a 5
balaw mverage orads {1 a 0
impakod 3 4 7
financial guaranices 28 nay B0 28 097
Pariarming 27 964 0 27 964
high grade 10547 0 10507
standard gracie 14977 0 14977
verage grade 2248 fi 2240
ol avtirage grade 11 o 141
Mon pestomming 73 B0 133
standatd griede 70 ] 70
nvorags rada 2 ] 2
impalred 1 50 61
letter of oredils 31 308 ] 31 300
Peadming 31 015 i} 31 615
mmm arois 0 31 015
below avarage (radi o [} o
Mon partarming 203 1] 203
slandard grisdo 27 o 276
Bvinge grade 17 i} 17
Taotal 134 708 64 134 773
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Sherbank Hungury Lid,
Off-balance sheal exposures broken down by DLoaomT
the internal credil rating sysiem calegories and
the categories of expected credil loss {ECL)
coflective | Individuasl Total
credil lines a0 265 167 40 432
Parlorming 40 184 115 40 209
high grade 67 0 &7
stendard grada 24 635 L] 24 835
average grade 14 669 115 14 784
below averape grada C1E] 1 813
impalted 0 0 [y
Non performing a1 52 133
standard gride a 15 15
nvemge grode 5 o 5
below average grade 3 o 3
Impalred M 37 110
financlal guaranteas 16 136 128 16 264
Parlomming 16 088 o 16 038
high gradke 1 247 [ 1247
standard grade 957 0 8573
average grade 5174 0 5174
Bk vesrape grade 104 o 104
Non performing 38 128 166
slandard grade 0 50 50
average grade a5 o a5
Impaired i ;] a
letier of credits 35 045 i 35 pas
Parlorming 35 pa5 0 a5 045
slandard grade a5 045 1] 35 045
bralonar m?grar.h 0 ] 1]
Nan parferming i [t} 0
standard grade ] o 0
Bversge grade il o 0
Totsl @1 446 285 a1 74

The following tables reveal the reporting-year changes in off-balance sheet exposures relating
to lending, broken down by category of expected credit loss at the end of the reporling year to
credil lines, financial guarantees and letlers of credit.

The main reason for the drop in credit lines was the use of such facilities, and only a smaller

portion, HUF 2,201 million, was credit lines expired without being used.
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Changes n the off-balance shest axposures I1.122018
braken down by the 12 manth Iifatimie Impaired Impaired
expected credit loss (ECL) calegories ECL ECL assets assels
crodll lines colleclive | colleclive collective Individual Tatal
apaning balanoe 74 804 452 8 4 5 360
W OENOSIrES during thi year f 155 20 o 0 B175
dorncadnisod m malund ] ] 1] 1] 2 24
doregnolsed as unnd e -35 245 -163 A8 114 35 342
ol o] 0 o e 129 0
reclassification o 12 month ECL calegory 423 -3049 24 o ]
macingsification o lilebme ECL calogory L (Ll 5 1] o
reclassilcation o impaired calegory -4p2 A5 202 245 i
athar movermats (FX ranstation, nounding) 1 258 1 -1 -7 1249
closing balando 44 128 g0 4 485 A5 206
No financial guarantees were claimed al the Bank in 2018,
Changes In the off-balance sheel exposures 31.12.2018
braken down by the 12 menth | liletime Impaired impaired
expecied crodit loss (ECL) cotegories ECL ECL assals assols
financial guaraniees collective | collective collective Individual Tolal
apening balance 28 087 i o 0 28 097
new exposues during the year 16747 3 -1 35 16 714
daroeognised as milred 10815 1] i [i] -10 815
dorognoised as usod 0 0 n a a
reclassification belween collaclive ard P2 & = s n
individual categonies
realassilication lo 12 manih ECL category 18 -19 a o o
reclaasilication fo lfetime EGL calegory 66 ] 1] i 0
realassiligation o mpaired calegory -b77 0 6 &7 -1
olher movemenis (FX iransialion, rounding) 532 ] o A 531
closing balancey 33 907 50 0 539 34 526
Chanpgas in the off-balance sheet exposures 31.12.2018
broken down by the 12 month | lletime Impairad Impaired
expecied credl! loss (ECL) calegories ECL ECL asseln assels
lettor of crediis collective | colleclive |  collactive | individual Talal
opening balance 31 308 1] i 1] 31 308
new exposuren daring the yoar a1i0@ 3 1] 1] 3106
derncognised as matred -453 ] 1] 0 -453
deregnolsed as usod -1 062 1] i} o -1 062
roclussification between colledtive and 0 a 1 o o
| individual categories
ieclpasification lo 12 month EGL ealsgory 0 ] i} o 1]
maclassificatian lo Heatimo ECL category 0 0 ] 1] n
ieclnasification 1o impaired calegory o {1 i ] i}
ity movimands {FX tranalatian, rounding) 1175 | fl 0 1178
closing balanca 3Mo7y a 0 o 33077
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The following tables show the provisions lor olf-balance sheet exposures related to lending,
broken down according to the Bank's internal credil rating system and the expected credit loss
categories. Comparative information shows the provisions calculated under IAS 39.

Provislons lor off-balance sheet
broken down by N.12.2018

the internal credit rafing syslem calegories and | 12 month litetime Impaired impaired
the calegorios of expacted crodil loss (ECL) ECL ECL assols
collective | collective collective

1

Total
168
110

credil lines
Parloiming
high grade
standard grode
nverge gride
bedow average gride
imipakred
Nan perfarming
standard grade
DVIFRgE Qrivte
vl avernge grada
impaired
financial g.lnnhn
Parlaming
high orada
standard grode
averige grade
below average grade
Nean purtamm-_
standard grade
average grade
impairad
letter ol cradiis
Parlanming
stnndard gride
balow average grade
Nan paroming
slandard grade
average grada
Contingent liabilities and commitmenis 1otal

8

[

.
-

Blololola|BlBBlclolalolu|®|8sl3|3]cla]ols]olc]a]a
alalelalatalalatalalalal-lalalalslalalalalalalalslslalalule
alalalalalatstatatalalslutelotalstalalalalalalalulalalals
3lolelelelelalelBlalelBlelelololeBlglelolelElelalalololsl
Blololo]o|nln|n|Blolc|Bls[nlg]c]2(Blglc|sls|8lo|2|2|2]w
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Provisions for off-balance sheet

braken down by

the Intetnal crodit rating system calegories and
the categoriens of expected credil loss (EGL)

2207

credil lines
Ferforming ;
high gradn 43
sinndied grade 164
AvVaTage gfade 149
balow average grado 1
lmpnired o
Mon parioming 1
sinndarg grade 1]
avarngo grade 1]
below avarags gade o
1
[
02

collective | individual Total
i)
ast

g25l8

—ﬂﬂﬂ—'ﬂ—a

Iimipatired
financlal guarantees L
Patforming |
Igh Quice:
shandard gtade
Average grade
Lealcowe s g grada
Mon performing
standard grade
avorago grate
Impatiod
letter of crodtis
Parforming
wtandind grmde
below average grady
Mon patlaiming
slandird grade
avErane grade
Provisions lolal

1a

ololalalB|BIBIglalalg|-|lalzlslR

Hl:ll:l-n|:l-l:lnﬂaaﬂgnnunnﬂnnuunnnununu

BlololalolginlBliclalalal-lolalz
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mm’:’;"mm shont 01.01.2017
the intemal credil rating sysiem categories and
the catogories of sxpocted credit loss (ECL)

collective | individual Total
It
41

8

cradit lines
Perlorming
high grada
l.t;nd:mi grade
BYETBQO gace
below average grads
impaired
Man performing
standard gradae
EvErDgE gride
below avermge grada
impaired
financial guaranises
Parlorming
high grada
sinndard grado
average grade
below average grads
Man perlaming
standard grade
AVEIEgE grace
impaired o
Iefter of crediis 18
Perlomming 18
slandard gride 18
below rvarage grads o
han parfonming a
slandard grado a
AVETAEH Qraca a
Provisions lolal 209

2

9
=

Eﬂnﬁg—aununuiﬁni

Jlglslalzlzlalalglllalalalalal<lglgls

e |
=

H—- —_
ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂdﬂ aloja|aaioaajo|o|o|alaljc

g . Y
=R E=-Ri-RE=R1- Hi--E§- ]

g

The following tables show the reporting-year changes in provisions for off-balance sheet
exposures related to lending, broken down according to the Bank's internal credit rating system
and the expecled credil loss categories. In light of the low interest rates, the impact of
discounting the pravisions for long-term transactions is negligible and so this is nol presented
on a separate row and is not reclassified to interest expenses.
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Changes in tha provisions 31.12.2018

broken down by the expocied 12month | lifetime Impairod Impatred

credit loss (ECL) categories ECL ECL assols assals

aredil lines collective | collective | collective Individunt Tolul

opening balsnce 158 L] 3 ] 166
W ExposLras during [he yaar 13y 2 2 az 173
derecognised as malurod =148 -4 -4 ) 141
thuii 1o thange In oredit risk &7 1 -2 25 -33
due fo unwiring of discoun o 0 ] 0 0
ecinasification to 12 month ECL catigory 5 | -2 L] 0
rectassification to lfetme ECL calagony -1 1 i} 1 ]
reglassification o Impaired lml'yyI i] ] o 1 1]
shangos in EGL measuraman! macl, " g o p 3
asgimptions and nputs
ol movamdanta (FX iransiation,
irpres! accruals) 1 I 0 | 3

closing balance 108 2 o 58 1608

The epening amounl of provisions for credit lines in 2018 is lower by HUF 192 million than its
closing amount in 2017 due to the fransition from IAS 39 to IRS 9.

Changes in the provisions
broken down by the expocied
credil loss (ECL) calegarios
financial guarantess

12 manih
ECL
colleclive

ECL

|

.12.2018

Impalred
nsuels
individual

§

opening balanoe

i

W EpIsUTeE duting e year

&b

dorecagnisod as melurad

e 1o chinga in crodi risk

181

due 1o mwnndlng ol dscoint

meclassilication o 12 manth Eﬂ.-miqgmr

recinsaification 1o ilalima ECL calegony

reclassificafion o impaired calagory

changes in EGL memsuromn| modal,

o |hjolole

o |Nasjala

.J;L'!".M&WJ%E
aothes movemenis (FX mnsbadion,

interest accrials)

cloaing balanco

=l D | = ooDoic|o|loco|-

(-2 -1 Z | oeo|lo| ool

an naacoghﬁj

The opaning amount of provisions for financial guarantees in 2018 is lower by HUF 70 million
than its closing amount in 2017 due to the fransition from I1AS 39 1o IRS 8.

Changes In the provigions
broken down by the sxpacied
orodil loss (ECL) categories
lutter of crodits

12 month
ECL
collective

N 20e
impaired
nasols
collective

impalrod

individual

Total

opEning balance

now oxposuras during the yoar

12

derecognised as maiued

thun to change In credil rigk

thum o urmasnching of dmcount

mthEMhEﬁLm

malassilication o ilatme ECL catagony

molassificalion (o mprired catogory

oD olo |9

(- AN -Al-BE-NE-SE-BE=0E-]

= = == =0 -RE-0F_

=g
ololololdlulizm| B

£l
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changes in ECL measuremant modal,
ficiin sk iniint 1] ] o 1] L]
othar moveamenis (FX imnskaiion, | o 1
interest aconual)
closing balance 28 o o [i] 28

The opening amount of provisions lor letter of credils in 2018 is higher by HUF 1 million than
its closing amount in 2017 due to the transition from IAS 39 to IRS 9.

The following tables show the changes for the year prior to the reporting year in provisions for
off-balance sheet exposures related to lending. Comparative information shows the provisions

calculated under 1AS 39.

Changes In the provisions broken down by
IAS 19 calegories

credii lines

colleciive

a2y

Individunl

Total

opening balance

41

186

aflocation

a2

rolaage

=100

dua 10 wiwinding of discount

olher (rounding)

closing balance

§lolc|8lR|E

-I-D'ﬂ‘gﬂ-

Changes in the provisions broken down by
1AS 39 categories

finencial guarantees

collective

a2t

apening balance

111

allocation

releasn

dus 1o unwinding of discount

~lelBlizla

ofhar (rounding)

closing balance

102

.
ﬂnnﬁn

Changes in the provisions broken down by
1AS 39 calagories

letter of credils

collective

na2am7

Individunl

Talal

opening baloncs

=5
&=

allneation

R

relaase

=

dhue to urwinding of descount

olhar {rounding)

closing balance

ojojajojoio

Hﬂﬂ

85
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The lollowing tables reveal the off-balance sheeal exposures related to lending broken down by

geographical region,

Ofi-balance sheo! expasures by 3122018

fiengraphical reglon Domastic Fusala EU Other Tolal
ek (ihes 8 a0 2 4 826 1 B84 45 2018
financial guarenises 22 558 11 552 416 0 34 524
Iestier o crodits 34077 0 L] 0 34 07

Total 85 0289 11 654 5142 1984 113 800

Oft-balance shool exposures by 2207

prographical region Damantic Runnia EU Othar Total
credl lings 0 384 1] 4 Bit 3 75 368
Tindngial guorantoes 16428 11 418 1247 1] 280097
latter ol crodiis 31 308 a 0 o a1 308

Total — 17 120 11 416 6228 g 134773

Of-balanco sheol exposures by 01,01.2097

geographical region Domestic Russip EU Other Total
crodit lines 36 352 1] i 4078 40 432
financlal guarantses 12 48 4400 0 7 16 64
botler of crindils 35 045 1] ] 0 36 045

Total 84 245 3409 1 4 OB6 a1 74l

The following lables show the ofl-balance sheet exposures related to lending broken down by

division.
Cfi-balance shesl exposures broken down 31.12.2018
by Industry financial
crodit lines | guaraniees m; Tolal
| Agriculiure, lorastry and fishing 1183 M 1] 1214
Mining and guarrying a0 [t} (1] an
Manufactuing 8740 641 o 6 361
Elociricily, pna, stoam and alr condifioning supply 1121 1026 0 2147
Water supply 24 21 ] a5
Cionstruction REL 17 578 f 23 708
Wiodesale and redail e B R4 1381 ‘34077 A3 705
Tranapon and slorge 6161 56 a 6217
Accommodntion and leod senioe acthdios A53 1 3] 454
Infarmation and communication 2810 Fid a 2837
Finaincial and insurance activiies 1538 3 963 0 5 602
Fual estale activilien 2 01 0 4] 2061
Prolessianal, soientific and technical actvities 2 7o 9612 ] 12 405
Administrifive nnd suppon senvdice activities Ba6 148 o 985
Fublie adminsgration nhd dalenco, compulsarny e 1] [t} s
Education &7 1] 1] 57
Hinman heallh servicos and soclal work aciivities 167 ] o 167
Arts, anterfainmont and rocrostion 55 4 (] 54
Cithar services [ o o B4
Inchividumts 20a7 1] o 2073
Total 45 206 44 526 34 077 113 BOn
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Off-balance sheel exposures broken down aaz2m7
by Industry financial
credit lines | guarantoes m Tolal

Agriculture, foresiry and fishing 1 562 ] 0 1 562
Mining and guanmying ] 0 [i] i
Manufacturing 14 793 602 0 15 385
Elecincily, gas, steam and air conditianing supply 8332 360 0 8 62
Water supply 32 21 o 83
Construction 17 352 18 803 '] ar 155
‘Wholasake and retaidl trada 12216 1323 a1 032 44 571
Transport and siorage 6 148 75 0 6221
Accommodation and food service activitien 308 1 0 307
Irformation and communication BI6 [t o B36
Financkal and nsurance nclivities 1003 4840 276 6218
Roal estate activitios 4810 1 o 4811
Professional, scentilic and techmical actvities 3635 652 0 4 287
Adminiatrative and suppon sendoe activities 1185 280 1] 1475
Public adminisiration and defence. compusory 708 0 1] o8
Educstion B0 0 o 880
Human health services and social work activities 100 0 0 100
Arts, entertamment and recroalion 46 18 a i
Other servicas 58 13 a T
Indivedunls | 347 1] o 1 355
Tolnl 75 368 28 087 31 308 13arm
Off-balance sheel exposures broken down 01.01.2017

by Industry financial

aredil Hnes | guatanioes mﬂ' Tolal

Agriculivre, torestry and fsking 1 045 0 0 1045
Mining and quarrying 4078 0 1] 4078
Manulnoturing 6 B2 507 1] 7 a40
Elpctricily, gas, siemn and air conditioning supply 6 620 TdB a 7375
Water supply 19 21 [ 40
Construction 3a7a 722 (1] 11 598
‘Wholesale and miall rade B8 552 1 284 35 D45 44 881
Transport and siorage 1188 105 a 1283
Accommodalion and food senvice nctivitlos 227 1 1] 228
Information and communication 622 a5 o ™
Financial and insusance aclivities 4 4 781 li] 4 TRE
RAoal ontnte activities 1 dBa 231 [1] 1 695
Professional, scientific and technical activities 2587 A58 o 3045
Admmistrative and suppon service activilies 1 408 A4 a 1 B50
Public admindatration and dolence, compulsory 764 1] o Te4
Education 36 i a 36
Human health sorvices and social work activities 141 0 o 141
Arte, ontertainmont and recreation 51 14 o &5
Dither spnices 73 13 i} B
Individuals G50 1] o B56
Total A0 432 16 264 35 045 a1 T

LY



Consolidated Financial State ments 31, December 214

Sbherbank Hungary Lad. dutas in HUE million

Other provisions

The Bank records other provisions lor expected llabilities stemming from legal and other
contractual obligations if it has a presenl obligation from a past event making it probable that
it will have to make a paymen! and the amount of said payment can be quantified.

Compaosition of other provisions;

31122018 | 31922017 | 01018017

COther provisions :
Provisions for ponding lagal issuos 223 237 237
Pravisions lor plastic cand Kabilbes 4 3 2
Provisions for other liabllies 34 34 233
Total 261 264 a62

Provisions for other expected liabilities as of 1 January 2017 included HUF 65 million for the
branch closure and HUF 24 million for a fine from the National Bank of Hungary. Both items
were used in the course ol 2017,

Changes in other provisions:

| Provisions tor | Pravisians for
Provisiona for
panding lagal pligtle cand Tolad
i Insuas Habili thes alhar lisbiities
Opening
balance as at 27 3 34 264
01.01.2018
Allooation an a 1] 47
Rolaaso -1 1 i A2
Ll=a =1 -7 i B
Closing balance o
as &l 31.12.2018 22 4 k1] 261
" Provislons for Provisions for
; Provisions far
panding legal plastic card Total
N s linbilitles oiher linbilitins
Opening
balance as ol ar 2 23 462
m1.01.2017
Alociion 71 7 4 B0
Ralaasse A1 -1 -1 Az
Lise (] -5 180 -185
Oihar movemaonis (1] ] 0 1]
Cleslng batance
s 0l 31.12.2017 i 3 i %4

Gh
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6.6.17. Other liabilities

31,12.2018 | 31122007 | 01.01.2017
| Mot book value
Other finangial linbilites B a2t 3940 7206
Other non-financial Eabilities 669 767 737
Total 6 290 4757 7043

Composition of other financial liabilities:

31122008 na2.z20mv 01.01.2017
Other financial labilities
Bussines support payabies 612 E20 33
Payablis 1o tho aiate a4v ) 165
Plastc cards sattiemanis 4 z 1
Chher selliemenls 2 448 1 262 1 B8O
Advanoos ] ] o
Initial fair value dferance of FGS oans 528 740 710
Accried sxpenses and delemed income 1 683 1181 1068
Total 5621 3880 7 206

Composition of other non-financial liabilities:

i o 31.12.2018 Iazanmy 01.01.2007
Other non-tinancial llabilities
Opotating lax payablos 557 621 553
Qthar non-financial llabiiities 112 146 184
Total BES 767 737

6.6.18. Share capital

The Bank's share capital only comprises "A” ordinary shares. The shares in the “A” series are
printed, registered ordinary shares that come with vating rights. All "A" shares provide one vote
at the Bank's general meeting.

Ownership structure and breakdown of shares:

J2me n.z.2m7 001207

iw B pleces | nmount | pieces | amount | pieces | amount
Sberbank Europo AG

AT 1010 Wien Schwarzenbergplatz 3. 36 B72 JEa7| 388m A687| A6BYD| 3687
Tiirkhye Halk Bankasi

TU 06240 Ankara Eskisehir Yolu 2. Cadde No 400 40 400 L] 400 40
83 itz

Total 37 272 37T ITIN A727| 3ITIT0 3 T2T

Sberbank Europe AG raised capital in 2017, during which the Bank's share capital rose by
HUF 100 000. The capital increase was registered by the Courl of Registration on 14
December 2017.
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In 2018 Sberbank Europe AG decided to raise capital again, increasing the Bank's share
capital by another HUF 100 000. The capital increase was registered by the Court of
Registration on 4 December 2018.

There were no significant direcl issue cosls in connection with the share issues in either 2017
or 2018.

6.6.19. Capital reserve

The capital reserve contains the contributions made by owners in relation to the capital
increases.

Following the capital increases the capital reserve rose by HUF 3 138 milllon in 2017 and by
HUF 2 916 million in 2018.

6.6.20. Allocated reserve

The aliocaled reserve only contains the general reserve.

Act CCXXXVII of 2013 on Credit Institutions and Financial Enterprises prescribes that the Bank
must transfer 10% of its reporting-year profil after tax from retained earnings into the general
reserve. The general reserve may only be used o cover losses derived from operations. No
dividends may be paid from the general reserve.

The general reserve in 2017 was created from the profit after tax (HUF 498 million) assessed
in accordance with Hungarian accounting rules which differs from the profit alter tax for 2017
in these financial statements under IFRS (HUF 204 million).
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6.7 Notes to the Income statement

6.7.1. Interest income

Details of interest income:

e 207
Intarest recalvable and similar Income
Intarest Income calculated using effecttve inlerest mothod
Cash and cash squivalanis 156 129
Roceivables from crodit insfitullons 532 568
Loans and advances o gustomorg 9322 7 495
Securities 138 1 541
Ol 1] 0
Interest income calculated using ellectiva interesi method tofal 11391 o7E
ineres! Income caloulated using oiher than elleclive interest
mathod
Derivatives S48 437
Intorest income calculated using other than effective interest 248 497
mathiool lotal
Taotal 11 738 10 164

The amount of government grant received in the interest of preferential deposit facilities is
presented under 'Receivables from credit institutions'.

Interest income rose by HUF 1,6 billion (+16%) in 2018 owing to the robust growth in lending
activity. The interest income on loans disbursed to customers rose by HUF 1.8 billion (+24,4%),
while the net interest income on securities, inlerbank deposits and derivative transactions fell
by HUF -201 million.

The rise in interest income on loans is thanks to the HUF 19 billion increase in the annual
average gross lending portiolio (+8,6%), the improvement in the portfolio quality and the robust
sales resulls of personal loans and corporate financing, in which the Bank's marketl share
exceeded 4% by the end of 2018.

This all corroborates the Bank's more efficient asset management strategy, which is primarily
aimed al raising net interest income.

g1
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6.7.2. Interest expenses

Details of interes! expenses:

= i 2018 2017
Interest payable and similar expensos
Interest expengs colculped uming slloctve interes] mathod
Linbilitles 1o credli inatliuéonn L -754
Linhilitios to custommars 795 B
Dbt sacuribies in isua 176 156
Subordinatid labdlitis Bl 1 573
Oithers ] 1}
listaroad exponse ciloulited wming effecive interes! mothod Lotal -1 867 -1 pad
Interas! exponse calculntod using other than ofloaive inemest
b
Derwvalives 300 -Ad7
Intered expense o dated iming other than effecive inares B~ e
imirthiod tolal
Tatal -2 367 241

The amount ol government grants recelved in the Interest on HIRS transactions is included
under derlvative transactions.

In 2018 the amount of interast expenses lell by HUF 74 million (-3%). The average volume of
liabilities to customers increased by HUF 41 billion, while the interest paid on customer
deposits rose by HUF 295 million.

Nel value ol interes| expenses on other sources (llabilities to banks, subordinated loan capital,
derivatives, issued bonds) lell by HUF 136 million.

6.7.3. Net provision charge for loan impairment

Changes in loan loss allowance are defailed in Sections 6.6.1-6.6.4.

6.7.4. Fee and commission income

2018 2007
Fee and commission Inoome
L sl
: uﬂ nees and guatnniseg 17 589
Cash and solfloments 4 143 3936
Transactions with securities [ 26
Plaate cards opetations 025 L1 F]
Oparations wih Toreiin curmencies 2214 21
Othars 341 269
Total A 348 78N

Non-recurring fees (disbursement commisslons and contracting fees) related to lending activity
are taken into account during the effective interest calculation and thus recognised under
interes! Income. Lending business and guarantees issued row containes fees related to
overdrafts, issued guarantee lees and handling fees of government subsidies.

The primary reason lor the increase |n lee and commission income related lo paymen! servicas
is the growth in the payment services used by customers.
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In 2018 commission income increased by HUF 454 million (+5,8%): somewhat less than one-
third of this is income from lending activity, while a little more than two-thirds is the income
received from payment services. Other lee income dropped marginally.

The 7,4% increase in the number of active customers to 66 300 (+4 547 customers) contributed
to all this.

6.7.5. Fee and commission expense

208 207
Foo and commission oxpanse
:UT business and guamniees 326 166
Cash and sattismants 131 -143
Trannaotiona with securitles 0 a
Plastic carts operations -E88 -T01
Operations with forelgn ourencies -15 13
Othoms A8 A7
Tatal =1 208 -1 070

Non-recurring fees (agent commissions, appraisal and notary fees) related lo lending activity
are taken into account during the effective Interes! calculation and thus recognised under
interest income. Lending business and guarantees received row contains brokerage fees
related to overdraft loans, paid guarantee fees and other administrative fees.

Commission expenses rose by HUF 138 million (+13%) owing to the increase in items related
to lending, which were up by 96%.

6.7.6. Net trading income

2018 2017
Net trading Incorme
Oporations with forelgn cunrencles 120 (]
Darvatives 1 531 -182
Tatal 1 851 -123

In the case of the monetary HUF interest rate swaps (MIRS) with the MNB, the Bank
immediately recognises the gain from the preferential interest in profit or loss as the day-one
gain or loss impact. In 2018 this amounted to HUF 1,38 billion.

o3



Comsolidated Finpneil Setements 31, Decenber 2018

_S_b_urhunk I-ll,trngnr;uI Ltk dhata in HUF mdl liom

6.7.7. Nel gain or loss on securities

2018 a7

el gain ar loss on securilies
Trathng dabt sooteritens
[ebt securliies designated & ol valus throwgh pral of loes
Dbt ﬁmﬂlE'u'l' Tawir wanhuiiy 11iuunh olher gomgrohisnaae incoms
Debt securilies al amortised cost 3
 Divedand incomo
~ Equity insirumenls
Buy hiack of own bonds
Tatal

ﬁagstéi-
@

Income from securities dropped by 40% or HUF 178 million in 2018, The loss on the porticlio
grew on account of the higher revaluation loss due to the significant drop in markel prices.

6.7.8. Changes in allowances for other risks

Changes in reserves for other risks are detailed in Section 6.6.16.

6.7.9. Other operating income

2016

207

Other operating Inoome

Sale ol loans

1

507

284

Incema from rechanged loms

a

i

Administration and success foos

187

518

Canceled llabiiies

0

Othara

14

63

Total o4 20

The Sale of tangible and intangible assets row contains also the profit from selling the former
head olfice (HUF 499 million) in 2018 and the profit from selling of ownership and rental right
of real estates where former branches of the Bank operated (HUF 155 million) and of a real
eslate which previously was taken into possession against a default loan (HUF 12 million) in
2017,

The Administration and success lees row contains lees received Irom the parent company in

connection with closing non-performing loans that were previously sold but remained managed
by the Bank.

Partial waiver ol a loan from Sberbank Europe AG in 2017 is disclosed on the cancelled
llabilities line,
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6.7.10. Other operaling expenses

2018 2007
Othar operaling expennes

Materiats and supples -4 TB9 -4 a0
Traning costs o 44 B2
Othor administrative expenses -2 020 -1 BE4
Avarlising and marketing costs -605 565
Consulting and assurance senvices 654 -547
Toelecommunicalion expenses 332 313
Regair and malnienance costs S 114 631
Parsonnal axpansoes <5 704 -5 152
Wages and salaries -4 483 -3814
Other amployee benalils 278 -225
Soclal Sedurlily costs 960 -1 012
Changes in acerund axpanss on enused vacations 27 -1
Depreciation and amoriization -ary -8
Depreciation of tangible assols 240 308
Amartization of intangible Assels -GEE 663
Oiiher taves -3 840 -3 592
Cihira -129 235
Oithars -123 228
Mandatory deposil MsumnNoe ExpEnsoE ] i
Total <15 359 -14 352

The average headcount in 2018 was 604 people, up from the 580 people in 2017.

Material-type expenses rose by HUF 403 million (+9,2%;) in 2018.

Training cosls fell by HUF 18 million, including 53% less spent on professional books, 37%
less on internal group training and 37% less on conference lees compared to the previous
year.

In 2018 the amount of other administrative costs exceeded the previous year by HUF 72
million, which is partly due to the rise in IT costs and partly due to the higher costs of producing
bankcards.

Marketing costs rose by HUF 40 million (+7,1%) in 2018, primarily because of the 62% increase
in marketing production costs.

Advisory and insurance costs rose by HUF 107 million (+19,6%) in 2018, which is mainly due
to the higher cosls resulting from the services contract concluded with the parent company.

Despite the 44% fall in fixed-line and mobile telephone costs and the 13% drop in data
transmission costs, the 21% rise in electronic mailing costs and the 40% rise in the mass
sending of text messages meant that communication costs rose by HUF 18 million (+6,1%) in
2018.

Repair and maintenance costs rose by HUF 183 million (+19,6%) compared to 2017, mainly
because the Bank amalgamated central functions into one rented office building. This
increased rental fees by HUF 159 million. The property that previously served as the Bank's
head office was sold in 2018.

Staff costs rose by HUF 552 million in 2018, almos! all of which is down 1o the higher salary
cosis, The 4,1% increase in the headcount along with the higher staff incentives paid for sales
activity are the reasons for the higher salary cosl.
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The introduction of a new health insurance benefil pushed other stalf benefits up by HUF 45
million,

The fall in social contributions during 2018 is because the amoun! of social contribution tax
dropped from 22% to 19,5%.

Depreciation in 2018 lell by 5,6% compared to the previous year, The depreciation of property,
plant and equipment fell by HUF 80 million, two-thirds of which was related to IT and hardware
equipment, and one-third to bulldings and structures.

The increase in other taxes was attributable to the 10,4% increase in the financial transaction
tax,

Mandatory deposit insurance costs lell by HUF 1 million in 2018, the investor protection fund
fee by 9%, and the amount paid to the Claim Settlement Fund by 36%.

6.7.11. Income lax

The Group's current tax payment liability:

018 m7

| Curroni incoms faxes = .

Local bugineos lix -436 534
| Innovation contibution o1 50

GCorporaie incoma lax 0 -1
Currenl ingoma (acos (ot 447 85
Digfvrred nooma Laes i} i}
Total -497 ~385 |

The Group generated a profit before tax in both 2017 and 2018, Thal said, taking the use of
loss carry-forwards from previous years and tax ditferences related to consumer loan contracts
(FX rescue program) into account, the Group's corporate tax liability was immaterial. The
current tax payment liability comprises local taxes.

The corporate 1ax rate in both years was 9%. The calculation of effective 1ax rate is presented
below:

2018 2017

Profit beforn tax 1844 596
Tax rale e o,
Caleulated corporats income ax -166 54
Tax impact of modifying ems ] 0

Disatowed ioms a5 141

Daductible Homs 135 g4

Local busingss tax, iInnovation contriufion 447 -A04

Tempaorafy diferences due o Ienshion 1o IFRS B2

Losges canied farwiand ivm proviods yenms a2 5

Tax allpwance fegarding FX rescue program a2 5
Dirledred tax o i
Currond Incoms e axpanses -Ag7 -385
Effertive tax rals 26,94% B4, 54%,

6
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6.8 Notes to the Statement of Other comprehensive income

Since there were no disposals in either 2017 or 2018, there were no reclassifications into the
reporting-year profit or loss in connection with securities available for sale or measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income. The decrease in the portiolio is due to securities
maturing.

| 31122018
'Changes in fair value of debt securilies measured al fair value through
Other comprehansive Income
Changes in falr valus 479
Reclassification ol changes dug 1o ciadil sk changes 1o Prolit and loss 32
Changes reporied in Other comprehensive Income =447
| 3112201
Changes in Tair value of loans measured at fair value through
Oiher comprehansive Income
Changes in lalr value A5T
Recassiication of changes dus 1o credit risk changes to Profit and losa -487
Changes reported in Other comprehensive income 0

o7
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6.9 Other notes
6.9.1.

Finance lease

Future minimum lease payments:

Finance and operating lease

31.12.2018

CARES

Future mh.‘l‘l.l.ll'l'llhil'"hw "m""""'--"'ﬂ“

| ovot2017

Lip 1o 1y

1 to 5 years

v ateh

Maore than 5§ yaam

Tatal

8l=8

Glelsls

Bl 58

Present value of fulure minimum lease payments::

d.a2.2018

Ia2am7

0101207

Future minirmum lease paymanis

Ui to 1 yemr

&

I fo 5 years

Mare ihan & yoars

i
&2
a

Talal

n

=
L IE=-0E=]

g=|2|2

Met carrying amount of leased assets in the balance sheet:

ANI22018

a7

01012087

Vahicles
| Total

41

41

8%

The Bank accounted for HUF 6 million interesl expense as expenses on lease conlracts in

both 2018 and 2017.
Operating lease
Future minimum lease payments:
31.12.2018 31.12.2017 01.01.2017
Future minimum lease payments
Lip 1 1 yoar a2z 540 i)
110 5 yuars 3101 1225 1 296
Mora than & yeors 1153 1 13r 1270
Taolal 5076 2 9oz 3238

The significant increase in future minimum lease payments in 2018 is due to the fact that the
Bank amalgamated central functions into one office building, thus the size of leased office area

rose considerably.
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Lease payments accounted lor as expenses:

anie 2017
Proparly rantEl fees raz 506
Parking reatil leas 13 12
IT and agulpment rental teas 57 S8
Olhwr rgnind loes i 5
Total 743 LTl
Rentals accounted for as income:
1 :u;ia 2017
Rantal incoma | 1
Tatal 1 1
6.9.2. Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities
Nz
Gross amounl Gross amount of
Note | of financial offsetting financlal | et 3MOUM O1 | cag conataral
BEAAE linbilities
Dervative assels with netling
agreement I 106 418 GaEn itk ]
Dorivative dssots without notling
ngreement a0 f a0 L]
Gross amount Met amourit of
of offsetting ST e financinl | Cash collatoral
¥ 2L financial assels liahilitins
Desrivistive linbibios with netling
mement B3 252 139 e |
wrivistive labdines withaoul 0 a2 a2 0
 niiting agreoment
Total 65.6.9 1218 Taz 848 1415
32207
Gross amount Gross amount of
Hot amount of Cash
HNole of financlal altaetting fnancial
i frosat e lisbilities finonclal pssets collateral
Darvative nssols with nofling
reament 517 45 ara 2ra
Emllw naneds without nalling % o 48 0
| agresment ——
Gross amouni Heol smount of
Gross amount ol Cash
of ofiselting Tinanekal
Dervvativis llabilties with netting 0 808 08 1287
ol
Darvative labikites wilhou 0 104 a 0
Total 6.6.2 563 4957 1430 1 568
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2017.01.01
Gross amount Gross amount af
Mot amotind of
Nole of financial offsetiing financlal Cash coliateral
nssets labilites financial assels
anlvnlmlm wilh melling 425 204 251 0
D ivartivi anaets wilhou neding e e
| Egreemant — 2':5 0 - 2:;5. o
WL amaount
Gross amaunt ol
of oHustiing financial Cash collaterml
Sinanolsl aseels financial lablities liabilitles
Diorivativie liahililies with nating
agiesment _ 437 it 517 27
R : wml o
Tatal BES 1127 1471 1316 27
6.9.3. Transactions with related parties

The Bank considers those entities related parties which have — directly or indirectly — influgnce
aver the Bank, or which are under the influence of the Bank or under joinl control with the

Bank.

Olher related parties mean lhe companies which are in the same consolidation scope and are
not Owners or Investmenis.

Key management perscnnel are also considered related parties — transactions with them are
presented in the next section (6.9.4).

The Bank enters inlo transactions with related parties on an arm's length basis,

31.12.2018 Cwners “";H"::"‘ Total
Cash and cash eguivilonts 24417 g 171 3 BHA
Receivables from crodit instikitions a7 0 7877
Loans and advances 10 cusiomars 1] 0 0
Equily Invesimerts 0 0 il
Dervativee assots (nominal valle) B 270 0 aam
Other assals 0 il 0
Linbillties duo o banks 82 77 52
Liabillties due lo cusiomens i 105 106
Subordnated labiites 5 DE2 0 9 062
Dotivathve Habililes (nominal vilueg) 12 607 0 12 607
Dithar lisbilifims. B0 i L
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31.12.2017 Owners ““‘;ﬂ’z“" Total
Cash and cash squivalents & 284 1 368 10 652
Foceivables from credit instittions 28 280 0 28 280
Loans and advances 1o cuslomerns ] (1) 0
Equity invesiments i o o
Darivalive agsots (nominal valio) 4 088 0 4 ORA
Qther assels 52 a 52
Lighilities due to banks 485 164 B850
Liabdlities due to customens 0 127 127
Subordinated kabikies a Ta2 (1] B 742
Darvative labilities (nominal valus} 2481 a 248
Oihar llabiditios 309 ] =)
2017.01.01 Owners ""'“:ﬂ"ﬂ:"“ Tolal
Cash and cagh equivaienis 26342 64 26936
Aeceivabes lrom coedil instiluions 25 682 1] 25 602
Loans mnd Bdvances 10 cUsemes 0 o 1]
Equity invesimeanis 0 1] 1]
Darvalive assots (nominal valuo) 3 TO6 05 407M
Other astets 560 Q 560
Liabdities due o banks 26 627 55 25 582
Linbilltios dun 10 cLsiomas 0 194 184
Subordinated Rabilites 21108 1] 21105
Dervative lisbiliies (nominal valup) 33 003 270 33273
Oither liabélitioe 238 2 240
2018 Ownaers u“"'! mmu G Total

Interast recoivable and similar income 207 18 225
Interas] payable and similar axpense 340 -6 -346
Mol provialon charge for loan impairmaont 5 a &
M inferesl income minus risk provisions -138 12 <126
Foe and commisskn income o 21 21
Fooe and commission axpenso -5 -1 <d6
Mel lee and commissions incomea -35 20 -15
Ml trading income 139 L] -138
Nel gain of loss on securitios 0 0 0
Changes in allowances for other risks ] 0 a
Oiher operating ncoima 125 L] 125
Diher npataling expenses <305 A7 <322
Aesult belore kax 452 15 47T
Incom tax 0 ] a0
Profit or loss aMor tax from confinuing oporations -A0Z 15 A7T
Prafit or loss after tax from discontinued operafions 1) 0 1]
Profit or loas aMer tix -482 15 ATT
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2017 Ownaers Othar “‘; od Totsl
Inbarest rocehvabie and similar income 273 15 2HA
Interesr payabin and gimilar expense <60 14 H15
et provision charge tor loan impainmen 0 i ]
Mt (nfereat incotme minus sk provisioons 328 1 J27
Foo nid commigsion income a 12 1h
Fes nnd commission sipense a8 A1 35
Mol e and commmmions [Hcemo -3 11 20
Net trading income 140 i -140
heet gain or Ibss ai seeutitles 1] 0 1]
Changes in allowances for ofher ek 1] (i 1]
Char operating income 531 i} 533
Cihar oporating exponses 280 21 309
Rosull bolare Ltax 254 B 263
Incoma tax [t} ] 1]
Prolll or loss alber lae Trgm condiniang operatony 254 B 263
Prafil or [oss altor e from discontinuod oporatians { i} o
Profil of loss aler tax 254 -B 283

6.9.4. Compensation of key management personnel

The Bank considers the members of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board key
managemenl parsonnel.

2018 2007

Compensation of key management persannal

Shari-lern employee benefits 423 339

Post-emplaymeant banalis L 0

Othar long:torm employos bonelils 0 0

Temination benglits 0 ]

Ciftarn 0 ]
Todal 423 338

Loans granted 1o key management personnel:

Jna2.2018 | 1122017 | 01.01.2007

Loans granted lo key management personns|

Mortgage loans 53 1 B
Tolal 53 ]

_—

Loans granied lo key management personnel rose due lo the increase in the number of
Supervisory Board membaers, and not because of reporting-year disbursement.

In 2018 the Bank realised HUF 1 million interes! income on lpans to key management
parsonnel.
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6.9.5. Currency balances

The Bank's assels and liabilities by currency:

3122018
Asnsola EUR uso CHF HLUF Othors Total
Cash and cash equivalents 26 955 65184 48 27 284 1337 61808
Securifies o 5620 o 38 256 1] 43 B4
Recoivablos fiom credil institutions a4 12711 1] 824 1 22405
Loans and advances 10 Cusiomers 56933 1494 2289 167 919 0 228 635
Plant, preparty and equipmmen (1] il (3] 1408 ] 1408
Intangila pEsets a 1 0 4 063 ] 4 0B
Equity invesimenis 1] 360 1] 78 ] 438
Invvasimani propany 1] 0 '] 0 0 0
Tax assets o Q 0 13 Q 13
Dernvative assets 218 78 0 923 0 1219
ﬂl‘ﬂl‘ nssoks 273 1] 0 1622 0 1 895
&Nﬁ_.;?:r":“ln Easeis and depans grups 0 0 0 13 0 13
Tolal assels 256 853 G 184 48 27 284 1337 61 808
31122018
Linbilities EUR uso CHF HUF Othors Tolal
Linbiities dua to banks 7 8475 423 0 26 538 1 34 R3A
Liatelitias dus to cusinmarns 53 580 46 143 1035 162 697 1 454 265319
Dot socurilies in Bsua 4177 4] L] o [+ 4177
Subardinated Sabiies B 062 0 [1] o 0 9062
Provisions 166 i a 563 ] 45
Tax liabifties o ] 1] 36 ] 36
Dartvative Ratsdities 214 6 2 510 i} Ta2
Othar [labelities 1 463 688 1 4 123 15 & 250
Nﬁ'ﬂ'&mimw" and disposal groups 0 0 0 0 o 0
Tolal linbillties 77 057 AT 260 1038 194 468 1480 321 303
Mazzn7y
Assels EUR usb CHF HUF Others Tatal
Cash and cash equivalonts 13 742 8282 G189 33 146 1 604 58 263
Securities 1) B 594 i 46 878 0 a3 472
Racelvablas {rom crodll instiiulions #5118 21 936 1] | 288 i} 31 742
Loans and ndvanoos (o cuslomers 46 596 1879 2 650 148 562 o 199 350
Plard, progerty and equipment o 0 [} 1036 0 1035
Intangible assets o 0 (] 2 380 [} 21380
Equily Investmanis o 287 0 77 o 364
Invvesimani proparty o ] L] i) a [
Tax assols a ] (1] 19 a 19
Dearvalive assets a4t 12 0 205 5 563
Other assals 303 54 1] 1400 0 1856
-0
Totnl nssels 13 742 8282 G618 31 146 1 604 58 2493
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EIRFE 3T
Liabilities EUR usio CHF HUF Others Tatal
Liabilities due 10 barks 5 654 519 38 32418 F 42 651
Liablities due 1o cuslomers 61097 | a9 288 1147]  1s1an 1748 245 002
Debt soourities in zaus 4131 0 n gE2 i 5119
Subordmated Habdties B 742 0 0 0 0 B 742
Provinns 0 [ o 705 0 785
Tan Habilities 0 0 o 1 o 1
Darivasthie linhililles 4R 17 E] BEO 0 967
Dt nibililios a1 155 [ 3048 261 4 757
mwwaﬂ and digpasal groups 0 0 o 0 o 0
Total liabilities 75 269 34 679 1198| 189626 2012| 308084
2017.01.01
Ansala EUR uso CHF HUF Others Tolal
Cash and sash posvalonts 27 985 7daZ 150 18420 1 525 55 531
Saauriies 1703 0 i 65 255 o 58 958
Fecetvables from croda insautions /942 25018 1 10 77 ] 45 057
Loans and avvances to gustomers 41 505 ‘B 688 4 70 136 164 1 191 151
Pinnt, propety mnd squipment 0 0 [} | ¥ 0 1778
Intangible nasoin 1] 1) 0 1332 n 1332
Equity investmants o o ;] [ 301
Inwestmant proparty [} [} o 0 [ 0
Tax assuls 0 o [} a6 1] [T
Derivatve assats um 200 0 48 0 1127
Othor pasels 39 [} o 2 205 0 2334
wroenil Sigposs; o 0 of o 0 0 0
Tolnl assols B0 453 42 471 4952 226265 1826 | 355666
2017.01.01
Linbllitios EUR usn GHF HUF Others Tatal
Linbilitien dus o banks 10 794 460 0 50911 il B2 165
Lisbillties due to customors 6 768 a7 103 1117| 122306 1448 | 218833
Dot pocurities In ssun 4 Qi '] [1] gl i A 085
Subordinated inbikbies B BO4 ] ] 12.3Mm i 21106
Provisiong ar 0 0 785 0 g22
Tiwx \iablfitiog 4] 0 1] 13 4] 13
Detivalive labdkes A2 215 2 ¥ 1 471
Oithar liabilHies 1 148 3060 & a 602 13 Ya4a
Ewrrent labiines and dmposal gieps 0 0 0 0 0 0
| el lor sale
Total lisbilities B2017 40 BE8 1110] 191EH 1482 917337
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6.9.6. Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets and financial liabllities by measurement category:

MA2208
Al Tair value 1%?&; At Total book
“"mmm um:gulunm "Tuﬂ:d valup | Fair value
Caanh and cagsh oguivilenis 61 BOA 61 808 61 808
Securitios 10 841 32 234 1008 43 BB4 43939
FAecelvabies from credil instiutions 22 455 22 455 21 475
Loans and atanoes 10 cusiomers 127 228 508 22A GAS 221 Ba5
Equily invesimanis 361 77 il 438 438
Darvalive assels 1218 1218 1219
Other monalory nssats 1 BAS 1 BAS 1 B85
Total financkal assels 12221 32436 5675 360 334 359 409
na2200
fair valug | At tir valuo At
o o m,:n":: amorised | T2 599K | gair vaiue
and loss S Hiome cost
Linkiithen cdup lo banks 34 938 34 838 34 B4S
L|abilities due fo clstomerns 285319 265 319 265318
Dbl spcuritios in lssue 4177 4177 4 388
Subordinated kabilities a 082 8062 8223
Dervalive llabilities 732 | 732 732
CHbar Nevalisl loabibfies B 200 B280 6 250
Total linencial labilitios 732 i3 218 786 320 518 320 7187
Jri22mr
Trading Avallable for | Held to | Loans and Taotal book Falr
sale maturity | receivables value value
Cash and cash aouivilents 58 283 58 203 &8 283
Sacuritios 11 261 41 181 1 000 [*] b3 472 53 567
Recavables from credil instilubions 31 742 31 Ta2 31 742
Loans and advancen 1o cuslomers 188 380 190 300 | 204 286
Equity Imvosimonis o 364 0 0 364 364
Damvative assets 563 563 563
Ciner monaiary assols 1 BEG 1 858 1 856
Total financial assats 11 854 41 545 1175 201 281 JA5680 | 3I516M
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3123 T
Trading Available for | Held to | Loans and | Total book Fair
sals malurily | receivables walue vl
Linkiltio dum 1o banks 42 631 42 631 A2 277
Lishilities dus fo cusiomers 245 092 245082 | 244 A58
Dbl securitios i ks 5118 5118 53718
Hubardinated labilities Borag 8742 8146
Derlvative labilifies LT a57 B57
Oihvirr Bineardinl Nabidito A 78T & 757 a5
Talal financial liabilities 05T 1] 1] 306 341 307296 | J073TA
170000 =
Trading | Avaliablo for Hold 1o | Losns and | Tolal book Fair
saln malurity | recelvables valug walue
Canh and eash ogquivalents 5 5311 53 531 £ 53
Soouritiog 11735 A2 Bad 2 680 '] 6 959 Bran
Recuvables from eredd siiullons 45 057 45 057 45 057
Loans and advances o clsiomps 191 151 191 151 B 582
Equily invesimens o 301 0 0 A 301
Dorivatve assels | 127 2y 11427
Oihar monalary assals 2 234 2334 2334
Tatal financial nssals 12 862 42 g45 2823 254 073 352 460 | 357 146
- 2017.01.01 =
Trading Avollable for | Held to | Loans and | Tolal book Fair
Lisbiliies due to banks . 02 165 B2 165 | 6198
Lighilities due to cusiomers: I 216 853 218833 | 218651
Debl securities in lssun | A B85 4 085 5248
Subordmilod abibtios 21 105 05| 2rEM
Dervalive linhilities 1471 1 1471
Q_Eﬂr fimaarfind llabslties 1 T 843 7843 7843
Total financial liabilities [ O 7 0 ol  msoa| 36502 317319
Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value:
HJMME?
olal fair
Hote Level 1 Lovel 2 Lavel 3 value Cost
Sovudtios bE2
At fakt value thtough prold and koss 10 B4 ] 1] 10641 11887
Al fuxﬂlelhnggh other comprehensive income 32 234 1] (i} 42334 A2 a9
Loans and advances 1o cusiomens G648
At i vialu through offie comprahansive inoome 0 [ 127 127 127
Equity imvesimenis B.6.7
AL fak valug throtigh ol and kess a 0 361 a8 211
Al Tk vighom Intsugh olher comprehansive income 0 ] s i b
Dasvatve azsols 6689
AL Tigie vl thratigh profd and loss i} 1218 0 1218 4]
Financial assots measured al fair valoe A2 875 1210 565 44 658 a5 101
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a.92.2008
Tatal fnir
Mote Leval 1 Lol 2 Lewvel 3 value Coat
Damvative labiitas 6.6.8
Al talr valua throwgh profit and Ioss 0 7a2 0 732 1]
Finanolal llabilities measured of fair value (1] Taz ] Ta2 i}
Jaz2m7
Note | Levelt | Levelz | Levela | Toual i Cosl
Securilies 662 11291 0 0 11291 11890
Trading 41181 1] i 41181 41 585
Avidlablo lor nade
Eauity Instrumernls 6.6.7 0 o 0 0 0
Trading 0 0 A64 364 272
Ayziablo for sale
Dervative asseis 6.6.9 0 563 1] 563 0
Trading Sz 4712 563 364 53 388 54147
Financtal pssats moasured al fair value 11 281 0 ] 112 11880
3az2017 a
Mote | Levell | Levei2 | Leveld Tﬂr Cost
Darwvative inbilifies 68.6.9
Trading 0 957 0 957 [
Finangkal liabilitles measured al fair value 0 857 o as7 1]
20M7.01.m
Total falr
Haota Lavel 1 Level 2 | Level3 wive Coal
Socuritios B6.6.2
Triafing 11 7% 0 o 11 735 11 850
Availntile for saka 42 Bad 4] o 42 544 42171
Equity insiruments B.5.7
Trading 0 0 0 0 [
Avnilabilo for sabe ] 0 am 301 299
Darvalive assols 6.6.8 f
Tradfing 0 1127 0 1127 o
Finaneial assots measured at falr value 54 279 1127 a0 55 707 54 380
2007.00.01
Note | Level1 | Level2 | Level3 Tﬁu‘* Cosi
Dervative Rabdities 6,59
Trading 0 141 ] 1 471 [V}
Financial liabilities measuwred al falr valuo [} 141 o 1471 1]

Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value:
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31122018
Nate | Leveld | Levelz | Lovels | TOM I | gooy yue
Cash and cash ogquivalonts 6.6.1 22T m3ea| 17682 B1 B0 61 808
Securies 6.6.7

Al nmaonisad cost 1 064 1] o 1064 1009
Recobvables from crood inptitulions A3 0 o 21 475 21475 22 456
Loans and advances to cuslomiss 6.6.4

Al srmiiisad cont ] 0| 2320m 23201 1l 1
Expuity investments 6.6.7

Al amorised com ] ] o 0 1]
Othar linancial assals B0 1] o 1 BES i Bas 1 885
Financinal nssets measursd al amorissd cosl 23708 21392 231 3833 M5 802

322018
Note | Levalt | Level2 | Leveld T"“" toir | Bpok valun
Linbilltos due o banks 6612 i S50 04 306 ad B45 34 904
Linbiflties due 1o coetomen 6.6,13 ] n| 265319 265318 854
Db securiiies in issus G.6.14 ] ] 4388 4388 4177
Subardinniod labiliion 66,15 (1} [\ g 223 g2 9 (a2
Ofivar financial llabilllies 6617 [} (1] 6 200 6290 G290
Financlal liabilities measured o omoriised cost (i} B3B| 310526 320 065 318 88
422017
Molo | Levell | Lovel2 | Leveld | "o I | gooy yaiue
Cash and cash equivalents 6.6.1 2920 epooo| 8373|8208 58 200
Securities G662

A amortisod cosl 1 095 ] 1 1095 1 000
Reoavables from credi ingtitutions 6.6.3 0] 23ma 7 828 31742 31 742
Loans and sdvances (o customers B.6.4 L] o 205236 2056 286 195 390
Equily invostmatits 6.7 ;

A amortsed cosl 0 0 0 0 ]
Oither financial pssels 6.6.10 0 1] 1 BEE 1 856 | 856
Financial assals measurod ol amortised conl 2305 S1914| 233349 208 272 282 381

31.12.2017

Note | Levelt | Lovel2 | Lever3 “,‘::,':_"“ Book value
Lishlities due 1o banks BB.12 ] e68| 41309 42277 42 631
|ishllitios due 1o cuslomess B.6.14 0 0] 244 850 244 BSO 245 0a2
Dabil gacuriies in msyn 5.6,14 ] ] 5978 5378 5119
Subordinated labilitias 6.6.15 1] o 4 148 0146 AT42
Oihar financial llabilitles = 6617 1] ] A TET 4757 4 757
Financial flabilities measured at amortised cost [i] 968 | 305 440 306 417 306 341
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20M7.01.01
Mote Level 1 Level 2 | Loveld TTlﬂll:ﬂm Book value
Cash and eash equivalents 6.6.1 17018 16 278 23 238 55 631 65 531
Sacurities 662
Al amortised eost 2 8034 (8] o 2034 2 580
Feceivabies from cradl innlilutions 6.6.3 1] 30 366 14 681 45 057 A5 057
Loans and advances to cusiomers B6.64 0 0| 195582 195 582 191 151
Egpuity Investments 6.6.7
M amartised oost 0 0 1] 0 0
Other tinancial assets 6.6.10 L] 7] 2334 2334 2 334
Financlal assets measured af smortlsed cost 19 950 A5 642 | 235 846 01 438 298 753
2007.01.01
Note | Levell | Level2 | Lovel3 | T920 ' | Book value
Limhitles dua to banks 66512 1] 1 638 58 755 61 394 62 165
Liahditles dua to cusiomers 6613 L] o 2188651 218 651 218 B33
Dabt pocurilios in issug 6614 1] 0 5239 5239 A B85
Subordinated fablifias B.6.15 0 0 226 22 621 21105
Oinar financlal labilties B.6 A7 ] [ 7843 7943 7843
Finanalal llabilities measurod al amoriised cosi o 1638 314208 315 848 35 0

There were not changes in the fair value hierarchy, there were not transfers between the levels.

6.9.7. Fair value option

Under IFRS 9 an entity may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a financial asset as
measured at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring assets
or liabilities on different bases. The application of the fair value option shall result in the
financial statements providing rellable and more relevant information about the effects of
transactions on the entity’s financial position, financial performance and cash llows. The fair
value option may be applied for example when an entity has financial assets that share a risk,
such as interest rate risk, and that gives rise to opposite changes in fair value that tend to offset
each other. In such cases the entity may measure the asset that otherwise is measured at
amortised cos! at fair value.

The Bank chose to apply the fair value option to hedge for disclosure of Hungarian treasury
bond portfolio {amounts to 10 billion HUF at face value) whosethe interest rate risk is hedged
by interest rale swap transactions concluded in the frame of HIRS (MNB Market-Based
Lending Scheme).

The purchased government bond was classified in the available-for-sale calegory since the
Bank intends to hold it in the long term, so without applying the fair value option the recognition
of the HIRS transaction and the transactions hedging its interest risk would have been
inconsistent. The fact the Bank had the government bond designated at fair value meant the
fair value changes of the transactions were universally recognised in profit or loss, thus
providing a reliable and more relevant view of the aggregate impact of the transactions.
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The IRS and government bond market move closely in tandem with one another, as verified,
statistically, by the high coeflicien| of determination (R®) calculated for the time series:

R* 208 207
IRSSY - GovsY B B2%
IRS10Y - CovigY BE% 4%

6.9.8. Government grants

In connection with its HIRS and preterential deposit transactions concluded with MNB the Bank
accounted for the following amounts as government grants:

Gavarmant grant
Amount Malurs
2018 2T 2018 2017
HIRS deala 246 237 | Intedon) b sods|dy inliont rate sideldy
Prefareniial deposas 11 51| imteres! mis subsidy inlorest mie subsidy
Totsl 357 288 il B

In the case ol HIRS transactions the interest payable on the transaction is lower than the
market interest, while for preferential deposils the interest received is higher than the market
interest.

In accordance with IAS 20, in both cases the Bank recognises the government grant only if
there is reasonable assurance thal the conditions atlaching to the grant will be fullilled and the
Bank will receive the granl. Accordingly, there are no unfulfilled items or other contingent
liabilities connected to the grants that have been accounted for.

6.9.9. Day-one profit or loss

The Bank measures financial assets and financial liabilities at lair value on initial recognition.
It the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price, the difference is
accounted for depending on the level of the transaction within the fair value hierarchy:

- il he fair value is evidenced by a quoled price in an active market for an identical asset or
liability (Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique thal uses only data from
observable markets (Level 2 input). The Bank recognises the difference between the fair
value al initial recognition and the transaction price as a gain or loss;
in all other cases the fair value al initial recognition shall be adjusted by the delerred
amount of the difference between the fair value and the transaction price. After initial
recognition, the Bank shall recognise the deferred difference as a gain or loss only 1o the
extent that it arises from a change in a faclor that markel participants would take into
account when pricing the assel or liability.

In the case of the monetary policy HUF interest rate swaps (MIRS) with the MNE, the Bank
immediately recognises the gain from the preferential interest in prolit or loss as the day-one
gain or loss impact. In 2018 this amounted to HUF 1,38 billion.
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In the case of the FGS funds drawn from the MNB and the FGS loans disbursed using these
funds, the initial fair value difference is accrued because the Bank does not calculate the fair
value using Level 1 or Level 2 inputs. The following tables show the accrued amounts not yet

recognised in profit or loss:

31122018 Maz2.a017 01.01.2007
Inftial fair value diflerence of FGS loans -1 143 -1 540 -2 D50
[nifial fadr value difference ol FGS lunds 1216 1 B28 2438
Taial Ta 289 389
Changes 1o initial fair value difference of FGS loans:
FGS loans 2018 2017
Opening balancn -1 54Q -2 050
Iritinl fair vakeo differenas of new loans 6 -221
m::mlhn ol iralial tair value differance ol 219 .
Disposal of the remainng nitwl lar vake 191 183
diflerence of sold. mivured o repaid loans
Clasing balance 1143 -1 540
Changes 1o initial fair value difference of FGS tunds:
FGS funds 2018 2017
Opening balance 1828 2438
Initig Tair value diference of new loans 2] 298
ima::wlun ol indthal tair value diference of 200 £06
Disposal of the rempdning initial {alr value 230 212
diflorance of sold, matured or repaid ksans
Cloging balance 1215 1829

6.9.10. Modification gain or loss

In 2018 the Bank recognised HUF -2 million loss in net interest income due to not signiticant
contract modifications. The effect of derecognition owing to significant contract modifications

was HUF -2 million.

6.9.11. Fees to the auditor

Audil ol (he annual financial stalements

Il

Othaer audit foas 25 a1
Tax advisory seivicas 3 ]
Other, nor-audil laes 5 27
Talal 122 135
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6.9.12. Collaterals received

Al full value:
| asniz20te | m;a22017 | 01012007
Collaterals mosived ot full value
Cash collatorals 11025 V2 178 7 87
Blpnkguamnioes 12075 5 a2 5 G20
Stute guaraniees 48 720 Al 278 as 201
Sacuriies B53 501 ara
Aspignoed Soles favenn 0 0 249
Assignod recevables 667 825 660
Morgags 148 031 149 126 142 339
Tatal man 200 TR0 162 418
Up to the gross contractual receivable value:
[ stazzms | stazan7 [ onono?
Collaterals received up 1o the gross conlractual recelvable value
Giash collaarnnly 10 157 11301 & 906
Bankguamiiess 8765 4978 4 &1
Slale guaraniess A6 083 38 500 33 368
Hoguritien 587 501 a20
Assigned soles rovenue 1] 0 a0
Assigned tegeivables are 473 2653
Morigagoe B8 528 B9 135 A7 G40
Totnl 155 702 145 072 133 548
6.9.13. Financial assets pledged as collateral
31122018 a2y 01.01.2m7
Caah and cosh equivalonts 1] L] 1]
Securities 12 500 14 fa2 13800
Aecetvables from credil institutions 1 621 | 721 1419
Loans and advances [0 cusiomire 17070 24 325 24 100
Othar monetary nosets 1] 1] 0
Tolnl 31 581 40 838 30 428

Under financial assels used as collateral, the Bank recognises cash placed at other banks lo
cover losses from derivative transactions as well as securities and SME loans used 1o cover

FGS refinancing sources.

The Bank retained all the risks and rewards relaled to ownership of the financial assels used
as collateral, so these assets remain part of the Bank's balance sheet.
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6.9.14. Subsequent events after the reporting date

There were no significant evenls after the reporting date that would have affected the
financial statements.

6.9.15. Dividends paid

The Bank did not pay dividend 1o the shareholders either in 2017 or 2018.

6.9.16. Equity correlation table

Equity correlation table required by Section 114/B (1) of the Act on Accounting:

a22ma
Compononts of equity as per the Act on Accounting
Share | Subscribed ' Profil or ;
‘| Capital | Fetamad Valuation | Allocatod
caplal as | bul unpaid lass alter Total
per IFRS | capital (-} mganva | aamings e [0 faservo
Share capial ara aray
Capital resanve 94 416 a4 416
Retained aamings -55 398 1 347 54 051
Goneral resenve 185 185
Fevaluaban resarnve of
nvadable-for-salo
financial assots, not ol [ ] (1] 0 257 a57
b
ﬁm'ﬂw'm 3727 0| sems| 55988 1347 257 185| 4451
3422017
Components of equlty as per thi Act on Accounting
Share Subscribed, ] Polfit or X
capitalag | but unpaid rl:wtal Retairad P Valuation | Allocated Total
par IFRS capétal {-) EEATYD aarnngs b Megana maon'o
Shane capital arar arzl
Capital resemnve a1 500 41 500
FAntained sarmings 554 B 204 <54 439
Gienaral nosomve G0 50
Aevaluation reserve
of avallable-for-aale
thacial asses, e ¥ Y f s ™
¥
m mm 327 0 91500 | 54643 204 750 50| 41588

Reconciliation of capital registered by the Court of Registration and the share capital as per
IFRS:
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31.12.2078 3122007
Capiial registared by the Court of Reglsiralion 3727 1727
Instrumanin rocognised as lsbilities [ i} 0
Share copltad os por IFRS arar ar

Calculation of free retained earnings available for dividend payment:

J1a22018 AN.A2.2017
Aetained camings -54 051 54 439
Acqumutaled urisalised gain aocountod for due
o Increase in tha fair value of investran o ]
LR
ulmlod  amoum ol misied income  fax 0 0
accouniod lor bagod on 1A% 12 Income tes {+]
Adjusted relained eamings & <54 051 -54 438
| Free relained earnings avallable for dividend " 0
| payment
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6.10 Information related to capital management

Determining the bank's optimal capital level and its conlinupus monitoring is a basic
process/task for every bark.

The level of capital is primarily determined by the Bank's risk appetite. Since high risks entail
higher losses, it is crucial for the Bank to carefully take into account both the expected and
unexpected losses related to its various business activities. The economic capital determines
the required level of capital related to the actual risk profile while the level of the regulatory
capital represenis a mandatory minimum level below which the Bank may not go even when
based on its own measuraments ils risk exposure would justily a lower level. The Bank's capital
management covers both the Pillar 1 and the Pillar 2 view. The fundamental goal of capital
management is lo:

ensure the optimal level of capital for the Bank,
- ensure the capital requirement necessary for the Bank's operation,
- lacilitate compliance with European and national regulations.

Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 (CRR), Act CCXXXVIl of 2013 on Credit Institutions and
Financial Enterprises (Hpl.) and Directive 2013/36/EU define uniform rules for the supervised
institutions with respect to capilal requirements. The Bank calculates its regulatory capital
based on these rules with a monthly frequency and sends a quarterly report thereol to the
Supervisory Authority (COREP, FINREP).

The Bank's ALM department regularly monitors capital adequacy (P1 and P2) and prepares a
report for the ALCO and the parent bank al least monthly and also for the Supervisory Board
guarterly. Based on its forecasts, whenever justilied, it lakes the necessary measures 10
ensure capilal adequacy at all times, In line with ils recovery plan.

During its planning process, the Bank regularly monitors regulatory changes and updates and
calculates the required level of capital account taken of these changes.

The major business risks of the Bank are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk (including interest
and foreign exchange risk) and operational risk.

The following chart displays the structure of the Bank's potential capital requirement and capital
recommendation. In 2018 it was nol required 1o maintain P2G.

P S S == S
Piflar 2 Guidancs (P2G)

LA

B b frearieg e
1]
P2 ealdiice
B Cousaryp ol Wi (L ¥
IF gl Cgireeruatiion Bultar (A}
B v Bk Bultes (ARY
P RERRY aidd =)
I st 1

The Bank's capital level always complied with the regulatory requirements, the shareholders
ensured the required level of capital, in 2018 by providing EUR 9 million of CET1 capital. No
dividend was paid, the profil increases the level of CET1 capital.
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The Bank's regulatory capital:
31.12.2018 Jr22017
| Regulatory capital 49 420 50 286
Tier! capital A0 418 41 602
Gomman Equity Tier 1 capital {GET1) 37 502 38 464
Addilional Tier 1 capital (AT1) 2916 3138
Supplementary capilal (Tier 2) 9002 B G684
Development ol capital requirement;
31122018 2oy
Total Risk Exposure amount (WA} 223290 208 233
GET capital adequacy ratio 16,80% 18.47%:
Tier 1 capital adeguacy rafio 18,10% 18.90%
Capital adeqguacy rotio 22.13% 26.15%
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6.11 Risk management policies

6.11.1 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of the institution not being able to comply with its obligations stemming
from the expected and unexpected current and future cash flows and collaterals without
impacting its daily operation or its market position. These may include, among others:

- Short-term liquidity risk is the risk of the Bank nol being able to meet all of its payment
obligations or not being able to meet its payment obligations on time. Short-lerm liquidity
risk refers to a time horizon of 30-90 business days.

- Long-term liquidity risk is the risk of additional refinancing funds being accessible only at
a higher market interest rate. Long-term liquidity risk refers to a time horizon of at least 1
year.

- Concentration lquidity risk occurs when the Bank's exposure 1o a single depositer, a
single deposil instrument, a single market segment or a single currency is extremely high
primarily on the liability side. However, the concentration of an on-balance sheet or off-
balance-sheel instrument which may significantly alter the level of expected cash flow may
also cause concentration liquidity risk.

The Bank measures the liquidity risks using processes and various indicators and limits (e.g.
LCR, NSF, FLST, DMM, L/D, DEM, BFM, conceniration indicators) in line with the international
and Hungarian regulatory frameworks and the guidelines of the parent bank and manages
these liquidity risks by maintaining a conservative liquidity buffer.

The liquidity butfer is the Bank's source of liquidity. The Bank continuously maintains an
appropriate level of liquidity buffer, both in terms of amount, maturity and quality so that it can
continue meeting its liquidity obligations.

Section 412 (1) of Regulation (EU) 575/2013 of the European Council (CRR) prescribes a
general liquidity coverage requirement for credit inslitutions, creating al the same time the LCR
indicator; according to this requirement “institutions shall hold liguid assets, the sum of the
values of which covers the liquidity outflows less the liquidity inflows under stressed
conditions”. This regulation is supplemented and made more specific by Commission
Delegated Regulation (EL) 2015/61.

The LCR is defined as the ratio of the credit institution's liquidity buller containing liquid assets
to its net liquidity outflows during a 30-day stress period. The net liquidity outflow is the credil
institution’s liquidity outflows less its liquidity inflows. The liquidity coverage ratio must be
expressed as a percentage value and the regulator determined its minimum level to be 100%
{the Bank's internal limit is 110%); this means thal the credit institution has sufficient liquid
assels to cover ils net liquidity outflows during a 30-day stress period. In light of this the Bank
pays special attention to the LCR indicator, o its reliable calculation and to that it manages its
liquidity based on this indicator.

Tolal weighted amouni (average)
31.03.2018 30.06.2018 30.09.2018 J1.i2.2018
Mumber ol observation parpds faken inlo 3 3 a 3
account in average cakculation {manths)
Liquidity bufier 47 511 45 259 _ B1648) 44 705
Met liquidity outfllow 18 149 30 632 41 849 25078
Liguidity coverags ratio (%) 285,07% 145,42% 148,115 187.55%
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The internal liquidity stress test is an integral part of the liguidity risk management limit system,
during which the Bank quantifies the impacts of predefined scenarios (idiosyncratic, markel-
wide, combined), it is a requirement of the parent bank that the Bank meets the minimum 1
maonth limit in terms of the slress survival horizon. In the course of 2018 the Bank complied
with this requirement.

The Assel Liability Committee (ALCO) - of which the Board of Directors is also a member - is
the arganizational unit responsible for the strategic management of liquidity risks. The ALCO
is informed at least monthly about the Bank's liquidity position and the utilization ol the limits.
Assel-Liability Management (ALM) is responsible for tactical management within the approved
guidelines, responsibilities and limits.

6.11.2 Market risk

Markel risk is the risk that the actual assel value of the Bank's on-balance sheet and off-
balance shael positions changes as a rasult of the change in market prices (interest rates,
equity prices, foreign exchange rates or commaodity prices eic.) due to which the Bank's profit
and capital may decrease.

The Bank measures and limils its exposure 1o markel risk using various methods depending
on whether the given exposure qualifies as a Irading or as a banking book exposure.

Market risk - trading book

Based on criteria defined by the CRR and the FRTB, the Bank classifies as positions held with
trading intent the positions Intended to be resold short lerm, or positions intended 10 benefit
from expected differences between buying and selling prices. The Bank performs the valuation
of trading book positions at fair value at least daily.

Compared o its size the Bank's trading activity is not significant; it typically holds such
positions in connection with client mandates (market execulion) where clients want to hedge
their risks stemming from their own oparation.

Sberbank Group applies several methods for measuring and managing markel risks, in line
with the international risk management standards and regulatory recommendations.

On the basis of the risk appetite, the parent bank defines every year the maximum level of risk
that the Bank can assume and delines, amang other things, the open currency position (OCP),
the value at risk (VaR, Stress VaR), the interes! rale sensitivity (BPV), and the maximum loss
(Stop Loss) limits.

Money Markets Trading and ALM areas are in charge af the operative management of market
risks. In order to aveid conflict of interest (“Segregation of Dutles"), risk exposures are
monitored daily by an independent organizational unit , i.e. the Marke! Risk Managemen! unit,
operating independently from the business areas assuming the risk and even from the Board
of Directors.

The Bank's management (Board of Directors, ALCO) receives al least monthly information
about the risk exposures, while the Supervisory Board receives reports quarterly.

Equity price risk
The Bank does not assume any apen commaodity and equity risks.
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Foreign exchange risk

The primary foreign exchange risk stems from the differant structure of the Bank's assets and
liabilities (both on- and off-balance sheet). As a resull of the changes in foreign exchange rates
the Bank may realise gains or incur losses recognized directly in profit or loss.

The Bank manages its foreign currency positions in the trading book, it holds no strategic open
pasitions in the banking book. Assuming non-linear risks |s not part of the strategy and so, for
example, the Bank typically hedges its option pesitions back-to-back.

Market risk — banking book

The interest rate risk in the banking book represents the possibility that the income stemming
from the positions in the banking book and/or the nel presenl value ol the positions change
unfavourably due lo the change in markel interest rales.

Every on- and ofi-balance sheet position thal does not belong to the trading book is lo be
considered a banking book position; that is, lypically loan and deposit portfolios, the non-
trading securities portfolio and inlerbank Iransactions, investments, other receivables and
liabilities and non-trading derivative transactions, etc,

The Bank considers the so-called re-pricing risk as the primary inlerast rale risk, which is the
risk stemming from the timing difference of the re-pricing structure of receivables and liabilities
and off-balance sheel itams. Measurements cover the yield curve risk which is the risk
stemming from the changes in the shape and the slope of the yield curve.

When quantitying the extent of the risk, the Bank applies the generally accepted risk
measurement approachas in line with regulatory recommendations and quantifies both the
short term {income relaled) and longer-term impacts (appearing In the change of the economic
value of the capital).

Risk exposures are presented separately for the relevant currencies leatured in the balance
sheet. Both the net interest income and the value of the economic capital are analysed based
on the re-pricing table and quantification of the re-pricing gaps.

When quantifying interest rate risk, the Bank uses diflerenl scenarios representing various
interest rate changes. From among these, we assume a +/- 200 basis points, prompt, parallel
yield curve shock as the basic stress scenarlo. In order to analyse interest rate sensitivity In
more detail the Bank also analyses the impact of additional scenarios which simulate the
different changes in the slope and the shape of the yield curve.

To measure the banking book's interest rate risk, the Bank also applies the value at risk (VaR)
method where we calculate with the historically observed volatility of the yield curve points -
instead of the parallel curve shocks defined by the regulator - in such a way that the estimated
interest rate shocks match the value of the shifis spread over a one-year period at a 99.9%
confidence level.

The Bank applies limits in line with its risk appetite. The ALCO delines the limit proportionately
to regulatory capital (maximum 15%) for the change in the value of the economic capital; and
proportionately to the annual budgeted net interest income for net inferest income change.

The Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) - of which the whole Board of Directors is also a member
- is the organizational unit responsible for the strategic management of interest rate risks.
Assetl-Liability Management (ALM) is responsible for tactical management within the approved
guidelines, responsibilities and limits.

The Bank primarily manages its inlerest rate risks through the harmonization ol the pricing
parameters of its assels and liabilities (re-pricing period, maturity, interest base) or with the
help of derivative hedging transactions (IRS, CIRS).
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The Bank distributes the risks (Including interes! rate and liquidity risks) among the various
business lines with the help of a markel-based internal transler pricing system and so the
profitability of the various profit centres is defined account taken of the risk they assumed.

Composition of assels and equity and liabilities by currency

Open positinns as al 31 December 2018:

net positiona in the balance sheet Tolal net positions
Mol opan long positiona 18 304 T 044
Ml open shatl posiions -21 354 -4
Met positions 43000 il

Open posilions as at 31 December 2017:

nel posilions in the balance sheat Total nol poesilions
Nel opan long posiions 2024 342
|“I".:ial opar sl pumllnl;l - GA2 :-'I-t:
Ml poaitions -4 54 =104

Value at Risk (VaR)

The Bank also applies risk-sensitive indicalors to measure lorelgn exchange risks, The
regulatory VaR model is a particularly important methodology, a so-called historical variance-
covariance madel that assumes the normal distribution of yields with an expected value of
zero,

The model results show Ihe expected loss, assuming a 10-day holding period and taking
account of the price fluctuations in the past 250 days at a 99% confidence level.

The regulatory capital requirement under Pillar 1 is calculated based on the standardised
approach defined by the CRR, while the Bank uses the modified, more consarvative version
of the above methodology to calculate the regulatory capital requirement under Pillar 2, where
the vanance-covariance matrix is derived from a stressed period instead of the past 250 days.

Results of the FX VaR:
HUFE mitlion
31.12.2018 1.92.2017
B0 day svarage of FX Var 18 15
G0 day peemge of FX Stress Var a3 57

Interest sensitivity

We measure the interes! sensitivity of trading book positions with the so-called BPV — Basis
Point Value sensitivity, which shows the impact on profit or loss of a 1-bp shift in yields. We
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calculate both the net and gross exposure; in the latter case, we obviously disregard the mutual
neulralisation effect of the long-lerm and shori-term positions.

Compared 1o its size the Bank's trading activity is not significant; it typically holds such
positions in connection with client mandates. Accordingly, the portfolio’s (nterest sensitivity
overall is very low,

Interest sensitivity of the trading book:

HLUE mifion

at.12,2018 31.12.2017
Total BPV gross i |l . 5,06 a.74
Tolal BPV nal 0,56 0,24

In the case of the EVE model used to measure the interest risks of the banking book, the yield
curve shocks are immediate and have lasting impacts that are immediately priced with the net
present value approach. The model is hypothetical since the general interest positions (for
example loans, deposits, interbank transaclions) are recognised in the books at cost, so re-
pricing has no direct impact on either capital or the income statement.

The interest risk sensitivily of the banking book remained within both the regulatory limit and
the mare stringen! internal limit.

The results ol the basic stress scenario according to the EVE modal:

312208 2207
impact ol 200 bp peradkel shitt (HUF million) 2212 2060
in pefcantage of CET1 6,19 53%

The NIl model Is an income-based approach. The model shows to what extent the Bank's net
interest income/expense would change due 1o re-pricing during a one-year period, assuming
an unchanged balance sheet structure, in the case of an immediate, 200-bp parallel yield curve
shock.

Resulls of the basic stress scenario according 1o the NIl model:

HUF sritio

31122018 a7
HUF 619 1235
EUR 104 106
CHF 13 2
usoD 28 280
Total A0 1417
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6.11.3 Credit risk

Overview

The Bank devoles significant resources to ensuring its risk management functions are
comprehensive. In 2018 the risk management function was further enhanced.

The tollowing major projects were conducted in 2018:

Finalisation of the IFRS 9 project

Updates in the ICAAP models, implementation of CVA

Continualion of projects aimed al developmant of risk-relaled IT infrastructure
Improvement of credit risk models and model management

NPL reduction strategy continued

Improvement of interes! rate risk management and liquidity risk limit framework

Risk management framework

Risk Managemenl is in charge ol the Bank's risk management function and is the second line
of defence within the Bank, For certain risk types, the tasks of the second line of defence are
carried out by organisational units oulside of Risk Managemenl, having the necessary
compelence and resources and who have an interest in lowering the risk levels accepted by
the Bank to ensure compliance with risk lolerance objectives, limits and other limitations, The
units outside ol Risk Management are not part of risk management.

Supervinarny
Board

Chial Luscutre
Offce il
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The Bank's Risk Management area performs ils work based on EU legislation in force, the
Bank's risk strategy, the resolutions, policies and guidelines of the Bank's governing bodies,
and it represents the interests of the shareholders. Risk Management operations are integrated
into the Bank's processes.

The head of the Bank's Risk Management area is the member of the board responsible for risk
management (CRQ), who reports 1o the CEQ of the Bank. He supervises the work of the Risk
Management units and is a member of the Bank's special risk management committees.

The head of Risk Management complies with the qualification and business reputation
requirements defined by EU legislation and other rules (fit and proper approach).

Chief Risk Officer (CRO)

The CRO is an independent member of the Board of Directors responsible for risk
management and for crealing and operating a comprehensive risk management framework
within the entire organisation.

The CRO is independent from the business areas and does not have any management or
linancial responsibility in terms of operative business lines or income-generating functions.

The CRO places paricular emphasis on increasing the risk awareness of the Bank's
employees and on strengthening risk culture at every level,

Execulive bodies and committees
Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board, representing the shareholders, is responsible for supervising the
Board ol Directors and provides assistance with governing the Bank, particularly with taking
key decisions.

The Supervisory Board and ils subcommitlees supervise the risk management process and
the current risk exposure based on regular reports and special information from the CRO, The
Supervisory Board approves the risk management strategy and the risk appelite declaration
proposed by the Bank.

Board of Directors

The Board of Direclors coordinates the strategic objectives of the Bank with the Supervisory
Board and regularly discusses the status of strategy implementation with the Supervisory
Board. Management is based on the principles of good corporate governance as well as open
debate between the Board of Direclors, the Supervisory Board and members of the
committees.

Risk management is the primary responsibility of the CRO, while the Board of Directors, as a
collective body, has additional control tasks, including the supervision of risk managemen
functions and approving relevant risk management policies.

Asset-Liability Committee (ALCO)

The Asset-Liability Commitlee (ALCO) is responsible for managing the balance sheet with a
holistic approach, and as a key decision-making body it is also responsible for the existing and
future interest and foreign exchange risks within the banking book. Moreover, its task is to
optimise the Bank's risk/return profile 1o maintain proper liquidity and financing and to comply
with regulatory capital management requirements.

ALCO closely monitors the evolution of risk-weighled assets, capital levels, P&L forecasts and
the regulatory environment since these are key drivers of regulatory capital requirements.
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Risk Commitiee

The Risk Commitiee (RiCo) is responsible for controlling the Bank's current and potential luture
risk exposures and lor developing and implementing the risk strategy, which includes defining
and confrolling risk appetite. The Risk Commitiee deals with risk management, risk regulation,
risk models and methodologies and the comprehensive risk management for the entire Bank
within the framework of (he ICAAP.

Credit Commitiee

The Credil Committee (CRC) is the central decision-making body responsible for collective
credit decisions in lerms of individual transactions/limits. It processes all the transactions at its
level of authorisation. Within the Credit Committee, the chairman of the CRC (the CRO, board
member responsible for risk management) is enlitled to reject proposals irrespective of voting
resulls ("veto right”).

Distressed Asset Committee (DAC)

The DAC is the body responsible for drafting strategies perlaining to non-performing
transactions and special ransactions exhibiting a high risk of non-perormance,

The main topics/responsibilities of the DAC are contained in its own rules of procedure; these
include, among others, the acceptance of strategies and restructuring plans, the assessment
of recovery indicators and the review of reporis on implementing the action plans.

Risk Strateqy

The Board of Direclors evaluates and defines the risk strategy for the entire Bank, reflecting
the current business model, while the Supervisory Board approves this risk strategy.

The purpose of the Bank's Risk Strategy is to define the general framework for the continuous
and prudent management of risks related lo the Bank's business model. It describes the basic
principles thal ensure the Bank's overall capilal and liquidity adequacy as well as the
appropriale defence approach by integrating risk management into the business aclivity,
performing the strategic planning for the entire organisation and developing it In line with
business risks. The Strategy takes the ICAAP principles and results into account,

The Bank's risk slrategy is efficiently incorporated into daily operations through the following
four pillars:
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The risk management function has a homogeneous structure within the Bank with the usual
roles and responsibilities. Every activity covered by risk management is documented in the
Bank's regulations. The Bank defines the accepted structure of various risks based on its risk
appelite and risk profile. The central part of the risk management function is an efficient
governance model independent from business areas. All of these components ensure that the
Bank efficiently applies the risk strategy throughout the organisation. The continuous
improvement of the methods used for measuring and managing risks is integrated into the risk
sirategy during the annual update process.

Regulatory requirements

Compliance with regulatory requirements relies on three pillars in line with the Basal lll rules:
Pillar 1: SBHU's minimum capital requirement

Under Pillar 1, the Bank uses the following methods to define the minimum capital requirement.
« Credit risk: Standardized Approach;

» Settiementl risk: Standardized Approach;,

* Marke! risk: Standardized Approach;

« Operational risk: Standardized Approach.

Pillar 2: Internal capital adequacy assessment process (ICAAP) and internal liquidity
adequacy assessment process (ILAAP)

ICAAP is one of the key components of the risk management and control activity covering the
antire Bank, including all risk types and risk portlolios, primarily focusing on the implementation
of risk managemenl and risk control from the perspective of Pillar 2. The main objective of the
ICAAP framework is to ensure alignment with the legislative (regulatory) and internal
expectations and requirements with the ultimate objeclive ol developing and applying
appropriate risk and capital management, thereby assuring the sustainable developmeant of
the Bank and ensuring capital adequacy in line with its operations to cover all material and
relevant risks. |ILAAP supplements the ICAAP process Irom the perspective of the Bank having
appropriate liquidity and being eligible for financing.

Pillar 3: Disclosure requirements

Every year the Bank complies with the disclosure requirements defined based on the CRR.
The document is accessible at www.sberbank.hu.

ICAAP Tramework

The Bank's general risk tolerance is defined based on the requirements described under Pillar
2 and the internal capital defined based on Pillar 2. The risk coverage capital is defined with
appropriate, risk sensitive measurement methods and by aggregating all of the relevant risk
types. This forms the basis of risk management as part of an appropriate limit system.

The process developed by the Bank for managing its risk tolerance must be suitable for
determining, quantifying, managing and monitoring all material risks. Moreover, using the
process developed for managing risk tolerance, the capital suitable for hedging the assumed
risk can be properly estimated based on two approaches: going concern and gone concern.
This process ensures that the internal capital requirement and the Bank's regulatory capital
are covered by the available capital at all times.

Risk tolerance is closely related to the Bank's strategic business goals, ils risk appelite and
risk profile as well as its capital adequacy, and ensures multidirectional interaction among
these components.

The process includes the following mutually interrelated phases/components:
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Identification of risks and assessment of maleriality

Based on the comprehensive risk assessments performed each year, the Bank determines the
risks that are present within the Bank's banking operalions and defines their signilicance and
potential thraat, This process includes both a quantilative assessment of the various risk lypes
and an assessment of the methods and syslems used o monitor and manage existing risks
(qualitative assessment). So this risk assessment concepl provides a comprehensive overview
of SBHU's risk profile.

Based on the resulls ol the risk materiality assessment, material risks are managed based on
the policies, procedures and guidelines approved by the governing body or the committees
concerned on the basis of the periodic assessment and/or general Supervisory process.

The assessment methodology used for measuring significant risks can be determined on a
case-by-case basis depending on the nature of the risk. The Bank applies both quantilative
and qualitative methods for fundamental risks (including stress tests) which are documented
in dedicated methods and manuals.

Quantitative definition of risks as per the ICAAP

Risk quantification is an Integral part of the management process of individual risks.
Quantification helps to define the size of the risk capital requirement needed to jointly cover
expected and unexpected risks.

When defining the capital requirement the Bank applies the gone concern approach.

According lo the risk strategy and the risk identilication rules, the level of refinement and the
comprehensive nature of the calculation must follow the best markel practice, taking into
account the volume, volatility and materiality of the underlying risk. The Bank applies Value-
al-Risk-lype models for credit risk (IRB approach) and for operational and market risks. The
Standardised Approach is used in the case of the trading book since the exposure is
insignificant based on its share of the general risk exposure. This approach is regularly
validated against the banks' internal VaR model.
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Credit risk

The internal ratings-based approach is one of the standard VaR models proposed under Pillar
1 {single factor model) by the regulator, Accordingly, it defines the internal capital required to
cover credit risk as a credit loss, where the actual loss will most likely not be any higher, The
internal ratings-based model locuses on losses stemming from non-performance, and It is
based on the estimated values of the PD, LGD and EaD parameters.

The internal ratings-based model does not cover certain semi-credit risks; for more information
on this, please refer to the detailed internal policies. For portfolios where the Bank does not
have the necessary data (PD or LGD) to apply the internal ratings-based model, the
Standardised Approach is used. Whenever possible, however, the Bank applies the internal
ratings-based approach.

The value al risk of loans is calculated at a 99,9% conlidence level.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the actual asset value of the Bank's on-balance sheet and off-
balance sheet posilions changes as a result of markel price changes (interesl rates, equity
prices, foreign exchange rates or commodity prices, etc.), which may lower the Bank's profit
and capital.

Market risk — trading book

The Bank classifies as positions held with trading intent the positions intended 1o be resold
short term, or positions intended 1o benefit from expected differences between buying and
selling prices. The Bank's trading activity is not significant compared to its size, but it applies
a complex system to measure and manage marke! risks in line with international risk
management standards.

Market risk — banking book

When quantilying the exten! of the risk, the Bank applies the generally accepted risk
measurement approaches in line with regulatory recommendations and quantifies both the
shor term (income related) and longer-term impacts (appearing in the change of the economic
value of the capital). When gquantifying interest rate risk, the Bank uses scenarios representing
various interest rate changes. From among these, we assume a +/- 200 basis points, prompt,
parallel yield curve shock as the basic stress scenario. In order to analyse interest rale
sensitivity in more detail the Bank also analyses the impact of additional scenarios which
simulate the different changes in the slope and the shape of the yield curve.

Operational risk

The Bank defines the capital requirement to be allocated to operational risks using the
Standardised Approach under both pillars.
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of the institution not being able to comply with its obligations stemming
from the expected and unexpected current and future cash flows and collaterals without
impacling its daily operation or its markel position. These may include, among others. The
Bank measures the liquidity risks using processes and various indicators and limits in line with
the international and Hungarian regulatory frameworks and the guidelines of the parent bank,
and manages these liquidity risks by maintaining a conservalive liquidity buffer.

Other risks

The Bank allocates an additional risk capital requirement to other risks on top of the internal
capital requirement already estimated. It defines the amounl allocated to other risks based on
the amount of previously identified losses (if available) and the expert opinion on the imminent
adverse impacl of risks, also using the results of the stress test.

Risk aggregation

During the risk quantilication phase of the process developed lo manage risk lolerance, the
Bank assesses the amount of internal capital needed lo cover individual material risks, This is
followed by the risk aggregation phase during which the internal capital needed to cover all of
the Bank's material risks can be estimated.

The Bank’s tolal capital requiremen| (lotal internal capital) can be estimated by aggregaling
the internal capital requirement of the different material risks (including the capital buffer).
When aggregaling internal capital requirements we assume that the losses stemming from the
different risks are in perfect correlation. The assumption is conservative, but for the time being
the Bank does nol have sufficien! experience or enough data to make a reliable assessment
of the advantages of diversification. The Bank continuously collects data so that it can define
these potential advantages later on,

The entire internal capital requirement is compared with the risk coverage capital. The capilal
available for the Bank must be higher than both of these.

Stress tests

The Bank performs siress tests as one of the basic tools for managing material risks, Siress
tests are carried oul separalely for each material risk. The purpose of stress lests is lo
determine the Bank's vulnerability in the case of exlreme adverse circumstances, lo formulate
corrective measures and lo ensure the long-lerm stability of the Bank. Siress lests are also
used lo determing the Bank's sensitivity to faclors thal are not part of the quantification of
internal capital. Moreover, for risks where the VaR model is not applied, the results of the strass
tests may also form the basis for assessing internal capital. However, as a general rule, stress
test results do not define the level of internal capital since they model extreme conditions.

The Bank performs at least one stress lesl every year. In the case of sudden markel changes
the Bank analyses the polential impacts of the change on its economic position and decides
based on the obtained results whether stress tests need lo be perarmed more frequently.

Capltal allocation

The largeted risk profile of the Bank is achieved by allocating the risk coverage capital, which
lakes place as parl of the risk tolerance model. The Bank allocates capilal 1o cover every basic
risk as well as the other risks thal have been classified as malerial during the idenlification and
assessment of risks. The allocation ensures that the Bank's risk coverage capital provides
appropriate protection in the evenl of adverse circumstances.
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Credit risk

The credit risk ol Sberbank in Hungary stems primarily from credit type products, although it
has some other on-balance sheet and off-balance sheel commitments.

Credil risk management devaotes considerable effort every year to identifying and measuring
credil risks as accurately as possible, introducing appropriate controls and optimising lending
processes from the perspective of risk management.

In the course of 2018 the following significant progress was made:

Corporate and SME

In 2018 the following main developments and projects were launched lo revise and develop
current lending processes and risk management methods with the objective of improving
efficiency:

« The new SME and corporale lending policy was developed and implemented, delining
key risk parameters, slandards and the risk appetite related to the Bank's lending activity,
taking account of group-level expectations at both segment and portfolio level.

» An IT project supporting credit-monitoring activity was also launched.

« A new rating model was introduced for rating real estate project clients and transactions.

» Lending processes related to the large corporate and SME segments were reviewed in
order 1o improve efliciency.

Retail

« The automated solution for supporting credit decisions in the Retail segment went live in
March 2018 and was implemented in the Methodus decision engine application.

«  We introduced a new rating model for personal loans, which screens clients applying for
this product a lot more efficiently.

» The preparation of client ratings in the retail segment was automated with the help of an
interface call running in the background.

« Preparatory steps were taken to launch a project that also includes the reorganisation of
micro-business risk management.

Risk measurement

To quantify the credit risk of SBHU's loan transactions the Bank has implemented bank-level
risk models. One of the key risk indicators is the PD (Probability of Default), which defines the
probability of the client's default within 12 months based on qualitative and quantitative
performance indicators. The LGD (Loss Given Default), the CCF (Credit Conversion Factor)
and the EAD (Exposure at default) depend on transaction specific characleristics.

SBHU has its own PD models, which can be applied to credit applicants where the Banking
Group is present. The Bank uses a generic model for cross-border transactions and for clients
for whom there is no country-specific model.

129



Consolidined Financial Statements 31, December 20008
sherbank I'I:mﬂ_mry L dutz in HUE million

Risk measurement components

Debtors’ credit risk has two components — Expecled Loss (EL) covered by provisions, and
Unexpected Loss (UL) covered by capital, EL is the loss expected from the given transaction
within 12 months. UL comes from the variance around the expected loss, Expecled loss can
be broken down into the following three components:

EL = PD x LGD x EAD

These three components are defined as follows:

* PD (Probability of Default) is the probability of a client defaulting within one year.
Probabilities of delault are classified into rating classes with the help of the SBHU
masler-scale.

= LGD (Loss given Default) represents the estimated amount of the expecled loss on a
non-perarming loan at the time the default occurs, projected to the expecled exposure
al defaull. The Bank never assumes thal 100% of the outstanding debl can be
recovered by selling the collateral or through other means; instead, a lower value is
realislically expecled. When defining the LGD rate, the costs incurred during the
collection, when selling collateral as well as other economic losses are also laken Into
accounl. The LGD is determined based on the collateral type and other transaction-
specific characteristics. The risk models determining the LGD rate have been
developed based on the results ol the completed collection procedures of non-
performing clients.

* EAD (Exposure al Default) is the exposure that the Bank expects when the defaull
occurs. It is defined by transaction-specific rates such as the expected drawdown rate
or the expected marke! price of derivative transactions.

Rating process

During the clienttransaction rating process only the models approved by SBHU board
members (previously by SBEL) can be used. The PD value defined by the Raling "master-
scale” Is used for the second pillar capital caleulation, risk pricing and to select the lending
process. At SBEU, the rating is based on the annual PD, which disregards the lotal cycle price
of the loan. Therefore SBHU uses the same 12-month expected loss approach.
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Breakdown of the Bank's credit risk rating grades by PD range:

lower averege | higher risk
border PD border | classes Risk category
0.00% 0.02% 0.03% 1| high grade
0,03% 0,04% 0.04% 2 | high grade
0,04% 0,05% 0,06% 3 | high grade
0,06% 0.07% 0,08% 4 | high grade
0.08%: 0,10% 0,11% 5 | high grada
0,11% 0,13% 0,16% 6 | high grade
0.16% 0.18% 0.22% 7 | high grade
0.22% 0.25% 0.30% 8 | high grade
0,30% 0.35% 0.41% 9 | high grade
041% 0.48% 0.56% 10 | standard grade
0,56% 0.66% 0,78% 11 | standard grade
0,78% 0.51% 1.07% 12 | standard grade
1,07% 1.25% 1,47% 13 | standard grade
1.47% 1.78% 2.02% 14 | standard grade
2,02% 2.38% 2,70% 15 | avarage grade
2.79% 327% 3,84% 16 | average grade
3,84% 4.51% 5,29% 17 | average grade
5.20% 6,20% 728% 18 | average grade
7.28% 8,545 10,03% 19 | avarage grade
10,03% | 11.77% 13.81% 20 | below average grace
13,81% 16.20% 18,01% 21 | below average grada
19.01% | 2231%| 26,19% 22 | below average grade
2619% | 30,73%| 36,06% 23 | below average grado
36,06%: | 4232%| 49,66% 24 | below average grade
48.66% | 6EB.28% | 100,00% 26 | below average grade
100,00% | 100.00% | 100,00% 26 | Impaired

Corporate and SME credit risk monitoring and governance

SBHU regularly monitors its receivables in line with the approved processes. Based on the
predefined early warning signs the process identifies clients with low creditworthiness, and
with the help of appropriate evaluation it detects the critical characteristics that may lead to
changes in the commitment and the clienl's risk profile, Depending on the risk level,
receivables with performance problems are forwarded fo the designated areas as restrucluring
and workoul cases for further management. During the process the Bank monitors the quality
of the credit exposure within a specific period, and performs measurements if differences are
observed.
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Lending process

The Bank applies uniform lending processes by client segment based on a standard
methodology and approach, and performs an independent risk rating while clearly segregating
risk and business objectives, using uniform standards and principles, and applies standardised
credit application and risk management tools that support risk analysis and decision-making in
line with the predefined conditions.

The partner risk category, the level of exposure and the underlying transaction are the main
processing parameters in the course of evaluating transactions and taking decisions.

The methodology used during the lending process is standardised in the system, Given the
high degree of complexity of the credil decision process and as a result of the incomplete
system support af present, in particular with respect 1o the active business activities with a low
risk profile, the back-lesting points were incorporated into the process lo support efficiency.

The purpose of the method is to reduce manual work and lurther operational risks.
Reducing risk concentration

A comparalive back-tesling, monitaring and limit framework has been applied for credit risks,
Risk raling models ensure regular evaluations.

Credil risks are managed by numerous control points and processes, The overall risk
assumption process is developed and fine-tuned on a regular basis, reflecting the evolution of
credit risks Identified within the Bank. Control points have been Incorporated inlo internal
policies and they also function in praclice. The Risk Committee and the management of the
Bank are regularly informed about developments related lo credit risks, and they are able 1o
manage and control processes based on relevant reports.

Wilhin the corporate segment, the SME segment shows trends similar to 2017, Thanks to
strong acquisition activity, both the number of clients in the business segment and their overall
exposure have increased. Most of the growth came from the top segment. The change in risk-
weighted assets was negligible due to the high coverage rate.

Back-tasting is carried oul based on reporls thal have been developed lo measure and quantify
specilic risks. Portfolio level limits were sel up to reduce risk concentration,

A high level of concentration risk is taken into account for the portiolio due to the significant
aggregate exposure of the clienl groups. The Bank is siriving to diversify the portiolio in the
SME segment in the course ol product-based lending, The implemented Credit Policy also
pays atlention lo the problems caused by partfolio concentration and attempts lo reduce them
by regulating regular monitoring.

Although the overall credit risk is considered high compared to the Bank's other risk
components based on both quantitative and qualitative assessmants, due chiefly to the main
distribution of credit risks alfecting the entire portfolio, the overall portlolio quality is
conlinuously improving thanks to prudent controls. The economic environment is positive and
the centrally managed lending programmes lacilitate the development ol the credit market.
Thanks 1o the workout aclivity of pasl years the credit portfalio has continued to stabilise
following a thorough consolidation of the portfolio.

Country and transfer risks

Business is clearly focused on areas where eilher SBHLU or the parent bank is present on the
market with their own activities. The couniry limit methodology framewark has been
implemented, which is based on the strategy of cross-border risk appetite. Every operation is
performed via sub limits allocaled from the total limit at bank level. Monitoring, allocation and
review processes lake place centrally under SBHU's responsibility.
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Retail credit risk management and monitoring

Lending process

Implementation and closure of the project aimed at reframing retail lending:
Introduction of re-oplimised process

Aulomated data upload through Central Credil Information System (KHR) interface
Automaled client rating

Automated legal compliance/internal risk framework check

Introduction of new personal loan rating model

Preparation of comprehensive development and optimisation project in micro-business
segment prepared based on the successful retail project mentioned above, including
the redevelopment of the risk framework and limit calculation

Risk Monitoring

We comprehensively analyse retail and micro-business product groups on a monthly basis
and share the results at the GRC meeting held in Hungary and with the headquarters in Vienna
by sending them the regular PQR/Vintage report.

" & & & & ® &

Portfolio overview - credil risks

Risk controlling uses the fair value of the assets for calculating the relevanl exposure. From
an accounting perspective, exposures are recorded based on the carrying amount.

Iin the course of 2018 total exposures related lo the Bank's credit risks did not change
significantly, but there was significant restructuring from ofi-balance sheel assels lo on-
balance sheet assels, and also among the various segments.

Forbearance

To comply with Sberbank principles, internal credit policies contain special requirements and
standards related to restrucluring.

We have reviewed and updated the current internal policies related to restructuring so that
they fully comply with the requirements of the EBA and of Article 99 (4) of Regulation (EU) No.
575/2013 pertaining lo reports on restructuring and non-performing exposures.

A forborne exposure’' is a receivable originaling from a transaction® for which the Bank gave
a discount/concession in view ol the debtor's financial difficulties. This can happen if the
following two criteria are mel:

! Restructurod rocalvable according to Decron 3R/2018 (X.11) of MNB

? According to Dactea 38/2016 {X.11) of MNB (he receivable; loans conlalning concession, providad to thi obligor at the requesl
of the debior or obligor (hereinaiier collectvely. obligor) or the instilulion, purchasad recelvables and recelvables stemming from
other transactions considered cash loans or from other finanaial services, as well a5 commitmeants related to lending thal may
bécoime B recavable based on (he customer's decision (hereinafler collectively) receivabie)
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* The debtor experiences or might experience difficulties in meeting their financial
abligations (they have “linancial difficulties”), and
= The Bank and the debtor mutually agree on some discount/concassion, which may be
one of the following options:
o The previous contractual terms are modified
o The Bank or SBEU Group partly or completely refinances the oulstanding
transaction: the original contract is replaced (either in full or in part) by a confract
structured in such a way that it can handle the risk more securely within the
SBEU Group as the debtor was unable to fulfil the original conditions.
o Activation of conditions previously laid down in the contracl (“integrated
forbearance clauses”) based on the Bank's approval, which modify the
confractual terms.

Based on the above, the purpose of granting discounts/concessions for clients is lo enable
them to return to a sustainable sarvicing of debt,

We classily restructured transactions into the following categories:

« performing restructured (including transactions during their probationary pernod and
those cured from their non-performing status)
« non-performing resiructured.

The following transactions are classified as performing:

the exposure was performing prior 1o the restructuring, and
= the granted concession does not reclassify the transaction as non-performing.

An exposure previously classified as restructured has to meet the following conditions to be
removed from the restructured status:

It should be classified as “performing”: the exposure must be considered as

“performing” (including reclassification from “non-performing)

* Minimum two-year probationary period must have elapsed: at least 2 years have
passed since the exposure last (in the case of multiple ratings) received the "performing
lorbarne” or "forbome upgraded to performing” rating.

+ Debtor regularly paid repayment instalment during last year: since the starl of the
sacond hall of the probationary period (at the lalest) the debtor has regularly paid a
substantial part ol the interest and principal debt,

« Debtor has no arrears beyond 30 days: none of the debtor's exposures s past due

by more than 30 days al the end of the probationary period.

All of the conditions described above must be fuffilled simultaneously lo terminale the
resiruciured slatus ol any exposure. Even il jusl one of the conditions is nol mel, the
probationary period must be extended until the end of the next quarter. The restructured status
ol a non-performing exposure cannol be terminated,
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The following table presents SBHU's exposures classified as restructured as at 31 December
2018:

31.12.2018 perlorming lorborme | non-performing lorbome Total lorborne
’ BXpPOSUTES exposures BEPOSUNES
E::"Tﬂ:l‘n; :glt]m' s 7 638 27a7 10 AD6
Loan promisarry noles 114 i) 118
Toial TTET 2 TaT 10 524
non-parforming
31.12.2017 W"“:;n":':'nr:m S vl Yotal forborne
CHpOSUresS ¥
_::;nhiﬁu': ﬁ:ll;ur cammitmants P == e
Loan promisomy notis 137 0 137
Total 8787 3848 12

Non-performing loan portfolio (NPL)

The quality of the loan portiolio is protected by regular reviews and the continuous monitoring
of credit exposure,

The purpose of the monitoring process Is to:

* identily symptoms and threats
carry out preventive activities to preserve the quality of the loan portfolio
= maximise recovery of the Bank's assels

The early recognition of risks is a key part of risk management and is aimed at avoiding or
mitigating the Bank's expected credit loss. The sooner negative developments are identified
and the more consistent the implemented solutions are, the more adequate the restructuring
options will be and the more likely they will be successful.

If the monitoring process reveals signs about the borrower suggesting that the borrower may
not be able to meel their contractual obligations and repay their loan, the transaction is
forwardead to the Restructuring and Workout (RWO) Department.
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According to S5BHU's internal policies, defaull occurs when the Bank observes one of the
following evenis al the client:

Default events (non-relail clients)

Days past due — A signilicant obligation of the borrower is past dus for more than 80 days;

Bankruptcy — The Deblor, the Gourt or a third-party fies forinitinles bankrupicy of a debl sellameant
procedure against the Debtor,

Enforcement — Enlorcemen| proceadings are in progress against the Deblor.

Liguidation — The deblor is the subject of liquidation proceedings, The clien! s given & rating ol 26,

Non-performing restructuring — Il resltucturing is due 1o the tact thal the deblor i unable o meal
their contractual linancial obligations,

Wreite-off — The client’s debts have been writien oll In part o in full.

Sale — The recslvable had to ba sold at a lnss (with a significant cradit-ralated econamic loss).

impairment — Impairmeani or general nsk provision had 1o be recognised due to a delenoration in the
Ioan guallty,

Detfault of money markel transactions — Decislon lo close an open pasdion premalurely,

Siol msije| ialw]| Ml

Cross-default (bank group) — The client’s defaull vis-a-vis another mamber of the SBEL Group (SRAG |
and subsidianes).

Payment difficulties, expecied cash flow problems — The obligors will probably not be able o meet
their payment obligations in View of heir eash llow problems, resulling in & olisnt defaull.

Croas-defaull (client group) = Dafaull of a dablor group mamber,

13

The debtor will prebably not be able to meet their financial abligations in the future (Unlikeliness
to pay — UTP) — This calegory indicales some linancial cifficulties ol the deblor and some "ather”
deteriaration of the Inan quality not covered by 1he othet detault categories.

Detault evenis (retall clients)

Days past due — A signilican| obligation ol the borrower ls past due lor more than 80 days {according
to Section 11.2.1.1. of the policy).

35

Write-ofi — The client’s debls have been wnillan ol (with a significant, credit-refated economic loss)
Becording o Section 11.2.1.2,

Sale — The recehvable had to be suld al a loss according lo Section 11.2.1.3,

Fraud = Fraud committed by the clienl = confirmed by Compliance or the Froud Commiltes as n fraud
— resulting in a clien! defaull.

Impairment — Individual o colleciive impairment or risk provision had o be recognised (lor first ime or
repeatedly) due toa deterioration in the loan quality according 1o Section 11.2.1.8,

-] n ]

il

Non-performing restructuring - Il reslruciuring is due o the lacl thal the deblor is unable 1o meel

{hair gontractual financial obligations. . el
Probable cash flow problems — The abligors will probably not be able 1o meal thair paymani
obligations in view of cash flow problams, resulting in a client default.

deblor will probably not be able to meet their financial obligations In the future {Unlikeliness
to pay - UTP) = This calegory Indicates some financial difloulties of the deblor and some “othar”
deterioration of the loan quality not covered by the other detaull categories.

Croas default due to joint and several obliigation = The reasan for the defaull s (he defaulf of the
Jeint and several obligation, (Joinl and several obligation: an exposure where twa or more obligors have
the joinl and several liability 10 repay the loan (jolnl and geversl deblor) nol including guaraniees and

In case ol the above mentioned events, the receivable is presented in stage 3.

The recovery from delault starts, when there are no more detault causer tactors, meaning the
customer does not breach any non-performing slatus trigger, 3 consequitive months before
the start of the recovery. At the end of the recovery period, the receivable can be transferred
from stage 3 lo stage 2.

During the recavery perind, It must be measured whether lhe customer can perform ils
liabilities or not.

The length of the racovery period for any ol the defaull evenls depends on the Irequency ol
the exposure's repayment:
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Fraquency of repayment Recovery period
Manthly & months
Cuarterly 9 months
Hall year 12 months
Yaarly 24 months

It & customer has mare deals with different paymen! schedules, the longest recovery period
will be the standard.

In case of non-performing restructuring the followings mus! be fulfilled to reach recovery:
- the recovery starts when the restructuring takes action (refinancing concluded)
- the recovery period can nol be shorier than 12 month, counting from the last existing factor:

o from the moment of the restructuring,

o from the moment, that the exposure was graded or become non-performing

o if the restrucluring contains grace period, the expiry of it.

o in addition, the recovery period can not be shorter, than thal period during the
debtor performs payment in a significant amount. A significani payment is the
amount of a defaulted debt or a written ofl amount, if the debt was not default.
Or the period, when the debtor performed the repayment of the restructuring
obligation.

The table below shows the evolution of the non-performing loan portfolio for the linancial years
2017 and 2018:

Client exposuras (HUF) 3.122018 n.azz2m7 01.01.2017

NPL volume 26 024 a0 388 32 130

MNPL ratia 10,62% 14, 0% 16.41%
Impairment

The Bank's credil risk is the risk that the debtor of the loan causes a linancial loss for the Bank
by not meeting some of their credit-related obligations. To cover these losses, the Bank
recognises impairment in line with the provisions of IFRS 9.

Also in line with the provisions of the standard, the Bank applies the expecled loss model (o
determine the required amouni of impairmen! and provisions, i.e. it takes into account the loss
events thal occurred after the initial recognition or that are expected to occur during the life of
the exposure.

Al the end of each month the Bank examines whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets may be impaired.
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The following events may serve as objective evidence:

- Significant financial difficulty of the debtor

- The recovery of the loan is only probable by claiming the collateral securing the loan

- The debtor's obligations are past due for more than 90 days
The loan had lo be restructured, for example due to substantial changes in conditions,
interest rate decreases, etc. (with the exception of changes driven by the market or due
to technical reasons)
The collateral value has substantially decreased and no other cash flows are available
for the loan repayment

- The client is unwilling to cooperate, despite prevailing payment difficulties

- It is likely that bankruptcy proceedings or some other financial reorganisation will be
initiated against the borrower

- The client has no regular monthly income

- The client’s rating has deteriorated to defaull or pre-default raling categories, elc.

Every credit exposure, on-balance sheet and off-halance sheet items must be taken into
account when recognising impairmenl and provisions, irrespective of their credit ratings. This
means the Bank no! only rates the transactions where a significant deterioration in credit quality
can be observed, or where the credit risk flself is high. The valuation covers every financial
assel with the exceplion ol assets measured al fair value through profit or loss.

Ofl-balance sheet exposures should be taken into account for calculating impairment and
provisions depending on the likelihood of their drawdown. The Bank applies the CCF values
permitted by the regulator based on the CRR 1o quantity this amount.

The Bank classifies its exposures into one ol the stages delined by IFRS 9 (Stage 1, Stage 2,
Stage 3 and POCI), laking account of their deterioration compared with the credit quality upon
initial recognition, which also defines the method for recording impalrment and provisions.

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

If a significant increase in credit risk is observed compared with the initial recognition of the
financial asset, then the financial asset will be categorised into the Stage 2 category in line
with the provisions ol IFRS 8.

The Bank determines a significant increase in credit risk after considering several paramelers
together, during which it takes into account, among other things, the classification of the given
transaction during regular monitoring, its current defaull and any restructuring, if applicable.

Signs observed when classifying exposures into Stage 2:

Classification criterla Retall segmeant Mon-Retall segment

Manitaring status: red or black, or

clients an waich sl Stage 2 (il data is avallabla) Stage 2
Forbearance flag Stage 2 Stage 2
DPD = 30 days Stage 2 8 >

SICH indicator: Significant Increase n Siage 2 (il reliable rating data is 2
cradil risk avaitable) Stage

Collsctive assessman (based on
extraordinary decision supported by Stage 2 (ot portfollo level, based | Stage 2 {al portiolio level, hasad
the Risk Committas and approved by an xpar avialiation) on expert evaluntion)

the Board of Diractors)
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If both initial and current client rating information is available when evaluating a significant
increase in credit risk, the deterioration of the raling by at least 7 notches in absolute terms is
also taken into account as a factor indicating the significant increase in credil risk (SICR
indicator).

For transactions without a rating an average rating was determined based on the data of the
performing portiolio with a rating, and this value is reviewed at least on an annual basis.

We indicate low risk portfalios with internal rating grades 1 to 8. In their case, the SICH indicator
is nol taken into account when classifying them into stages. However, the Bank always
examines the other crileria of Stage 2 classification for these transactions as well.

Transactions for which the Bank has already determined a significant increase in credit risk
once can only be reclassified back from Stage 2 to Stage 1 if not a single factor indicating the
significant increase in credil risk or indicating default exists with respect to the current cycle or
the previous reporting cycle.

The Bank delermines the need to recognise impairment individually for financial assets thal
are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not
significant individually, A threshold has been determined lo dilferentiale exposures that are
individually significant and not significant, which is based on the clienl's total exposure to the
Bank. For recording impairment and provisions the Bank considers receivables to be
individually significant where the total value of the client's on-balance sheet and off-balance-
sheel exposures exceeds HUF 100,000,000. In addition, individual assessmenl is also
performed for contingent liabilities due to litigaled receivables and equity investments, as these
are also managed Individually. Moreaver, irrespective of the above significance threshold, the
Bank may classily any client/client group into the category to be assessed individually.

For individually significant exposures, the Bank uses the discounted cash flow (DCF) method
to determine the required level of impairment and provisions. Accordingly, if objective evidence
exists, the impairment loss is equivalent to the difference between the assel's carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate. When calculating the present value of estimated future cash flows, the cash flows
originating from any regular future income and cash flows that can be expected from enforcing
collateral must always be included (reduced by the cost of acquiring and selling the collateral)
depending on whether the Bank assumes a going concern or liquidation of the debtor.

In the going concern approach we assume that the client will repay the principal and the
interest, so the debtor's economic difficulties are only temporary and they will be able to repay
the exposure from the future cash flows of their core activities. By contrast, in the gone concern
approach we assume that we can only collect the debt by enforcing the collateral.

When calculating collective impairment — contrary to the method described for recognising
individual impairment — we estimate cash flows at portiolio level. In such cases, assets with
similar credit risk characteristics are grouped into a given portfolio. Accordingly, cash flows can
mostly be assessed in the given portfolio based on past experiences, taking account of their
future evolution based on the lifetime component of the applied impairment models.
Determining the appropriate risk parameters used for the calculation is crucially important
when calculating collective impairment.

When determining future expected cash flows, some macroeconomic factors are also
considerad (lor example: unemployment rate, net average wages, industrial output, GDP, ete.).

We estimale the difference between the carrying amount and future cash flows not only for the
next 12 months but also with the LECL approach, meaning we guantify the expecled loss
resulting from a default event occurring during the litetime ol the financial instrument In the
cases where the standard requires us lo do so.
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For exposures classilied in Stage 1 the Bank uses the 12-month expected loss approach, while
for exposures classified in Stage 2 and Stage 3 it uses the lifatime expected loss approach.

We calculate the amount of impairment and provisions to be assessed collectively at the end
of each month, and we recalculate il il any of the applied paramelers changes significantly.

Sberbank Group has a uniform process lor developing, verifying, approving and back-testing
risk models In accordance with IFRS 9. The applied methodology and the assumptions are
reviewed on an annual basis to reduce any possible difference betwaen the losses recognised
based on the assessment and the losses actually incurred.

Concentration risk

Concentration risks of receivables from customers in the balance sheet and memorandum
accounts shown in the following tables are grupped by the risk factors listed as follows:

cuslomers’ geographical region
composition according to main currencies
customers' industrial classification

The following lables show the on-balance and off-balance gross exposures broken-down by
categories above.

Geographical concentration

Concentration of on-balance exposures from aniams

oustomars broken down by geographical reglon | Domeslic Russia EU oulside EL Total
high grady 5 851 0 0 a7 5 668
standard gracle 7220 138 B 5a7 2078 BA 033
avemnge grade 104 030 48 6 638 a 110 747
hubrflvmgm 14 G684 14 56 65 14 818
impsaired 24 B33 1 BB0 58 25 562

Tolal 226 2B 197 16 148 2 265 245 138

Concantrallon of olf-balance oxposures from inaz20e

oustomers broken down by geographical reglon | Domestic Russia | EU autside EU Total
high racke 7 456 3615 0 (i 11071
standard gradn G4 BE4 8 0in 5140 1 804 80 027
average [rade 18 277 a 2 o 1mzm
beslow avermge grade 2402 ] 1] o 2402
impalred 1 030 ] 0 0 1030

Tatal 95 028 11 654 5142 1 B84 113 608

Concentration of on-balance exposures from anazzmy

customars broken down by geographical region | Domestic Russia EU outside EL Total
high gradix 1 fia0 0 a i) 200
standard grade 67 502 107 12 357 i3 B0 029
mvernge grads &8 490 a1 135 230 B4 B850
baolkow average grade 15 281 10 28 97 15416
i 28 a2 1 2330 i enare

Total 201 625 138 13 457 ap6 25716
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Concantration ol off-balance exposuras from ai2.2007

cuslomers broken down by geagraphical region | Domestic | Russia |  EU  |outsideEU| Total
high grade 11718 T 75 0 ] 19478
stondnrd groe 73 458 3 682 8227 1 B3 348
nverage grada &M o 1 2 30 604
balow averape grade 1185 o ] 0 i 185
impaired 68 0 0 o a0

Total 117 120 11 416 6 228 9 134 773

Concentralion ol on-balance exposures from 01012007

customers braken down by geographical reglon | Domeslic Aussia EU oulside EU Totnl
high grada 463 o 1] a8 501
standard grade 30 480 12 13 577 b B T AT BAR
average grade 107 025 a2 665 328 108 010
Latow average grade 20 B05 1 az? 57 21 786
impalred 30 0e2 1 238 115 30 396

Total 188 795 106 15 302 4335| 208538

Cancentratlon of off-balance exposures from 01.01.207

customers broken down by geographical region | Domeslic Russia EU olizide EU Total
high grade 1307 a o 7 1314
ilandard grade 61 831 a409 i 4078 &5 319
nvarRge (rade 19 996 | 0 o 15 908
below average grade 919 0 o 0 919
Impaired 1490 0 0 1 181

Tatal b4 245 3 409 1 A 086 8174

The Bank's activity focuses mainly on domestic customers, which has not changed in recent
years. The vast majority of EU transactions consist of deals realized together with other
members of the Group in the EL. Based on the fundamentals of the ownership of the Group,
the risks to Russia also appear as part of the banking strategy, typically in the form of trade

finance transactions.
Currency concentration
Concentration of on-balance axposures from 2208
customors broken down by currenclas HUF EUR CHF usp Oihar Tatal
high grade 5182 758 0 37 0 5 oeg
standand grads 61 786 24 781 48 1438 0 B8 033
average grade 78 543 30 900 1289 15 0| 110747
bolow avarags grade 14 058 Hay 17 51 [i] t4 818
impaired 1a7e2 1 G20 2803 6 i 26 52
Tatal 178 302 58 arr 541 1 547 1 245 138
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Concentration ol olf-balance axpotures fram

31.12.2018

customers broken down by curencies HUF EUR CHF usn Dthar Tolal
mgh grada 6391 4 6RO o o ol tiom
stnndard grade 24239 55 T17 i} i i} By 027
average grade I7 280 1863 il i o 1270
balbow averatpe grade 2 088 304 ] 0 0 2 an2
impaitod 783 237 0 0 0 1 030

Total 50 801 fi2 931 1] v o 113 609

Concenfration of on-balance sxposures from 322007

cuslomers broken down by curmencies HUF EUR CHF usn Diher Tolal
high graclo 1 545 1 0 aa o 2010
standand grade 52 BEZ 25 365 203 1 679 o B0 028
AVBMOE araio 70 5d4 18 142 (] 12 n 88 BB0
balow average grode 12241 1 B0B | 317 50 ] 15418
impaired | 235w 1 677 4144 13 1| 20372

Total 160748 | 47433 5 B46 1687 1| 215716

Concentralion of oif-balance oxposures rom 3az2m7

customarn broken down by curmncies HUF EUR CHF usD Oihor Total
high gradn 4 621 14 781 a 6 i} 19 478
standand grce A §3 005 il 17 o B3 348
v grain 2327 93m 0 L] 0 J0 694
below average grade 1 163 22 f1 0 a 1185
impnired 65 2 i 4] 0 A

Tatal 57 512 i 1 (i1} 1] 134 773

Cancontration of on-balance exposures from 01.01.2017

customers broken down by currencies HUF EUR CHF uso Other Tolal
higth g L] [ [} w a 5N
standmrd gracle 18 477 21338 Efl'r 0783 0 AT BaG
Bvarage grads 89 334 16 361 531 1784 0| 108010
barbewe iverngn grae 15210 3631 28549 Th ] 21 785
Impaiod : 23 148 2323 4116 T 1| 30396

Total 148 433 43 B55 TEl B 6BE 1| 208538

Concentration of off-halance axposures from 010207

customera braken down by curmncies HUF EUR CHF uso Othor Total
high grade 1307 ] ] 7 0 1314
standard grada 15 378 42 633 o 11308 0 318
average pradea 1430 a0 1 aor 1677 18098
balow average grade 004 16 ] o 0 81
impRired 155 as 1 i ] 18

Taolal 32067 4B 4T3 2 11 822 1677 81T
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The majority of the Bank's exposure to customers is denominated in HUF or EUR; there is a
lesser degree ol USD-based risk-taking; CHF exposures are remnants of old, gradually
decreasing risk takings. The Bank strives to ensure the presence of the appropriate natural
hedge in its foreign currency transactions and does nol provide speculative foreign currency
loans.

Industry concentration
31.12.2018
Concenlration of on-balance exposures from high slandard | average lm
customers broken down industry grade grade grade grado impaired Tatal
Agricultura, forestry and fishing BB 2059 1 B38 6a7 104 AT
Mining and quatrying 0 0 (] 0 0 6
Manufacturing are 14 888 8 043 498 1014] 26720
Elecricily, gas, sloam and air condition supply 0 B 644 538 4 56| 7245
Water supply i 29 aay 20 5 A
Construction 555 | B25 24830 51 1 468 7 000
Wholesale and retill trade 3 363 6570 14 128 1810 2007 27 BEY
Transport and storage a9 1380 3383 307 181 5290
Apsommodation and lnod service petvitios 102 ] a7 173 ol 3 &579
Infommation and communication 129 3 661 13 340 83 111 17 333
Financlal and insurance activiiies a7 1 147 482 163 12 1841
Raoal estate activition T 2618 32627 1184 327 38 789
Professional, scieniific and tech. activities 162 &31 oz 386 113 A 284
Adminstrative and suppor senice nolivitles 237 1 650 m 12 654 3 360
Public adminisiration and dofence, compuisary 0 2782 0 17 1] 2799
Education o8 738 415 18 19 1989
Human health services and social woek acl. [i] 218 a7 49 2BB 1282
Arls. enledainmant and recrealion 1] a2 159 &7 59 37
Other senices o 26 440 102 20 588
Foroign organizations, bodios 0 0 ] a 0 ]
Indindulas 0 41 460 22 804 8 5a2 16176 84 1
Total 5988 88 033 110 747 14 818 25552 | 245138
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31122018
Concantration of off-balance exposures from | high | standard | average m
customers broken down industry grade grade | orade grade | impaired Total
Agriculiure, loresiny and fizhing &r 218 T8 138 ] 1214
Iining and quarrying n 0 a0 n o 30
ManLifaciuring 248 7 188 1603 142 199 g 381
Electiciy, gas, siearn and ai condetion supily 0 0 2147 o o] 27
Walar supply o ¥ e " 0 a5
Constrisction 4 380 14 954 3 535 143 g9y 23 Y00
Whaolasalo and ratall (tda 2 003 RER aran 235 0 43 02
Transport and slomgo 176 5228 76l 52 0 6217
Accommadation and Inod sevice activities 106 a1 198 £ 0 454
Information and Gemmunicasion 166 2218 422 1 7 2837
Firancia and Insumnce achivities: 3 645 1 652 3 o 2 5 502
Feral satate sotlvilios 1 164 | 452 286 128 20851
Professiconal, scientific and tech. acthilies 139 B 936 5257 7a ol 12408
Administrative and suppert serice acivities 40 298 507 160 ] 845
Pubslic: admirstration and dalenco. compuliory 0 00 u 2 0 02
Education 0 0 57 0 0 57
Himan hoalth sarvices snd Soisl wark sol. 1] L& 123 1 i} 167
Pats, ertoriainmonl and recrontion 1] 1 50 [} 1] 59
Dihar Remvices 0 1 58 i (] ]
Fareign orpanizations, bodiss ap 756 508 1 o8l a 2376
Total 11071 B0 027 19 270 2 402 1030 113808

31122017

Concentrotion of on-balance exposures lrom high standard | average m
customen broken down industry grade grade grade grade Impalred Talal
Agriculturo, forastry and fishing 3 1 557 2062 aeg 1ai 4108
Mining and quarrying ] 1] 0 a 7] ]
Manufacturing 2712 7 340 7739 668 2628| 18558
Electricity, gas, steam and air candiion supply i 6280 B 5 o] 7 206
Wster supply 0 20 B34 1 1] B4
Coratiuction 67 3513 | a2 587 454 B (2
Whaolesals and retail rade 622 11 660 17 a2 1125 i 563 | A2462
Transpon and slorags 20 1780 3018 are 110 5334
Aocommotiation snd food servios melivition o - 1841 265 105 1 B&7
Intaernaton and communication 104 1504 780 144 77 2650
Firancial and naumnee activities 13 22M TH2 a0 1973 5019
Rl otate activities 11 5 062 22 475 3 088 140 34585
Frofessional, ssienfilic and fech, aolivilies 25 500 2050 1 607 223 5385
Adminigtralives and suppor servico activibes 46 223 1618 102 644 2633
Public adminstrabon nnd defonce, compuliony i ] 5 an o Ll
Educalion 0 1 {45 438 1" 18 1513
Humian healih servicos ancd soctal work act, 0 38 611 G4 260 1012
Arts, onlorammaornd and recmation ] 0 o8y T2 0 1258
Cifheier services i ] a7 5 ol Ag0
Fareign onganiations, bodies 0 ] 1] 1] ] /]
Inddias e16| ase0s| 2207|  eets|  7ost|  eabii
Total 2019 80 020 68 880 15 416 | 20372| 215716
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32207
Concentration of off-balance exposures from | high standard | average m
customers _broken down industry grade grade grade grade Impaired Total
| Agriculture, ferestry and fishing 0 Gi4 T2 125 1 1 b&2
Miring and quarrying 0 o a ') 1] 0
Manutacturing a22 11722 3233 =] ao 15 395
Elcirily, gas, slenm and air condion supply B3 1] 2489 0 0 B GH2
Watar supply ] 1] 3s 5 ] 53
Corsfruction 10 073 20826 5895 2eh 35 AT 155
Wholosale and retail trade 1384 45314 ¥ 609 264 0 a4 571
Transpor! and siorage o 50 5 404 B35 72 0 6221
Accommuodation and food sarvice aciivilies ] A2 243 22 0 o7
Intarmation and communioation 162 LT am 27 ] B35
Financial nd insurance activilies 28 BOI2 178 0 0 6218
Ranl ostnlo sotivithes 51 452 & 304 4 0 4 Bt
Professional, scentific and tech. acliviigs 1105 aay 2672 114 1] 4 288
Aciminstralive and suppon seovice aelivilies ] 223 1 D66 a7 0 1475
Pubilic adminisiration and detence, compidsary 0 700 2 7 i 709
Education ) a00 a0 ] ] 890
Humarn haalth services and socual waik ncl 0 B a0 o 0 100
Arts, entertainment and recraation 0 ] 55 g 0 B4
Other sanvices 0 i 58 13 0 7
Fariign organizations, bodies 0 a08 gaz 122 2 1354
Total L 19 478 83 348 30 694 1185 68| 134773
01.01.2017
Cancentration ol on-balance exposures Ifom high atandard average :::'
oustomars broken down Induatry grode frade grade frode Impaired Tatal
Agricullure, forestry and fishing 0 1 140 3 866 422 146 5574
Mining and quarnying ] a 728 106 ] 1] 3 B4
Manutacturing 1] B 232 B 115 BB 1765 16 934
Eleciricily, gas, stoam and air condition supaly ] 6 422 2075 106 [ 9 5n2
Wiles supply 0 i B35 1B 3 B56
Construction o 1570 2427 548 453 4988
Whalesale and refail rade ] 114892 16 776 i 368 2638 32314
Trangpor! and storage o 35 2147 253 14p 3245
Accommaodation and food servico actvities i) Bt 1 572 3a0 287 2310
Infarmation and communication o 1114 (= 118 75 2006
Financinl and inguranco activities ay 63 26 5 2040 2217
Real astate acthilies 413 1353 17 705 6326 2816 28 349
Professional, scientific and tech. activilles 0 552 2112 2318 228 5212
Adminlstrative and suppor seivice scivities ] 176 2 628 116 1 3027
Public adminisiralion and detence, compulsary a 0 73 0 0 ]
Educition 4] 1 B35 GF ar 24 2037
Hurnan hoalth services and socal work pel 0 74 A6 96 286 821
A, antertainamen and recraanan 43 K] 1133 e 71 1318
Dithar sonvices 0 0 255 GE el 375
Farsign orpanizalions, bodias 0 0 /] o 0 1]
Incfividulas a3a 6 488 46 221 B 303 18 184 B3 529
Tatal 501 47 B4B 108 010 21 785 30396 | 208 538
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01.01.2017

Concentration of oft-balance exposures high | standard | nverage _5:',;':“
from customers broken down by industry grade grade grade grade Impalred Tatal

| Agriculture, lorestry and fishing 0 161 743 7 i 1 Db
Mining and guarying 0 40780 0 0 0 4 078

| Manufacturing 0 6 277 2028 ll a|  7oen
Eloctricity, g, steam and air condition supply 0 6 624 746 ] o] 7ars
Watar supply 0 [} A0 o 0 40
Conatriciion [ 5 394 5023 103 im| 11508
Wholesale and rotal tradg 2 39137 5413 ana 0l A4EE1
Transport and storage 0 658 537 87 ] 1293
Actaimrmodintion ad lood nenice mclivillan 0 20 171 4 1} 228
Intormabion and commumniantion 1] 529 198 4 1] a
Financial nnd nsumnce activities 1240 _ll"ﬂ_ | 0 1 o 1370
Aal selalo activilios 20 a1g 1 262 57 a7 1 685
Professional, sciontific and tech activiies | 7 574 2 (404 50 I 3045
Adminsialive and BUPPON BETIGE aGHIVItos 0 646 1173 31 o 1850
Public administration dod dafence, compulsary ol THD 4 1] 1 i
Educatian 0 i a5 1 0 T
Human hoalih services and social work ach, 0 17 122 2 0 141
Aris. enleriainmont and recreation o o 45 20 [ B5 |
Qithar norvices a 4] G4 i 0 a7
Ircfivicdiials 24 4 584 a75 74 a 4070
Total 1314 68318 19 998 918 191 e17an

The sectoral distribution of the Bank's risk exposures corresponds lo the markel average;
mainly finances sectors with typically high need for financing (real estate, trade, manutacturing)
with loans; off-balance sheet ransactions are dominating in trade sectors (trade finance) and
in the real estate market (guarantee schemes).

6.11.4 Operational risk

The risk of incurring losses due lo errors or non-compliance of internal procedures (processes),
statl or systems and the risk of incurring losses due to external events are considered
operational risks. The Sberbank Europe Group and so Sberbank Hungary as well use the
standardised measuremen! method based on gross business line revenues to determine the
capital requirement for operational risk.

Within the Sberbank Europe Group, risk managemenl comprises the following processes in
general: risk identification; measurement and evaluation of risk exposures; ensuring
appropriale capital monitoring and planning: laking appropriate measures to control and
mitigate risks, Operational risks are measured both quantitatively and qualitatively (lor
example: collection of loss data, monitoring external loss events, risk sell-assessments,
maonitoring risk-mitigating measures).

The most important component of the 3-layer defence line is the operational risk manager
(Business Line Operational Risk Managers (BLORMSs)). The main methodology components
are (also) determined centrally with the involvement ol the parent bank, but the identification
of risks and problems within the various areas is decentralised through the BLORMs and they
are also responsible for checking the implementation of risk-mitigaling measures.
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In 2018 the Bank mainly fine-tuned its risk measurement methods (in particular, the methods
used for risk evaluation) and improved the quality of internal loss data collection, it regularly
monitored the operation of internal controls and developed its capital calculation procedure
under Fillar Il (ICAAP).

In the future, operational risk management will focus on the following activities:

continuous development of risk evaluation methodology

continuous development of internal controls

development of outsourcing processes

maonitoring of internal capital requirement

improving the quality of loss data and developing data collection practices

A monthly report is prepared and submitted to the Risk Committee about operational risk
losses, risk evaluation results and the implementation of internal controls, as well as about the
utilisation of internal limits determined with respect to operational risk appetite.

Operational nisk losses can be classified into one of the following main categories:

Internal fraud: an intentional action where at least one internal party was involved.
External fraud: losses stemming from the intentional activity of a third party alone,
aimed at fraud, misappropriation or the evasion of legal regulations

Employer practice and occupational safety: losses incurred due to the viclation of
employer, healthcare or occupational safety requirements, losses stemming from
individual litigated claims related to labour law, losses caused by social or cultural
discrimination

Client, business practice, marketing and product policy: losses resulling from
unintentional or negligent breach of professional obligations vis-a-vis clients (including
confidence or professional requirements) or losses stemming from product features or
product design

Losses affecting tangible assets: depreciation caused by natural disasters or other
events

Business disruption and system failures: losses stemming from business disruption or
the shutdown or failure of production systems

Execution, perfarmance and process management. damage caused by the incorrect
processing of transactions or the management of processes related to commercial
clients and suppliers
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6.12 Approval for issue

The general meeting of the Bank will approve the annual financial statements for issue on 29
May 2019,

Budapest, 13 May 2019

<5 e W
= |
Richard Szabé Eva Tud:g«;é Eyﬁngybw

Chairman - CEO CFO
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